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] As this Court knows the purpose of voir dire is to facilitate the identification and removal
2 || of potential jurors “who, because of bias or prejudice, cannot serve as fair and impartial jurors.”
3 | Sitver State v. Shelley, 105 Nev. 309, 774 P.2d 1044 (1989). Logically, if a trial starts where a
) juror already favors one party over the other, the goal of impaneling a fair and impartial jury has
; been defeated. Thus, it is imperative that voir dire is allowed to ensure that the parties are
7 | starting on an equal footing as far as the presentation of evidence is concerned. This concept has
8 || nothing to do with Plaintiffs’ burden of proof as Plaintiffs have never denied the elementary

principle that a plaintiff bears the burden of proof in a negligence action such as this.
10
11

12
13 § peremptory challenges allowed by the law.” State v. Brown, 53 N.C. App. 82, 280 S.E. 2d 31,

Considering the vital importance of empanelling and impartial jury, courts have consistently held

that “[tjhe voir dire examination of jurors . . . [is] to enable counsel to exercise intelligently the

14 | Cert Denied, 304 N.C. 197, 285 S.E. 2d 102 (1981). Therefore, the purpose of voir dire is for

151 counsel to gather information for peremptory as well as for cause challenges. However,

16

“[pJeremptory challenges are worthless if trial counsel is not afforded an opportunity to gain the
17
18 necessary information upon which to base such strikes.” Id. at 27, citing United States v. Ible,

19 || 630 F.2d 389, 395 (5" Cir. 1980).

20 Moreover, the United States Supreme Court has recognized the fundamental importance
L0 of empaneliing a fair and impartial jury, stating: “[i]t is difficult to conceive of a more effective
22

obstruction to the judicial process than a juror who has prejudged the case. ” Inn re Michael, 326,
23

% U.S. 224, 228, (1945). “The test for evaluating whether a juror should [be] removed for cause is

95 | ‘whether a prospective juror’s views would prevent or substantially impair the performance of
26 | his duties as a juror in accordance with his instruction and his oath.”” Weber v. Stafe, 121 Nev.
70 Adv. Rep. 57, 119 P.3d 107, 125 (2005), citing Leonard v. State, 117 Nev. 53, 65, 17 P.3d 397,

28 ‘
405 (2001); See also Wainwright v. Witt, 496 U.8. 412 (1985).
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The United States Supreme Court in Wainwright held that prospective jurors must be
excused if their views could substantially impair their ability to perform their function as jurors,
and the impairment need not be shown with unmistakabie clarity. The Supreme Court of Nevada
has provided guidance for the District Court and trial counsel in determining whether a juror
should be removed for cause. The Court explained, “[i]t is not enough to be able to point to
detached language which, alone considered, would seem to meet the statute requirement, if, on
construing the whole declaration together, it is apparent that the juror is not able to express an
absolute belief that his opinion will not influence his verdict.” Thompson vs. State of Nevada,
111 Nev. 439, 443, 854 P.2d 375, 377 (1995), citing Bryant v. State, 72 Nev. 330, 305 P.2d 360
(1956); see also Weber v. The State of Nevada, 119 P.3d 107, 126, 121 Nev. Adv. Rep. 57
(2005), citing Thompson, supra.

Moreover, a juror’s impairment does not need to be shown with “unmistakable clarity.”

Wainwright, supra. Any doubt should be weighed jn favor of being excused in_order to

remove even the possibility of bias or prejudice infecting the deliberations. See Walls v. Kim,
549 S.E.2d 797, 250 Ga.App. 259 (Ga. 2001).

The Nevada Supreme Court emphasized this point in Thempson, and found that,
“...[s]limply because the district court was able to point to detached language that prospective
juror eighty-nine could be impartial does not eradicate the fact that he previously demonstrated
partial beliefs, capped by an unequivocal statement that [the Defendant] was guilty.” Thompson,
supra at 443. The Court further explained: *“[i]t may be true that on examination [the prospective
juror's] answers tended to contradict his previous statements, but we believe that his very self-
contradictions do not increase his fitness as a juryman.” fd. citing Bryant, 72 Nev. at 334, The
Thempson court ultirﬁately concluded that “. . . it was prejudicial error that {the] prospective

juror was not excused for cause.

41~
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This principle is echoed in Courts throughout our country. Notably, the Georgia Court of
Appeals in Walls, supra discussed the fallacy of the “rehabilitation question™ justify retention of
biased jurors. The Walls Court discussed the fact that in too many cases, judges confronted with
clearly biased jurors use their significant discretion by asking a version of the following
question, which the Walls Court characterized as a “loaded question™:

After you hear the evidence and my charge on the law, and considering the oath

you take as jurors, can you set aside your preconceptions and decide this case

solely on the evidence and the law?

Id. at 799. The Walls Court further explained, *[n}]ot so remarkably, jurors confronted with this
question from the bench almost inevitably say, ‘yes.’”

The Walls case is a classic example of the misuse of the “rehabilitation question.” The
Georgia Court of Appeals found that the Judge erred in not dismissing the juror for cause and

reversed the judgment and remanded for a new trial. fd. The Court explained that the mere fact

the juror told the court she could decide the case on the law énd facts did not eliminate the reality

of her potential bias. The Court further explained that a trial judge should err on the side of
caution by dismissing biased jurors, rather than trying to rehabilitate them, because in
reality, the judge is the only person in the courtroom whose primary concern, and primary

duty, is to ensure the selection of a fair and impartial jury. Jd. at 799. [Emphasis Added].

A decision from the Supreme Court of Appeals of West Virginia is also illustrative of the
commonplace fallacy of attempts to rehabilitate jurors who already demonstrate potential bias
and prejudice. See O 'Dell v. Miller, 565 S.E.2d 407, 211 W.Va. 285 (Va. 2002). The trial judge
refused to strike a prospective juror for cause who made statements that cast doubt on his ability
to be fair and impartial, and the plaintiff was forced to use a preemptory strike to remove the
challenged juror. /d.

The (J'Dell Court reiterated what the Wails Court and what the majority of Courts have
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stated, namely, that “[t]rial judges must resist the temptation to ‘rehabilitate’ prospective jurors
simply by asking the ‘magic question’ to which jurors respond by promising to be fair when all
the facts and circumstances show that the fairness of that juror could reasonably be questioned.”
Id. at 412. The court explained that “[o]nce a prospective juror has made a clear statement
during voir dire reflecting or indicating the presence of a disqualifying prejudice or bias, the
prospective juror is disqualified as a matter of law and cannot be rehabilitated by subsequent
questioning, later retractions, or promises to be fair.” /d. The Court held that the trial court is
required to consider the totality of the circumstances and grounds relating to a potential request
to excuse a prospective juror, /d. at413. |

As this Court is aware, and as was proven during voir dire, there are a number of
common troubling beliefs, or attitudes, held by prospective jurors in personal injury cases which
“substantially impair” their ability to follow the law. The beliefs and attitudes of several
potential jurors were discovered during voir dire and this Court properly dismissed these jurors
for cause as it was made clear that these jurors could not be fair or impartial in rendering a
verdict in this matter.

Additionally, Defendant’s reliance on Whitlock v. Salmon, 104 Nev. 24 (1988) is
misplaced as that case concemed the issue of a trial judge disallowing veir dire altogether, not
prohibiting counsel from supplemental examination after it was made clear to the court that a
prospective juror could not be fair and impartial. See afso Leone v. Goodman, 105 Nev. 22}
(1989). In fact, the Whirlock Court acknowledges that a trial judge is vested with the authority to
supervise voir dire and reasonably restrict supplemental examination of prospective jurors.
“Both the scope of voir dire and the method by which voir dire is pursued remain within the
discretion of the district court. The trial judge has a duty to restrict attorney-conducted voir dire

to its permissible scope, that is, obtaining an impartial jury.” /d. at 28. Here, the Court properly
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exercised its sound discretion by excluded the prospective jurors who were clearly unsuitable to
serve as a member of the venire.

Lastly, there is nothing in Defendant’s Motion that even remotely explains how this
Court failed to properly restrict Plaintiffs’ voir dire but for one lone contention that Plaintiffs’
counsel improperly advised the jury of the burden of proof, a contention that is wholly without
merit as set forth above. Despite the fact that Plainitiffs’ voir dire took place over the course of
several half judicial days, the defense has not detailed in any manner that Plaintiffs® voir dire
was improper, Defendant’s blanket assertion that Plaintiffs’ question were designed to
“indoctrinate” the jurors is unsupported by anything in the record. Defendant could have cited to
the specific instances where said “indoctrinization” supposedly occurred, but did not.

D. All Medical Evidence was Properly Presented at Trial; Notwithstanding,

Defendant’s Argument Concerning the Purported Late Disclosure of Medical

Evidence, has Been Rendered Moot as Plaintiffs did Not Request, nor Recelve, any
Damages for Future Medical Treatment.

The contention asserted by the defense that it was prejudiced by evidence of William’s
recommendation for a spinal cord stimulator is without merit as the defense was put on notice
well in advance of trial of this future treatment. Notwithstanding, even of this evidence was
improperly introduced, which it was not, Plaintiffs’ ultimately did not request damages for any
future medical care, nor were any damages awarded by this Court for future medical and related
expenses. (See Exhibit “4”),  Accordingly, Defendant’s contention on the matter of “late
disclosed’ medical evidence lacks merit as it has been rendered moot.

Notwithstanding, there is no doubt that the defense was aware of the spinal cord
stimulator opinions well in advance of trial. In fact, during the discovery phase of this case, the

defense took several depositions. Many of these depositions were of Mr, Simao’s treating
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physicians,®> Dr. Ross Seibel is one of the Pain Management Specialists that treated Mr. Simao
during the early stages of his treatment, and then again during the later stages of his treatment.

Dr. Seibel was deposed on August 20, 2010. At the time of Dr. Seibel’s deposition, he
was providing ongoing medical treatment (pain management) to Mr. Simao. During the
deposition, Dr. Seibel was asked several questions regarding the medical treatment of William
Simao. Moreover, defense counsel questioned Dr. Seibel regarding future medical trcatment that
Mr. Simao would require. In response, Dr. Seibel responded, that he did not have a plan not
right now.

Q. Let me shift gears here. Do you have a future treatment plan for the Plaintiff?
A, I don’t right now in front of me.

( See Seibel Deposition, at Exhibit “16,” p. 53, lines 20-22.) [Emphasis Added].

Later in his deposition, Dr. Seibel was asked more refined questions regarding Mr.
Simao’s future medical treatment. Specifically, Dr. Seibel was asked what treatment that Mr.
Simao should next undergo, so that the future treatment plan of Mr. Simao could be determined.

Q. What treatment plan would you recommend to Mr. Simao at this pointin
time to more definitely diagnose and his condition and also to treat his
condition?

It seems like there is two questions. One is - -

Well, lets break it down to - -

Therapuetic. Let’s talk about diagnostic first.

From a diagnostic standpoint, based on the last time I saw him, I would
pursue again a selective nerve rcot block at C4 level.

What would be the purpose of that? Would you explain?

To see if he’s having C4 nerve-root mediated pain caused by compression
of the nerve root.

O POLOP

(See Exhibit “16,” p. 67, lines 17-25 thru p. 68, lines 1-14.)
As testified by Dr. Seibel on August 20, 2010, he could not diagnose Mr. Simao’s current
condition, without first performing an additional diagnostic pain management procedure, Dr.

Seibel goes on to testify that this additional procedure would provide him with the eritical

* Moreover, the defense deposed some of the treating physicians twice. (i.e. Dr. McNulty).
: . . 45 - .
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diagnostic information that he would need before being able to formulate the future medical plan

of Mr. Simao.

Q. Okay. And what -- assuming that that has a positive outcome, what
would be your treatment options for -- or your treatment recommendations
for him?

Al Again, from my perspective, I'm not the spine surgeon. But my job is to

provide some diagnostics, but also some therapeutic interventions, which
range from the modalities we mentioned before, Would it be a medication
management ot a repeat steroid injection? Or consider re-referral back to
the surgeon to see if he felt there was any other surgical interventions that
could help alleviate this based on those diagnostic results.

(See Exhibit “16,” p. 68, lines 17-25 thru p. 69, lines 1-3.)

In other words, Dr. Seibel testified that if Mr. Simao had a positive outcome to the
diagnostic pain management procedure, then there would be a range of future treatment options
available to him.

Next, Dr. Seibel was asked what the treatment options would be if the results of the pain

management diagnostic procedure was negative.

Q. And assuming the result was negative, what would be your next step?
A If the result was negative, I'd probably to do myofascial treatments for

him, medication management. He may not have any further interventional
or surgical modalities that are available to him.

(See Exhibit “16,” p. 69, lines 4-9.)

In other words, Dr. Seibel testified that if there was a negative result, then the only future
treatrnent available would be medications and physical therapy.

In an effort to understand what Dr. Seibel meant by the term “modalities,” he was
questioned with regard to various types of treatment options. Specifically, he was asked about
two specific options, a spinal cord stimulator and a morphine pump, The testimony is as follows:

Q. At that point in time, is it foreseeable to you that he would be

recommended for, say, an implant of an electronic stimulator or other type
of pain-relief modality, such as the Morphine pump for -

A. I could see where some might consider that an option. I don't consider a
Morphine pump or any intrathecal device right now a likely option for
-46 -
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that.
(See Exhibit “16,” p. 69, lines 10-16.)

Clearly, Dr. Seibel testified that an implant of a spinal cord stimulator would be a viable
treatment option. Moreover, he felt that it was a treatment option that other physicians might also
recommend. However, “right now” (April 20, 2010), Dr. Seibel could not recommend a spinal
cord stimulator, since Mr. Simac required an additional diagnostic procedure. This is confirmed
by Dr. Seibel’s additional deposition testimony.,

Q. No, I understand right now. But I'm saying --and 1 understand that there still has

to be further workup with Mr. Simao; is that fair?

A, Yes.

A I could see where somebody would think that's a reasonable option. I

don't particularly think that's an option for him. But, yes, those are
treatment modalities that somebody would feel is appropriate.
(See Exhibit “16,” p. 69, lines 4-9.)

In sum, on August 20, 2010, Dr. Seibel was asked several questions regarding Mr.
Simao’s future treatment options. He informed the attorneys that he did not have a future
treatment plan at that time because he needed o perform an additional diagnostic procedure. He
testified regarding the range of future treatment options available, but that he first would need to
know if Mr. Simao had a either positive or a negative result from the diagnostic test. Lastly, Dr.
Seibel testified that two of these modalities could include an intrathecal morphine pump or a
spinal cord stimulator. (Each of these are pain management devices). According to Dr. Seibel,
some physicians might believe that Mr. Simao is a candidate for one of these two options right
now. However, at the time of his deposition, Dr. Seibel could not state whether a spinal cord
stimulator was a viable future treatment option until he first determined if Mr. Simao had a

positive outcome from the diagnostic procedure.

On November 11, 2010, Dr. Seibel performed the diagnostic injection that he discussed
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in his deposition. * Shortly after the injection, Mr. Simao followed up with Southwest Medical
Associates. The chart note for the follow up visit indicates that Mr. Simao had a 75-80%
reduction in his left sided extremity and neck pain as a result of the pain management injection
which is clearly a positive outcome.’ More importantly, based on this positive outcome, there is
now a diagnostic basis in which to form future treatment options. Specifically, Dr. Seibel
testified that if Mr. Simao had a positive outcome from the diagnostic procedure then one of then
Mr. Simao would be a candidate for future treatment modalities, i.e. a spinal cord stimulator.
While the defense has argued that they were surprised by the fact that a spinal cord
stimulator is a viable future treatment option for Mr. Simao, the evidence shows that this is not
true. The defense was put on notice at the time of Dr. Seibel’s deposition. Moreover, if the
defense would have simply read the Southwest Medical record of November 23, 2010, (the
follow up note immediately after the diagnostic procedure performed by Dr Seibel) they would
have known that Mr. Simao had a positive outcome from the diagnostic procedure, thus
affording Mr. Simao a range of treatment options such as a spinal cord stimulator. Simply put,
the positive outcome from the diagnostic procedure provided the diagnostie basis for Mr.
Simao’s treating physician(s) to formulate future treatment recommendations. Once Mr. Simao
had a positive outcome from the diagnostic procedurc, a spinal cord stimulator (pain
management device) was now an appropriate treatment recommendation and not just a viable
option. This is further confirmed by Dr. Daniel Lee, who is one of the spine surgeons who
treated Mr. Simao. On February 24, 2011, Dr. Lee examined Mr. Simao and noted that he

recommended future pain management for Mr. Simao.®

As discussed above, a spinal cord
stimulator is a pain management device.

By it’s very nature, a surprise is something that you could not anticipate, or something

! See Exhibit “17,” (Tria) Exhibit 18, p. 263-264),
> See Exhibit “18,” (Trial Exhibit 18, p. 265-266).
® See Exhibit “19,” Chart Note of Dr. Lee, dated February 24, 2011 (Trial Exhibit 22, p- 7%
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that you were not expecting. Here, the defense cannot claim surprise with regard to a spinal cord
stimulator being a future medical treatment option for Plaintiff, since their expert offered an
opinion on the same.

The defense retained Dr. David Fish as an expert. Dr. Fish is a Board Certified Pain
Management Specialist. Dr. Fish examined Plaintiff, conducted a records review (of all of
Plaintiff’s medical records), read all of the depositions and drafted at least (4) four expert reports.
On February 9, 2011, approximately one (1) month before the start of the trial, Dr. Fish authored
a report outlining his opinions regarding Plaintiff’s future medical treatment. At page seven (7)
of his report, Dr Fish states:

“There is no indication based on the MVA, a dorsal column stimulator,
cervical degenerative arthritis, and need for revision surgery to the
cervical spine is necessary.”’

The fact that Dr. Fish authored a report containing opinions regarding a spinail column
stimulator is evidence of the fact that the defense was put on notice of this future treatment
opticn. Clearly, Dr. Fish understood that a spinal cord stimulator was a treatment option
discussed by Plaintiff’s treating physicians; otherwise, he would not have rendered an opinion on
the subject. Moreover, the fact that Dr. Fish rendered opinions regarding a spinal cord stimulator
is evidence that he anticipates evidence of the same, and is prepared to address the 1ssue at trial.
Based upon all of the evidence presented, Defendant’s claim that she should have been made
known that a future spinal cord stimulator procedure would be claimed at trial cannot be
maintained considering the facts that Defendant was made aware prior to trial by not only
Plaintiffs’ treating physicians’ opinions and records, but more importantly through their own
medical expert witness,

With respect to Dr. Schifini, this Court should disregard any argument made regarding

7 See Exhibit #20", Dr. Fish Report, dated February 9, 2011.
- ' : ~40
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this late and improperly disclosed expert, including the opinions expressed in his Affidavit. Dr.
Schifini was never named as an expert, and was not disclosed in any fashion until after the trial.
The time to disclose experts has long since expired and Defendant’s request to express a new
medical expert was specifically denied by the Court. (See RDT, March 30, 2011, at Exhibit “21,
pp.1-16) Further, Dr. Schifini’s opinions are entirely irrelevant given the fact that he was
purportedly retained to rebut the opinions expressed by Dr. McNulty regarding fiture medical
treatment and costs, which were not an element of damages requested, or awarded, at the default
judgment hearing.

With respect to Dr, Arita, the defense has failed to demonstrate to the Court how Dr.
Arita’s trial testimony is a cause for a new trial and has failed to set forth what “changes” in Dr.
Arita’s deposition testimony versus his trial testimony exist. Further, although Plaintiffs’ counsel
did meet with Dr. Arita prior to his trial testimony, which is entirely appropriate, there is no
evidence anywhere that Dr. Arita’s opinions “changed” as consequence to meeting with
Plaintiffs’ counsel. Defendant had an opportunity to cross-cxamine Dr. Arita at trial, although
said examination was never completed because Defendant’s Answer was stricken due to abusive
litigation practices. During said cross-examination, Defendant’s counsel published Dr. Arita’s
deposition, presumably attempting to point out inconsistencies in his tria] testimony. However,
because Dr. Arita’s cross-examination was not completed, Plaintiffs did not have an opportunity
to re-direct Dr. Arita and provide him the opportunity to explain to the jury the alleged
differences between his testimony at deposition versus trial and the reasons for said differences.

The fact of the matter is that because Dr. Arita’s trial testimony was not completed,
especially a re-direct examination, it is impossible to know what “changes,” if any, 1o his
deposition testimony actually exists and the reasons for said “changes.”  Further, it is pure

speculation on the part of the defense to presume that Dr. Arita “changed” his deposition
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testimony, when in actuality, his deposition testimony was, in all likelihood, taken out of context
and/or was based upon incomplete information, as Dr. Arita expressed during cross-examination
on at least one (1) occasion, without having the benefit to explain the reasons why on re-direct.
(See Exhibit ¥21,” p. 88).

Lastly, Defendant argues that Plaintiffs had a duty to disclose Dr. Arita’s “change in
testimony” but fails to specify what “changes” should have been disclosed. Without knowing
the “changes” that purportedly should have been disclosed prior to Dr. Arita’s trial testimony,

Plaintiffs are unable to adequately respond to the allegations against them.

E. Defendant’s Assertion that Any Award of General Damages is a “Veiled” Award of
Special Damages Lacks Even the Smallest Indicia of Merit.

Defendant’s argument conceming “veiled” general damages is nonsensical and is
supported by nothing but sheer speculation, especially the notion that pain and suffering awards
are “normally” 2 to 3 times the compensatory damages. Such an assertion has no basis in law or
fact and is wholly unsupported in Defendant’s brief,

As this Court is aware, unlike special damages, there is no definite standard or method of
calculation prescribed by law by which to fix reasonable compensation for pain and suffering.
Nevada Pattern Civil Jury Instructions, Civil 10.05. Nor is the opinion of any witness required
as 1o the amount of such reasonable compensation, although this jurisdiction recognizes that
expert economists, such as Stan Smith, Ph.D., who testified on behalf of Plaintiffs’ at trial, are
pennitted to be utilized to present hedonic damages evidence, which is a component of pain and
suffering. See Banks v. Sunrise Hosp., 120 Nev. 822, 839 (Nev. 2004). As was presented at
trial, Dr. Smith’s hedonic Joss calculations for William were presented to a reasonable degree of
economic certainty to fall within a range of $603,454 for a 15% reduction in loss of enjoyment of
life (hedonic loss) and $1,206,884 for a 30% reduction in the loss of life’s enjoyment. (See

Exhibit “21,” p. 132). Plaintiff only requested $905,169 of that amount, which is the median
-5] -
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amount and is more than reasonable considering that this equates to only a 22.5% reduction in

William’s loss of enjoyment of life.

and future pain and suffering based on a per diem amount of $0.15 per minute of past pain and
suffering (about $9.00 an hour} and $0.07 per minute for William’s 31 years of future pain and
suffering. Per diem requests for pain and suffering have been allowed in Nevada.-Johnsan. V.
Brown, 75 Nev. 437 (1955). In Johnson, the defendant was sued after causing a motor vehicle
collision which resulted in injury to the plaintiff. At trial, the lower court permitted plaintiff's

counsel to suggest a mathematical basis for fixing damages for pain and suffering. /d at 446.

Further, in addition to this item of pain and suffering, Plaintiff also asked for both past

Plaintiff’s counsel suggested the following:

Id

appealed. On appeal, the defense asserted, among other things, that the trial court erred by

The argument I am going to make is obviously distasteful to
defendants’ attorney, but it is the only way I can possibly aid you
and give you a guide. If you think I am being unfair, you go into
the jury room and say so and come to your own conclusion. It is
the only way I know how to argue pain and suffering, and 1 am
frank to say that, ladies and gentlemen. As I stated, what is it
worth to have your femur violently driven into your pelvis? What
is it worth to have your doctor save your life by a tube tapped into
your chest? I suggest $5,000 for the initial blow and injury. He
was in the hospital for 75 days, but for only 67, approximately, he
was in traction and cast?

You have seen the traction and you heard the doctor describe the
cast. Now, whal is it worth, what is it worth to have the traction
pin pushed through your leg? What is it worth to have a cast
around your body? What is it worth to be in prison for 67 days?
Would ten cents a minute be unfair? That would be $6 an hour.

Consider it yourselves. I will give that ten cents a minute, $6 an .

hour. You can make up your minds whether you feel that is unfair
or not. That would be $144 a day or counsel can correct me if I am
wrong, $9,648 for 67 days.

The Johnson jury returned a verdict in favor of the plaintiff; the defendant, of course,

.52 -

004482

004482

004482




€8¥700

MAINOR EGLET

004483

allowing plaintiffs counsel to suggest a mathematical basis for fixing pain and suffering
damages, alleging that such an argument is improper. The Nevada Supreme Court, however,
was unconvinced and affirmed the lower court’s ruling. Id. at 447. The Johnson Court ultimately
held that the lower court did not err in permitting the argument to the jury, J/d

Here, Plaintiffs, in abiding by the precepts of Johnson, utilized a per diem approach in
their request for past and future pain and suffering damages. There is nothing buried in this
request relating to special damages of any sort and Defendant’s speculative argument suggesting
otherwise is simply unfounded.

F. There is No Reason in Law or Fact for the Court to Recuse itself and Defendant has

Failed to Set Forth any Authority or Precedent in_Support of this Outlandish
Request.

Lastly, as to Defendant’s request that this Court recuse itself because Defendant is not
“confident” that this case can proceed fairly in the instant department, said argument has been
presented without any justification whatsoever and lacks merit. Defendant’s arpument is
unsubstantiated by any sort of authority or precedent which even remotely provides this sort of
remedy to the Defendant. Moreover, even had any authority been cited by the defense for its
notion that this case cannot proceed fairly before this Court, there has been absolutely no
showing, anywhere, that the Court has acted in a biased or unfair manner towards either of the
parties. As has been set forth above, the pretrial rulings, and the sanctions imposed for violating
said pretrial rulings, were all well reasoned and issued in accordance to the law of this
jurisdiction as well as the Court’s broad discretion in these matters. Although the Defendant
disagrees with some of the Court’s pretrial rulings, and certainly disagrees with the Court’s
issuance of sanctions against her, this does not mean that the Court is biased against the defense.

In short, Defendant’s argument on recusal should be summarily disregarded.
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CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiffs respectfully request that Defendant Rish’s instant
Motion for New Trial be summarily DENIED.
DATED this cg ‘/ day of June, 2011,

M

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

CERTIFIATE OF MAILING

[Suné

The undersigned hereby certifies that on the May of—Ma-y 2011, a copy of the above
and foregoing PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL
was served by enclosing same in an envelope with postage prepaid thereon, address and mailed
as follows:

Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.
ROGERS, MASTRANGELOQO,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendants

An emp;oyee of OR EGLFT
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ROBERT T, EGLET, ESQ. % 2

Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M, ADAMS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600

Las Vepas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451

- dwall@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4500

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ, individually and | CASE NO.: AS539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as | DEPT.NO.: X
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
Y.

JENNY RISH,

Defendant.

DECISION AND ORDER REGARDING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO STRIKE
DEFENDANT’S ANSWER

This matter having come before the Court on March 31, 2011, on Plaintiffs’ oral Motion
10 Strike Defendant’s Answer, ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ., DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. and

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ. present for Plaintiffs, WILLIAM SIMAO and CHERYL SIMAQ.
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STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. and DANIEL F. POLSENBERG, ESQ. present for Defendant,
JENNY RISH, and following the Court’s oral pronouncement from the bench GRANTING
Plaintiffs’ Motion, the Court hereby enters the following writlen Decision and Order:

I. Factual and Procedusal Background

This case involves a motor vehicle accident occurring on Apnl 15, 2005, The Plaintiff,
WILLIAM SIMAO, was driving southbound on Interstate 15 when he was rear-ended by a
vehicle driven by the Defendant, JENNY RISH. Defendant did not deny causing the accident.
Plaintiff WILLIAM SIMAO was injured in the accident and brought the instant action. which
included a claim for loss of consortium by WILLIAM SIMAO’s wife, Plaintiif CHERYL
SIMAO.,

This matier was presented for jury trial beginning on March 14, 2011, and the trial had
nearly been completed before the instant Motion was made. However, the facts supporting the
Motion and the grounds upon which to analvze the Motion include rulings made by this Court
before the trial commenced. The Plaintiffs’ oral motion 1o strike the Defendant’s Answer is
rooted primarily in the Defendant’s repeated violations of this Court's Order pranting the
Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine to Preciude Defendant From Raising a Minor Impact Delense.
However, this Court recognizes that Defendant violated other Orders of this Court during the
trial, and the cumulative effect of such violations is material to the Court’s analysis. Before
jtemizing and analyzing the violations of this Court’s Order on “minor impact,” it is necessary (0
consider the violations of other Court orders by the Defendant.

A. Violation of Order Precluding Evidence of Unrelated Accidents, Injuries or Medical
Conditions
1. Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine

On January 7, 2011, Plaintiffs brought an Omnibus Motion in Limine, which included a
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request to preclude the Defendant from introducing evidence of Prior and Subsequent Unrelated
Accidents, Injuries and Medical Conditions and Prior and Subsequent Claims or Lawsuits, This
portion of the Omnibus Motion in Limine specifically asked this Court 10 preclude evidence of
an unrelated 2003 motorcycle accident involving the Plaintiff, since no medical provider had
connected any of the minor injuries sustained by the Plaintiff in the 2003 motorcycle accident 1o
any injuries suffered in the instant accident. In shorl, the evidence established that the
maotoreycle accident was irrelevant.

The Defendant filed an Opposition 1o Plaintiffs’ Omnibus Motion in Limine, and the
matter was heard by this Court on February 13, 2011, a1 which time this Count GRANTED
Plaintiffs’ request. On March 9, 2011, this Court entered a written Order which stated in
pertinent part as follows:

“§T IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request 10 exclude prior and
subsequent unrelated accidents, injuries and medical conditions, and prior and subsequem
claims or lawsuils is GRANTED in all resf)ecls.”

Following the entry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded the Defendant from introducing evidence of unrelated accidents, including
the 2003 motorcycle accident.

2. Defendant’s Clear Viplation in Opening Statement

In his Opening Statement, counsel for the Defendant presented to the jury a Power Point
slide referencing William Simao’s 2003 motorcycle accident. The Plaintiffs objected, asked that
the slide be shielded from the jury, and approached for a sidebar conference.

The slide clearly and unambiguously violated the Order of this Court on the Plaintiffs’
Omnibus Motion in Limine, which Motion specifically referenced the 2003 motorcycle accident

as an accident unrelated to any issue in the instant case. The jury was directed 1o disregard the
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slide and was further admonished that a pretnial ruling of the Cournt excluded evidence of the
2003 motorcycle accident,

The Plamntiffs’ objection was sustained.

Following this admonition, this Court held a hearing outside the presence of the jury to
allow the Defendant’s counsel and the Plaintiffs’ counsel to review the remaining slides
accompanying the defense Opening Statement to determine if any of them violated court orders.
Several of them violated orders and were removed (RTP, March 21, 2011, p, 75). Notably, the
Plaintiffs’ counsel made the following statement outside the presence of the jury:

There were multiple other slides that had the same type of problems in them.
Most of them Mr. Rogers agreed with and took those statements out of the slides, but
apain, if we hadn’t done that, there would have been three to four more clear violations of
... this Court’s pretrial orders.

As Mr. Wall [Plaintiffs’ co-counsel} said at the bench, 1 think it’s clear — [ think
it's abundantly clear that Mr. Ropers is going to try to mistry this case. I think it is
abundantly clear that that’s what’s going on.

1 told the Court at the last bench conference that that was two. If there were any
additional ones, we were going to start asking for monetary sanctions and other potential
sanctions in this case for this type of systematic refusal to comply with pretrial court
orders.

1 expect his experts are going to do it as well. | can assure this Court that they are
going to violate a number of the orders in their testimony, just like Mr. Rogers did up
there. ...

(RTP, March 21, 2011, p. 75) (emphasis supplied).
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B. Violations of Order Precluding Evidence That This is a **‘Medical Build-up” Case
1. Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine

Within the afore-menlioned Omnibus Motion in Limine, the Plaintiffs also sought to
preclude any evidence or argument that the case was “attorney driven” or a “medical build-up”
case. This section of the Plaintiffs’ Omnibus Motion in Limine was also heard by this Court on
February 15, 2011, a1 which time this Court GRANTED the Plaintiffs’ request. During the
hearing on this Motion, counsel for the Defendant conceded he had no evidence of any kind
suggesting that this case was “attomey driven” or a “medical build-up™ case. This Courl’s
writien Order of March 9, 2011, also stated as follows:

“IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request o preclude argument that
this case is ‘attorney drven’ or a ‘medical build-up’ case is GRANTED.”

Following the eniry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specificaily precluded the Defendant from arguing or presenting evidence that the instant case
was a “medical build-up” case, in large measure as a result of the Defendant having no such
evidence (o present.

2. Defendant’s Clear Violation During Opening Statement

In his Opening Statement, counsel for the Defendant made the fellowing statement when
discussing the testimony of the Plaintiff’s treating physicians:

“And we are going lo hear from varous different kinds of doctors in this case.

One of them are doctors who appear down here regularly in court, as often, if not more

than trial lawyers. Doctors McNulty, and Grover..."”

(RTP March 21, 2011, p. 72).

Defense counsel’s statement was interrupted by an objection from the Plaintiffs, who

additionally asked that the Power Point slide thal accompanied the defense’s Opening Statement
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be shielded from the jury. The slide referenced the Plaintiff’s treating physicians as “Trial
Doctors.”

Al the sidebar conference that followed, the Plaintiffs objected to the statements of
counse] and the “Trial Doctors” slide as violating this Court’s Order precluding any argument
that the case was “attomey driven” or a “medical build-up” case. Since no other purpose for the
statemeni or the slide was forthcoming from counsel for the Defendant at the sidebar, the jury
was directed to disregard the slide.

The Plaintiffs® objection was sustained.

3. Defendant’s Clear Violation Durinp Cross-Examination of Dr. Patrick McNulty

Despite this Court’s ruling during the Defendant's Opening Statement on the issue of
medical build-up and “Trial Doctors,” counsel for the Defendant asked the following question of
Dr. McNulty, one of the Plaintiff’s treating doctors:

“Now. Doctor, yesterday there was a discussion about the testimony history of a
doctor. I don’t broach this topic with you to be insensitive, but |1 want to touch on it since
that issue has been raised. You testified under oath, whether it be in trial or in deposition,
somewhere around 100 times; is that right?”

(RTP, March 25, 2011, pp. 21-22).

Counsel for the Plaintiffs immediately objected and approached the Couri for a sidebar
bench conference. There, the Court heard argument regarding the “discussion” “yesterday”
which was the Plaintiffs’ use of specific prior deposition testimony to impeach the Defendant’s
expert witness during cross-examination. Further, the Court heard argument that this line of
questioning could only be presented to create an inference of “medical build-up.” Counsel for
the Defendant did not sufficiently explain to this Court how this line of questioning was not a

violation of the pretrial order precluding evidence of “medical build-up,” especially in light of
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the fact that the Defendant admittedly had no evidence to support & “medical build-up” defense.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.
C. Violations of Pretrial Order Precluding *Minor Impact” Defense

As set forth above, the Plaintiffs’ ultimate motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer was
based primarily on repeated violations of this Court’s pretdal Order on the issue of 2 “minor
impact” defense.
1. Plaintiff’s Motion in Limine

On February 17, 2011, Plaintiffs brought a Motion in Limine to: 1) Preclude Defendant
from Raising a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense; 2) Limit the Trial Testimony of Defendant’s
Expert, David Fish, M.D.; and 3) Exclude Evidence of Property Damage. The Motion set out the
fact that the Nevada Highway Patro] Trooper who completed the Accident Report referred to the
vehicle damage as “moderate.” Specifically, the Motion asked the Court to preclude the
Defendant from *‘arguing, suggesting or insinuating at trial that the crash was a “minor impact” or
‘low impact’ collision, and not significant enoungh to cause Plaintiff"s injuries.” The Motion was
primarily based on Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008), coupled with the fact that
Defendant did not have any expert qualified 1o testify whether the impact in the instant collision
was sufficient to cause the injuries complained of. Conversely, the Plaintiffs had disclosed a
biomechanical expert who was prepared to testify that the accident was of the type to have
proximately caused injury to the Plaintiff. The Motion further sought ta Jimit Defendant’s pain
management expert, Dr. David Fish, from testifying to opinions rooted in biomechamcal science,
as he lacks the qualifications to testify to such opinions under the standard announced in
Halimark.

On February 25, 2011, Defendant filed an Opposition to the Motion and the matter was

heard by this Court on March 1, 2011, at which time the Court GRANTED Plaintiffs’ Motion in
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its entirety. Defendants provided no evidence or information to correlate the amount of damage
to a vehicle in a collision to the severity of the injury suffered by a passenger. Defendants had
1o expert witness on biomechanics to support an argument or inference that this accident was too
minor to cause the injuries alleged to have been suffered by the Plaintiff. Based on the Nevada
Supreme Court’s rulings in Hallmark, supra, Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168 (1964) and Choat v.
MecDorman, 86 Nev. 332 (1970), this Coun found that issues of accident reconstruction and
biomechanics are not within the common knowledge of laypersons and require experl witness
testimony. As such, this Count found no evidentiary or factual foundation upon which the
Defendant could argue or infer that the accident was too minor 1o cause the Plaintiff’s injuries.

On March 8, 2011, this Court entered 2 wnitien Order which stated in pertinent part as
follows:

“IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plainiiffs’ request o preclude Defendant from

Raising a “"Minor” or “Low [mpact” Defense is GRANTED.

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to limit the trial testimony

of Defendant’s expert, David Fish, M.D., to those areas of expertise that he is qualified 10

testify in regards to is GRANTED. Neither Dr. Fish nor any other defense expert shall

opine regarding biomechanics or the nature of the impact of the subject crash at trial.
IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to exclude the propertly
damage photos and repair invoice(s} is GRANTED.”

Following the entry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded a defense (or even an argument) that the accident was too minor 10 cause
the injuries for which Plaintiff sought to recover damages.

Despite a clear and unambiguous Order precludihg the Defendant from raising as a

defense that the impact of the accident was too minor 1o cause the Plaintiff’s injuries, counsel for
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the Defendant persisted in violating this Court’s order. ultimately leading to the sanction
imposed herein. There can be no question or argument that the Defendant was on notice of this
Court’s Order, based on the following:

a) Hearing Outside the Presence of the Jury on March 18, 2011

After jury selection had been completed and before Opening Statements, this Court held a
hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss, among other things, the issue of a minor
impact defense. The discussion on the record was extensive and comprises seventeen {17) pages
of the transcript (See, RTP, March 18, 2011, pp. 112-129).

During this hearing, the Plaintiffs’ counsel brought to this Court’s attention the fact that
counsel for the Defendant, in his Qpening Statement, might broach the subject of minor impact
by referring to the Defendant’s deposition testimony that the impact of the accident was merely
“a tap.” Counsel for the Defendant conceded that it was his impression that this Count had not
precluded such an argument:

“What happened was, there was a motion to exclude a defense that a minor
impact cannot cause injury. The Plaintiffs’ argumenl in the motion was because the
defense did not retain a biomechanical engineer they would not be able to argue the
general proposition that minor impacts cannot cause injury.

The defense appeared at the hearing and said, *This is not a biomechanical case.
The defense is not going to argue that no minor impact can cause injury. The defense is
that this minor impact did not cause injury.”

(RTP, March 18, 2011, p. 114)(emphasis supplied).

1t became clear to this Court that the Defendant inlended to present a minor impact
defense, despite the Order of this Court to the contrary. Plaintiffs’ counsel was allowed to once

again state on the record their position on the original Motion in Limine, outlining that the
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Defendant had no expert witness 1o opine that the accident was too minor 10 cause the claimed
injuries, and further that the Order of this Court on the Motion in Limine precluded a “minor
impact” defense at trial.

By the conclusion of the hearing outside the presence of the jury, this Court reiterated its
ruling on the Motion in Limine precluding a “minor impact” defense (RTP March 18, 2011, p.
125-26). Likewise, this Court precluded counsel for the Defendant from referencing in his
Opening Statement that it was a minor impact, or simply “a tap,” for the purpose of raising an
inference that the accident was 100 minor 1o cause the Plainiifl"s injuries {RTP March 18, 2011,
pp. 127-28). This Court further reminded counsel for the Defendant to review the Order entered
on this issue to avoid violating it in the future (RTP March 18, 2011, p. 126, 127).

b) Hearinp Outside the Presence of the Jury on March 21, 2011

On the first courl day following the hearing set forth above, the issue of “minor impact™
was again raised outside the presence of the jury immediately following the Plaintiffs’ Opening
Statement. At this hearing, the Defendant sought permission 1o claim a “minor impact” defense
based on the door allegedly being opened by the Plaintiffs in their Opening Statemnent when
counse} referred to the accident as a “motor vehicle crash.” This Court noted that the Plaintiffs
in their Opening Statement did not refer to the nature of the impact, the severity of the impact,
the fact that the impact was significant enough to cause the Plaimiff’s injuries nor any violence
associated with the impact. In fact, this Court noted that Plaintiffs’ counsel did not describe the
impact of the vehicles in any way.

Based on that finding, the Court denied the Defendant’s renewed request to be able 1o
raise a “minor impact” defense. Again, the Defendant was clearly and unequivocally on notice

that such a defense was precluded.
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2. Reference to Minor Impact during Defendant’s Opening Statement

Immediately following the foregoing discussion outside the presence of the jury, counsel
for the Defendant delivered his Opening Statement. He described the stop and go traffic the
Defenciant encountered before the accident, and stated that the Defendant was nearly stopped
before the impact (RTP, March 21, 2011, p. 63). Plaintiffs did not object to this statement,
although it arguably raises an inference of a minor impact.

Thereafter, counsel for the Defendant proceeded to attempt to play selected portions of
his client’s videotaped deposition regarding the nature of the accident, which drew.an objection
from the Plaintiffs. After a bench conference, this Court determined that not only was the
Defendant’s deposition hearsay when offered on her own behalf, but also that testimony
regarding the nature of the accident, if offered to show it was a minor impact, would be in
violation of this Court’s pretrial Order.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained,

3. Clear Violation of Order During Cross-Examination of Dr. Jorg Rosler

During the testimony of Dr. Rosler, one of the Plaintiff’s treating pain management
physicians, counse] for the Defendant asked the following question:

"Do you know anything aboit what happened to [Defendant] Jenny Rish and her
passengers in this accident?”

(RPT, March 22, 2011, p. 84)

Before the witness could answer, the Plaintiffs objected, citing this Court’s pretrial
molion ruling.

The only potential relevance of such an inquiry would be to raise an inference that since
the Defendant or her passengers were not injured (or that the Plaintiff’s treating physician was

unaware of any injury), the accident must not have been significant enough to injure the Plaintiff,
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There is no other potential purpose in obtaining an answer from this witness to that question.
Such an inference would be directly contrary to this Court’s Order preciuding a **minor impact”
defense.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

4. Clear Violation During Cross-Examination of Dr. Patrick McNulty

Despite the fact that the Court sustained the Plaintiffs’ objection to the improper question
of Dr. Rosler, counsel for Defendant asked an almost identical question of the next treating
physician to testify for Plaintiff. Within the first two minutes of the Defendant's cross-
examination of Dr. McNulty, the following questions were asked:

[Defense Counsel] And you don’t know anything about the car accident other
than what [Plaintiff] told you?

(Dr. McNulty] It was simply he said he had a car accident and that’s when he ~
his problems started.

[Defense Counsel] Okay. But did you discuss with him whether he was able to
drive from the scene of the accident?

(Dr. McNulty] No, [ really didn’t go into the other - into the other details. No, |

did not discuss that.

[Pefense Counsel] Do you know anything about the folks in Jenny Rish’s car?

(RTP 3/25/11, p. 4) (Emphasis supplied).

Counse} for the Plaintiffs immediately objected and a bench conference ensued. Al the
bench conference, counsel for the Defendant indicated his position on the relevance of the
question;

[Defense Counsel] The relevance is that if one of them were injured or were not,

that would be relevant or probative to whether the others were injured.
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(RTP 3/25/11, p. 5).

In fact, based on this Court’s prior rulings, such a position is untenable. As stated in the
authority supporting the grant of the Plaintiffs* pretrial Motion in Limine, there is no correlation
between the size of the impact and the potential for injury 1o the Plaintiff. There is no correlation
between whether the Defendant or one of her passengers was injured and the potential for injury
to the Plaintiff. The Defendant had no credible or admissible evidence suggesting such a
correlation and no expert testimony 1o support such a proposition.

Further, since the question asked on cross-examination of Dr. McNulty was exactly the
same question precluded during the cross-examination of Dr. Rosler, the Defendant was clearly
on notice that this area of inquiry was improper.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

S. Clear Violalion During Cross-Examipation of Dr. Jaswinder Grover

On the very same afiemoon as Dr. McNulty’s cross-examination, the Defendant had the
opportunity to cross-examine Dr. Grover, another of the Plaintiff's treating physicians. During
that cross-examnination, counsel for the Defendant again asked the very same type of question
precluded during the cross-examination of Drs. Rosler and McNulty:

[Defense Counsel] You know the Plaintiff wasn’t transported by ambulance.
[Dr. Grover] Yes, sir.
[Defense Counsel] You know [whether] Jenny Rish -
[Plaintiff’s Counsel] Objection, Your Honor.
[Defense Counsel] — was fted from the scene?
(RTP 3/25/11, p. 141).

After all of the previous hearinps on the issue of a “minor impact” defense, and after the

objections to the same type of question were sustained by this Court, such a question of Dr.
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Grover is simply inexplicable. Again, there is no potential relevance to a question asked of one
of the Plaimiff’s treating doctors (who didn’t treat the Plaintiff until almost three years afier the
accident) sbout any injuries to the Defendant, other than to attempt to infer that the accident was
ton minor lo injure the Plaintiff if the Defendant was not injured. That inference is precluded,
based on the fact that the Defendant had no expert witness or admissible evidence to support that
inference.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained and the jury was directed to disregard the last

question.

6. Hearing Outside the Presence of the Jury on March 25, 201 |

Following the testimony of Dr. Grover, at a hearing outside the presence of the jury,
counsel for the Plaintiffs made the following record regarding the pervasive and continuous
violations of this Court's Orders on pretrial Motions by counsel for the Defendant:

[Plaintiffs’ Counsel] Despite the ruling of the Court, despite the arguments we’ve
had autside the presence on the issue of minor impact, in Opening Statement and with
each and every witness so far, there’s been a question which leads to a conclusion or an
argument about minor impact, whether the Defendant was injured in - whether the doctor
knows whether the Defendant was injured in the accident, which could only potentially
be relevant 10 some argument that the accident was too minor to have caused injury,
becaunse she wasn’t injured.

Each time we’'ve objected. Lach time the Court has sustained the objection. |
would look for, frankly, some guidance from the Court on what we can do from here out,
because it — I can only assume that it will continue to occur. And so, f don't know
whether a progressive sanction that we 'd ask for, that there should be a warning from

the Court before this should happen again. But those are my concems, and 1 don’t know
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what other potential relevance there could be 1o asking a treating physician whether he’s

aware of whether or not the Defendant was injured in the accident.

(RTP 3/25/11, pp. 164-65} (emphasis supplied).

Thereafter, a discussion ensued on the record regarding the Court’s pretrial ruling and the
fact that the Defendant had repeatedly violated it. At the conclusion of the hearing outside the
presence of the jury, this Court attempted, once again, to make it clear that the violations were
continuous and that the Court would take necessary measures if the violations occurred again.

To the Plaintiffs’ counsel’s suggestion of a progressive sanction, the Court responded thusly:
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[Court] [ think you’re right, and I think that the defense is on rotice. I think the

‘Order is very clear. 1 think it clearly has been violated 1 was really surprised 1o hear a

question posed of [Dr. Grover] regarding Ms. Rish when the Count sustained a previous
question regarding Ms. Rish of another witness and ruled that that was not relevant. Sol

was really surprised 1o hear that very samc questien posed as to Ms. Rish.

So 1 don't know. It does seem to be ar this point to be deliberate, Mr. Rogers.
And so, I'm inclined to agree that you're on notice. The Court will consider progressive
sanctions. I don’t know what they will be. | hope there won’t have to be any assessed.
But I dan't know what else to do io try to get you to comply with the Court's previous
Orders.

{RTP 3/25/1 1, pp. 166-67) (emphasis supplied),

7. Testimony of Defendant’s Expert Witness, Dr. David Fish

a) Voir Dire Examination Prior to Direct Examination

Defense expert Dr. Fish testified out of order during the Plaintiffs’ case-in-chief as an

accommodation by the Plaintiff to the Defendant and her expert. At request of the Plaintiffs’
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counsel immediately prior 1o Dr. Fish's testimony to the jury, this Court held a hearing outside
the presence of the jury to allow the Plaintliffs’ counsel to take Dr. Fish on voir dire 1o ensure he
was aware of the Court’s previous rulings (including an Order granting the Plaintiffs’ Motion in
Limine to Limit the Testimony of Dr. Fish). Dr. Fish's testimony outside the presence of the
jury comprises eighteen pages of the record (See, RTP March 24, 2011, pp. 12-30).

This questioning of Dr. Fish revealed that he was unaware of virtvally every pretrial
Order entered by this Courl, including the Order limiting his testimony. He was unaware of this
Court’s Order precluding:

1) Plaintiff’s unrelated 2003 motercycle accident;

2) Plaintiff’s unrelated 2008 molor vehicle accident,

3) Plaintiff’s vnrelated medical conditions;

4) Any suggestion of secondary gain, symptom magnification or malingering;

5) Sub rosa videc surveillance of Plaintiff (ruling deferred until the conclusion of

Plaintiff’s direct examination);

6) Dr. Fish’s testimony regarding biomechanical opinions related to the accident.

Of obvious concemn to this Court was the fact thal despite the voluminous pretrial
molions, the thorough and even repetitious hearings and arguments entertained by this Court on
the issues and the consistency of the enforcement of those rulings by this Court, the Defendant
had not properly prepared her expert witness. When Dr. Fish volunteered that he thought some
of the impediments to his testimony were “strange,” the Court responded:

[Court] You know what seems strange to me? That this wimess obviously
doesn’t have any idea what the Court has ruled prior to these motions in limine.

(RTP March 24, 2011, p. 24).

The Court unambiguously placed Dr. Fish and the Defendant on notice that violations of
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the Conrt’s pretrial Orders carried the possibility of sanctions, including striking the testimony of
Dr. Fish in its entirety (RTP March 24, 2011, p. 15).

b) Violation Durinpg Cross-Examination

Nevertheless, during cross-examination, Dr. Fish persisted in failing to respond to
pertinent questions from the Plaintiffs’ counsel and on more than one occasion responded to
questions by stating, inferring or insinuating that he was unfairly prohibited from answering the
questions based on this Court’s prior rulings (RTP March 24, 2011, p. 106, 133).

Despite the repeated and systematic violations of the pretrial Orders in this case and the
Court’s efforts to cure and prevent the same, Dr. Fish violated rulings on “‘minor impact” during
cross-examination.

When presented with contrary testimony on issues of medicine in prior depositions from
other cases, Dr. Fish responded by suggesting that the instant accidenl was nol a “significant
accident.” The Plaintiffs” oral Motion to Strike was Granted by this Court {RTP March 28,
2011, p.71-72).

¢) Violation During Redirect Examination

At the end of the Defendant’s redirect examination of Dr. Fish, counsel for the Defendant
in a conclusory fashion asked Dr. Fish (o summarize his opinions on causation.

[Defense Counsel] ...Doctor, how is it that you can reach an opinion to a medical
probability that this accident didn’t cause the pain that [the Plaintiff] complained of
following this accident?

[Dr. Fish] Well, it’s based on multiple factors. 1t’s based on the actual — looking
at the images of the MR1. It’s looking at the discogram and the results of the discogram.
It’s locking at the pattern of pain. It's looking at the notes that were taken of the events

that happened and it 's knowing about the accident irself.
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{RTP March 28, 2011, p.87) (Emphasis supplied).

Based on this Court’s observation of Dr. Fislh's testimony, there is no question that Dr.
Fish’s response, clearly in violation of this Court’'s Order, was deliberate. The Plaintiff’s
objection was sustained, and the jury was admonished to disregard the final statement in Dr.
Fish’s response.

D. Irrebuttable Presumption Instruction to the Jury
|, Plaintiffs' Request for a Special Instruction to the Jury

Following the testimony of Dr. Fish, the Court conducted a hearing outside the presence
of the jury at the request of counsel for the Plaintiffs to consider a progressive sanction against
the Defendant for the continuous and systematic violations of this Court’s Orders on pretrial
motions. The PlaintifT offered, as an alternative to stiiking Defendant’s Answer, a special
instruction to the jury directing them to presume that the accident in question was of a sufficienl
guality to have caused the injuries of which Plaintiff complained. The entire hearing on this
issue outside the jury’s presence comprises twenty-three (23) pages of transcript. which includes
a recess by the Courl to consider the appropriate language of an adverse inference instruction
(See, RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 89-112).

During the hearing, the Plaintiffs’ counsel correctly identified the factnal and procedural
history of the issue of a “minor impact” defense in this case (much of which is set forth above),
including the rulings on preirial motions, the numerous hearings outside the presence of the jury
on this issue, the repeated violations of this Court’s Order on “minor impact” and the records
made establishing notice to the Defendant of possible progressive sanctions for any further
violations {RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 89-93).

Counse! for the Plaintiffs then made a further record outlining the proper standard for

consideration by this Court under Young v. Ribeiro Building, inc., 106 Nev. 88 (1990).
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2. This Court's Consideration of the Younpg Factors

In Young, the Nevada Supreme Court reiterated that trial courts have inherent equitable
powers o issue sanctions for abusive litigation practices. /& at 92. Before issuing such
sanctions, a trial court should carefully consider the factors announced in Young, although no
single factor is necessarily dispositive and each of the non-exhaustive factors should be
examined in the light of the case before the trial court. /4. As outlined during the hearing by
cotnsel for the Plaintiffs, this Court considered the following factors set forth in Young before
addressing the language of the special instruction to the jury.'

a) Degree of willfulness of the violations

The violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders were continuous and systematic. As set
forth above, the Defendant was clearly on notice of the Court’s Order regarding this “minor
impact” defense yet the Defendant violated this particular Order on numerous occasions. Based
on the sheer number of violations of the same order in the same fashion. this Court can only

conciude that such violations were willful in nature.

b) The extent to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction

To date, no lesser sanction had been successful in precluding future violations. This
Court has consistently sustained the Plaintiffs’ objections and stricken offending questions and
answers. At some point, simply directing jurors to disregard continuous violatiens of pretrial
Orders is insufficient.

Counsel for the Plaintiffs indicated that the violations to this point were sufficiemt to

! In considering non-case concluding sanctions, 8 trinl court shall hold such hesring as il reasonably deems
necessary to consider matiers thal are pertinent to the imposition of appropriate sanctions Bohiena v
Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., 245 P.3d 1182, 1185 (Nev. 2010) This court heard extensive arguments from the
Plalotifls and the Defendant before granting the Plaintiffs' request for a progressive sanetion, While an
“express, careful and preferably wrilten” order is required by the Nevada Supreme Court for case
concluding sanctions only, Young, supra at 93; Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1048-49 (Nev, 2010), this
Court outlines herein its analysis of the Yowng [actors that supported the imposition of the nou-case
concluding sunction of 8n irrebutiable presumption instruction.
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warrant a requesl thai this Court impose a case eoncluding sanction of striking the Defendant’s
Answer, but that in hapmonizing this particular factor from Young it might be necessary for this
Court to consider a lesser sanction of a presumption instruction.

¢) The severity of a sanction of dismissal relative to the severity of the abuse

This Court considered, at the time of imposing the sanction of an irrebuttable
presumption instruction to the jury, whether the allernative request of striking Defendant’s
Answer would be an appropriate response to Defendant's continuous violations of this Court’s
pretrial Orders. While the abuse to this point was systematic and severe, this Court determined
that a progressive sanction would be appropriate before consideration of a case concluding
sanclion.

d) The feasibility end faimess of an alternalive, lesser sanction

Again, against the backdrop of the Plaintiffs’ altemative request to strike Defendant’s
Answer, this Court considered the feasibility and faimess of a lesser sanction and determined
that the irrebuttable presumption instruction requested by Plaintiff appropriately addressed the
nature of the violations of the Court’s Order precluding evidence to suppert a “minor impact”
defense.

An irrebuttable presumption is a presumption that cannot be avercome by any additional
evidence or argument. Employers Insurance Co. of Nevada v. Daniels, 122 Nev. 1009, 1015-16,
fn. 15 (2006), quoting Black's Law Dictionary 1223 (8™ ed. 2004). As this Court noted during
the sanction hearing, the Order granting the Motion in Limine was based on the Defendant’s
complete lack of evidence bearing on a “minor impact” defense:

[Court] But the point of the matter was that Defense had no witness who could

testify that this was a minor impact and no witness who could testify that this was a

minor impact that could not have caused the injuries to Plaintiff, that Plaintiff sustained.
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Defense simply didn’t have any witnesses to so testify. That’s why the motion in limine

was granted.

(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 104).

Given that the Defendant bad no admissible, credible evidence to offer to support this
“minor impact” defense, an irrebuttable presumption instruclion was appropriate to communicate
1o the jury what the Defendant failed to comprehend throughout the trial: namely, that there is no
evidence to suggest that the impact in this accident was too minor to cause the injuries the
Plaintiff claims to have suffered. An altemative adverse inference instruction or a rebutiable
presumption instruction would have given the Defendant exactly what was precluded in the
Order on the pretrial motions: namely, an opportunity to rebut the contention that the accident
was of sufficient character to have caused injury. Agsin, the Defendant had no evidence with

which tp rebut that contention.

¢) The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

Mindful of this policy, the Count declined at 1his point to grant the Plaintiffs’ request to

strike the Defendant’s Answer and instead issued the irrebuttable presumption instruction.

Given the Defendant's concession of responsibility for the accident, the “merits” of this
case for the trier of fact to adjudicate were limited to the amount of damages suffered as a result
of the accident, Since the Defendant had no evidence to support a contention that the nature of
the impact in the accident was relevant to the amount of damages, the issues for the trier of fact
were not materially affected by the irrebuttable presumption instruction.

f) Whether sanctions unfairly penalize a party for the misconduct of her altorney

In this Court’s view, the key to this factor from Young is whether the Defendant is
unfairly penalized for her attorney’s misconduct. However, the irrebuttable presumption

instruction imposed as a sanction by the Court did not unfairly penalize the Defendant. [t simply
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allowed the jury to irrebuttably presume the very fact that Defendant had no admissible evidence
to rebut — that the motor vehicle accident was sufficient in character and quality to have caused
the injuries suffered by the Plaintiff.

Additionally, as set forth below, it must be noted that the special instruction to the jury
still allowed them to consider whether the accident in question actually and proximately caused
Plamtiff’s injuries. The only presumption was that the accident was sufficient in character and
quality to have potentially done so. The only issue eliminated or restricted by the irrcbuttable
presumption instruction was the *minor impact” defense for which Defendant had no evidence 1o
support.

) The need to deter parties and future litigants

As set forth in great detail above, the sanctions employed by the Court 1o deter this
conduct had proven unsuccessful. Although this panticular faclor was not the overriding factor in
determining that the special instruction to the jury was warranted, this Court hoped that this

progressive sanction would at least deter the Defendant from continuing to violate the Orders of

‘this Court.

3. The lrrebuttable Presumption lnstruction

This Court took a recess 1o allow the Plaintiffs’ counsel to draft a proposed inslruction
and then heard argument from both sides regarding the exact language of the instruction. Afier
considering the proposed lanpguage and making somc amcndments thereto, as well as considering
the necessity of instructing the jury immediately as a curative measure, the Court read the
following instruction to the jury:

[Courl] Furthermore, ladies and gentiemen of the jury, the Defendant has, on

numerous occasions, attempted to introduce evidence thal the accidem of April 15, 2005,

was too minor 1o cause the injuries complained of. This type of evidence has previously
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been precluded by this Coun.

In view of that, this Court instructs the members of the jury that there is an
irrebutiable presumption that the motor vehicle accident of April 15, 2005, was sufficient
to cause the type of injuries sustained by the Plaintiff. Whether it proximately caused
those injuries remains a question for the jury to determine.

(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 113, 149-50).

Before making the discretionary ruling to issue that curative instruction to the jury, this
Court examined the relevant facts, applied a proper standard of law and used a demonstratively
rational process 1o reach a reasonable conclusion. See, Bass-Davis v. Davis, 122 Ney. 442, 447-
48 (2006).
E. Plaintifls’ Request to Strike Defendant’s Answer Based on Repeated Violations of This

Court’s Pretrial Orders

During the hearing on March 28, 2011, wherein this Court considered the above-quoted
special instrugtion in lieu of the Plaintiffs’ request to strike Defendant’'s Answer, counsel for the
Plaintiffs made clear that a further violation of this Court’s Orders would be met with the
Plaintiffs’ renewed request of the Courl to étrike the Defendant’s Answer (RTP March 28, 2011,
p- 97).

|. Cross-Examipation of Plaintiff, William Simag

During the Defendant’s cross-examination of Plaintiff WILLIAM SIMAQO, counsel asked
about circumstances surrounding the accident, including questions regarding the stop-and-go
nature of traffic on the freeway before the accident took place. The Plaintiffs objected, and a
bench conference ensued.

At the bench conference, the Plaintiffs asked for an offer of proof of what potential

relevance the speed of the vehicles would have, other than to suggest an inference that the
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impact of the collision was insufficient to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries (RTP March 28, 2011, pp.
92-95). Counsel for the Defendant failed 1o offer during the bench conference a sufficient
explanation of how the speed of the vehicles prior 10 the collision has a tendency 10 make the
existence of any fact of consequence more or less probable, see, NRS 48.015, other than to
suggest a minor impact {(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 94-96).
The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.
What then followed can only be described by this Court as an intentional attempt to
further violate this Court’s clear and unambiguous Order,
Regarding the post-accident response by law enforcement and medical personnel, counsel
for the Defendant asked the following questions of Mr., Simao:
[Defense Counsel] Now, we’ve heard several times through this trial that an
ambulance came 1o the scene.
[Mr. Simao] Yes.
[Defense Counsel] And that you declined treatment.
[Mr. Simao] 1 did.
[Defense Counsel] And the paramedics didn 't transport anyone from Mrs. Rish's
car?
(RTP Match 28, 20i1, p. 98) (Emphasis supplied).
An immediate objection was interposed by Plaintiffs’ counsel and a brief bench
conference was convened before this Court excused the jury and addressed the matter on the
1ecord outside their presence,

2. Plaintiffs Request 1o Strike Defendant’s Answer

During the hearing outside the jury’s presence, counsel for the Plainiiffs again made an

exhaustive record of al) of the occasions this Court had to direct and admonish Defendant not 10
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address *minor impact” issues as a result of this Court’s previgus Orders. A significant record
was made of the notice provided to the Defendants that not only was the conduct violative of this
Court’s Order, but further that ihe Plaintiffs would be asking the Court to strike the Defendant’s
Answer as a sanction therefore (RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 101-05).

The response from the Defendant was essentially that she should not be preciuded from
any discussion of the accident in question. Suech an argument, this Court noted, misses the point
and unfairly and incorrectly broadens the scope of the pretrial Order. An incorrect summary of
the Court’s Order that any and all discussion of the accident in question is precluded is vastly
different from questioning four separate witnesses as to whether anyone from the Defendant’s
vehicle was injured in the crash, On this issue, the Court’s prior pronouncements couid not have
been clearer.

While inclined to grant the Plaintiffs’ motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer at the
conclusion of the hearing outside the presence of the jury, this Court instead took the opportunity
to recess 10 again review the appropriate law, including the Nevada Supreme Courl's opinion In
Young v. Ribeiro Building, Inc., on the issue of case concluding sanctions for abusive litigation

practices and continuous violations of Orders of the Court.

3. This Court’s Consideration of the Law as Applied 19 the Facts of This Case

As set forth above, the Nevada Supreme Court in Young reiterated that trial courts have
inherent equitable powers to issue sanctions for abusive litigation practices, including case
concluding sanctions such as dismissal or the striking of pleadings. Young, supra at 92. Case
concluding sanctions are subject 1o a “somewhat heightened standard of review,” Id.; Foster v.
Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1048 (Nev. 2010), to determine if the sanctions are just and relate to
the claims at issue.

Before issuing such sanctions, a trial court should carefully consider the factors
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announced in Young, although no single factor is necessarily dispositive and each of the non-
exhaustive faclors should be examined in the light of the case before the trial court. Young,
supra at 92.  Additionally, case concluding sanctions shall be supported by an express, careful
and preferably written explanation of the trial court’s analysis of the Young factors. Jd at 93;
Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., 235 P.3d 592, 598 (Nev. 2010), rehearing denied. 245
P.3d 1182 (2010).

This Court carefully considered the plethora of violations of Court Orders before granting
the Plaintiffs’ request to strike the Defendant’s Answer. The hearing outside the presence of the
jury encompasses fifteen pages (15), which does not include the independent research and
analysis conducted by this Court during a lengthy recess in the proceedings. The Court’s
consideration of the Young factors, although similar in many respects to the consideration of the
same factors three days earlier at the time of the irrebutiable presumption sanction, includes the
following: |

a) Degree of willfulness of the violations

A violation of an Order an a motion in limine may serve as a basis for some type of
sanction if the Order is specific in its prohibition and the violation is clear. BMW v. Roth, 127
Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12, citing to Black v. Schultz, 530 F.3d 702, 706 (8" Cir. 2008). As set forth
previously, the violations of this Court’s clear and unambiguous Orders were continuous,
systematic and pervasive. Such violations include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Violation of Qrder precluding evidence of “medical build-up” during Opening

Statement;

ii. Violation of Order precluding evidence of “medical build-up” during the
testimony of Dr. Patrick McNulty;

iii. Violation of Order precluding evidence of unrelated accidents during Opening
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Statement;

iv. Vielation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during Opening Statement;

v. Violation of Crder precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jorg Rosler (question regarding injuries to the
Defendant or her passengers);

vi. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in supporl of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Patrick McNulty (guestion reparding injuries 1o
Defendant or her passengers);

vil. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jaswinder Grover (question regarding injuries 1o
Defendant or her passengers);

viii. Defendant's abject failure to apprise defense expert Dr. David Fish of
court’s rulings on all motions in limine;

ix. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. David Fish (question and answer regarding the
nature of the accident);

X. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Plaintiff William Simao (question regarding injuries
to the Defendant or her passengers);

These violations of the Court’s Order precluding the “minor impact™ defense are

considered by this Counl to be even more egregious given the numerous hearings outside the
presence of the jury wherein this Court repeatedly and unequivocally prohibited the areas of

inquiry subsequently broached by counsel for Defendant. Those hearings include:
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i. Hearing on the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine, March 1, 2011;

ii. Hearing outside the presence of jury to discuss “minor impact,” March 18,
2011,

iii. Hearing outside the presence of jury to discuss whether the Plaintiffs opened
the door to “minor impact” defense doring Opening Statement, March 21, 2011;

1v. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. Rosler
regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 22,201 1;

v. Objection sustained 1o counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. McNulty
regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25, 2011;

vi. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. Grover
regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25, 2011;

vii. Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact” defense
and the Plaintiffs’ notice of seeking progressive sanctions, March 25, 2011;

viil. Objeclion sustained to counsel for the Defendant's question of Dr. Fish
which resulted in response citing to the nature of the impact, March 28, 2011

ix. Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact” defense
and the Plaintiffs’ request for irrebuttable presumption instruction for the Defendant's
continued violations of Court’s Order, March 28, 2011;

x. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Plaintiff
William Simao regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 31,
2011,

At the hearing on the Plaintiffs® oral motion to strike the Defendant’s Answet, this Courl

characterized the continuing violations as having been “willfull, deliberate, [and] abusive,” (RTP

March 31, 2011, pp. 111-12), based on the fact that counsel for Defendant “refuses to comply

28

004513

004513




Y1500

MAINOR EGLET

L= TR - - N - T L T S VY o R

N OB} = e = = me e e e el e
B N R R RBISYE 2 2 2 3 3 a5 0 0 = 2

004514

with this Court’s rulings” (RTP March 31, 2011, p. 112). Paricularly disturbing was counsel
for Defendant’s systematic insistence upon asking the Plaintiff and three separate treating
dactors whether they were aware of any injuries to passengers in the Defendant’s vehicle, despite
this Court’s clear preclusion of that inquiry afier each instance of misconduct,

b) The exient to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction

As se1 forth previously, the imposition of lesser sanctions did not act to curb the
Defendant’s violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders. An attorney’s violation of an Order on a
motion in limine is misconduct which justifies evidentiary sanctions or even a new trial. See,
BMW v. Rath, 127 Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12; Lioce v. Cohen, 124 Nev. 1 (2008). Although Nevada
precedent does not fotlow the federal model of requiring progressive sanctions before imposing a
case concluding sanction, see, Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber, supra, 245 P.3d at 1184-85.
this Court nevertheless imposed progressive sanctions against the Defendant including the
irrebuttable presumption instruction to no avail. Nothing this Court could fashion, short of a
case concluding sanction, was sdccessful 10 halt violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders.

Given the frequency of the Defendant’s violations of this Court’s Order precluding a
“minor impact” defense, all of which occurred in front of the jury, the Plaintiffs were prejudiced
by having this issue repeatedly brought to the jury’s aitention. In the eyes of the jury, the
Plaintiffs were repeatedly preventing the jury from hearing about the significance of the impact,
when in fact this Court had determined that a “minor impact” defense was unavailable to the
Defendants given the lack of evidence (and expert testimony) to support such a defense. In
reliance upon this Court’s Order granting the Plaintiffs® Motion in Limine, the Plaintiffs had
released their biomechanical expert and had neither mentioned his name nor offered his opinions
in Opening Statement. The Plaintiffs had relied on this Court’s Order that no “minor impact”

defense would be presented to the jury. The Plaintiffs had further relied on the fact that such a
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ruling would be upheld by this Court during the course of trial. The unfair prejudice 1o the
Plaintiffs was clearly shown. See, Roth, supra.

This Court also recognizes the prejudice to the Plaintiffs in making objection after
abjection to the Defendant’s inappropriate questions. “[When...an attorney must continvously
object to repeated or persistent misconduct, the non-offending atiomey is placed in the difficult
position of having to make repeated objections before the trier of fact, which might cast a
negative impression on the attorney and the party the attorney represents, emphasizing the
improper point.” Lioce v. Cohen, 174 P3d 970, 981 (Nev. 2008).

As such, it is the finding of this Court that the Plaintiffs would be unfairly prejudiced by
the continuous intraduction of questions, evidence and argument designed to create an inference

that the subject motor vehicle accident was too minor to cause the Plaintiff's injuries.

¢) The severily of a sanction of striking Defendant’s Answer relative to the severity of

the abuse

Again, the pervasive and continuous nature of these violations warranis the sanction
ultimately imposed. Every litigant has the right to disagree with any ruling made or Qrder
entered by a trial court. His remedy is with an appellate court, based upon reasonable grounds as
the law requires. His remedy is never 10 just continue violating the Orders unchecked.

d) The feasibility and fairness of an allernative, lesser sanction

As sei forth above, alternative lesser sanctions were apparently rejected by the Defendant
in favor of continuing to violate the Orders of the Court. When the Plaintiffs first asked this
Court to strike the Defendant’s Answer on March 28, 2011, the Court considered this factor from
the Young decision to impose an alternative sanction of an irrebuttable presumption instruction.

As this Count indicated at the hearing on the Plaintiffs’ second oral request to the strike

Defendant’s Answer:
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[Court] Regarding the feasibility and fairness of an alternative, lesser sanction,
you know, the only thing 1 can say is less severe sanctions were imposed 10 no avail,

(RPT March 31,2011, p. 113).

This analysis is balslered by the fact that the Plaintiffs requested that the Court strike the
Defendant’s Answer three days earlier and put the Defendant on notice that they would seek to
strike the Defendant’s Answer should any future violations oceur.

) The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

As set forth above, this C oun\\c)pled for less severe sanctions for all of the violations prior
to March 31, 2011, in large measure because of the policy favoring adjudication on the merits.
Even the irrebutiable presumption instruction given as a lesser, alternative sanction did not
prevent the Defendant from presenting eny defense that they actually had evidence 1o present. It
is also worth noting that the Defendant had already agreed on the record not 1o challenge liability
for the accident.

Further, this Court recopnizes that the Nevada Supreme Court has upheld the striking of
pleadings for a party's failure to atiend his deposition, Foster v. Dingwall, supra; for repetitive,
abusive and recalcitrant conduct during discovery, Young, supra; Hamlett v. Reynolds, 114 Nev.
863 {1998) (upholding the trial court’s strike order where the defaulting party’s constant failure
to fallow the court’s orders was unexplained and unwarranted); for a party’s continued failure to
appear at scheduled court proceedings, Durango Fire Protection, Inc. v. Troncoso, 120 Nev, 658,
662 (2004); and for the failure to abide by rulings of the Discovery Commissioner, Bahena v.
Goodyear Tire & Rubber, supra. Additionally, the Nevada Supreme Court has approved
consideration of the Young factors as a guide to trial courts for sanctions grounded in violations
of court orders at trial. See, Romo v. Keplinger, 115 Nev. 94, 97 (1999).

The willful and deliberate violations of this Court’s Qrders are equally as egregious as
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any discovery violation, especially given the fact that the repeated violations in the instant case
occurred in front of the jury.

f) The need to deter parties and future litigants

Given its inherent powers derived from the Nevada Constitution and sirong case
precedent, this Court simply cannot allow litigants to openly and deliberately abuse the litigation
process by disregarding Orders of the Court when convenient or tactically advantageous to do so.
especially when unfair prejudice 1o the non-offending party results. Such an allowance would
render courts of justice meaningless in the State of Nevada.

in the final analysis, after review and consideration of all of the various faclors
announced in Young, it is the determination of this Court that the intemional, deliberate, abusive
and unfairly prejudicial conduct of the Defendant in repeatedly violating clear Orders of this
Count warrants the ultimate sanction of stnking the Defendant’s Answer.

It is immaterial whether, as the Plaintiffs suggested several times during the trial, it was
the true intention of the Defendant 10 force or goad the Plaintiffs to seek a mistrial. What is
material is that thc deliberate conduct of counsel for the Defendant in disregarding and violating
Couri Orders could not be halted by this Court with any other sanction.

Neither sustained objections, a multitude of hearings outside the presence of the jury, nor
progressive sanctions deterred the Defendant’s ignorance of Orders of this Court.

Having carefully and thoughtfully considered the available remedies, it is the decision of
this Court, for all of the reasons set forth above, that siriking the Defendant’s Answer is
appropriate under the particular circumstances presented herein.

11. Plaintiffs’ Request for a Prove-Up Hearing to Establish Damages
By the time of the last violation of this Couri's Orders by the Defendant, most of the

Plaintiffs’ evidence had been presented to the Court over the first ten (10) days of testimony.
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Counsel for the Plaintiffs requested a hearing the fellowing day for essentially a prove-up
hearing similar to the entry of a default judgment under NRCP 55b.

Counsel for the Defendant then reguested the ability 10 be heard at the argument on
damages, pursuant to Hamlett v. Reynolds, 114 Nev. 863 (1998). In Homlei, ihe Nevada
Supreme Court struck Hamlett’s Answer as a sanction for his continued failure to comply with
discovery orders pursuanl to Young v. Ribeiro Building, supra. Hamlett claimed the trial court
erred in restricting his participation in the prove-up hearing to cross-examining Reynolds'
witnesses. In analyzing this issue under NRCP 55(b)(2), the Court stated:

The language of NRCP 55(b)2) that the “court may conduci such hearings or
order such references as it deems necessary and proper” suggests (o us an intent to give
trial courts broad discretion in determining how prove-up hearings should be conducted.
Thus, we conclude that the extent to which a defaulting party will participate in prove-up
is a decision properly delegated to the trial courts. The trial courts should make this
determination on a case-by-case basis and not according to static rules implemented by
this court.

In deciding the extent to which a defaulted party will be permitted to participate in
prove-up, if at all, trial counts should remember that the purpose of conducting a hearing
after default, according 10 NRCP 55(b){2), is 10 determine the amount of damages and
establish the truth of any averment. To that end, trial courts should determine the extent
10 which full participation by the defaulted party will facilitate the truth-seeking process.

Hamlett, supra at 866-67.

In Foster v. Dingwall, supra, the Nevada Supreme Court clearly stated the standard for
proving up damages afier a default is entered as a sanction. During the prove-up hearing, this
Court shall consider the allegations deemed admitted by the fact of the default to determine if the
PlaintifT has established a prima facie case for liability. Foster, supra, 227 P.3d at 1049-50, A
prima facie case is defined as sufficiency of evidence in order to send the question to the jury.
Id. at 1050. In the instant case, Defendant Rish admitted responsibility for the accident and

stipulated to liability. What was left was a determination of the Plaintiffs’ damages, and the

Plaintiffs requested that this Cournl take notice of the evidence that had been presented in the
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preceding ten (10) days of testimony. Even though allegations in the pleadings are deemed
admitted as a result of the entry of default, the admission does not relieve the non-offending
party’s obligation to present substantial evidence of the amount of damages suffered by both of

the Plaintiffs. 7/d. Having reviewed the evidence and concluding that a prima facie case had

" been established by both Plaimiffs, this Court determined that the Plaintiffs are entitled to

damages for the harms proximately caused by the motor vehicle accident.

In determining the level of participation of the Defendant in the prove-up hearing, this
Court was mindful of the Nevada Supreme Court's pronouncement in Foster and Young that
because the default was entered as a result of the Defendant's abusive litigation practices, the
Defendant “forfeited his right to object to all but the most patent and fundamental defecis” in the
prove-up. Fosier, supra at 1050; Young, supra at 95.

Nevertheless, in an exercise of discretion authorized by Humlett, this Count determined
that the Defendant would be aliowed to address the Plaintiffs’ brief final argurment on damages
in an argument of her own, (o be followed by a brief rebuttal argument on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

Based on all of the foregoing, THIS COURT HEREBY ORDERS that Plaintiffs™ oral
Motion to Strike Defendant’s Answer is GRANTED.

This matter stands submitted following the arpuments of counsel and the prove-up
hearing of Apri} 1, 2011, pending further Order of this Court.

DATED this __2)¥day of April, 2011,

W

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar Ne. 2805

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 839101

CT COURT JUDGE
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Eleclronicelly Filed
04/28/2011 01:45:32 PM

i 4 i

CLERK OF THE COURT

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ; and CASE NO.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAD, DEPT.NO.: X
Plaintiffs,
v,
JUDGMENT
JENNY RISH,
Defendamt.

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgmem having come before the Court on April 1.

201t. 1T 1S ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment is hereby entered in

{avor of Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenmy Rish as follows:
William Simao’s past medical and related expenses
William Simao’s pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Future pain and suffering
- Loss of Enjoyment of Life
Chery! Simao’s loss of consortium (Society and Relationship)
Antorneys’ fees
Litigation costs

TOTAL

$19Y . 330-

$41%, oYo.
sLM0, 552,
5_quS.iL9.
$_bg) . 2%0.
$.TBD
$_949.555. 1
$3,413,98%.113
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23
23
25
16

28

JT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Judgment against Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance with N.R.S. 17.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64 (2005).

Dated this _2 1%8ay of April, 2011.

tae Nadah

DI CT COURT JUDGE
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 3402

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2805 ‘ Electronically Filed
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ. 05/03/2011 07:43:26 AM
Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET m g o
400 Scuth Fourth Street, Suite 600 i
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 CLERK OF THE COURT

Ph.: (702) 450-5400
Fx.: (702) 450-5451

reglei@mainoriawyers.com

dwall@mainorlawyers.com

badams@mainorlawyers.com
Attormeys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WILLIAM JAY SIMAQO. individually and CASE NO.. A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually. and | DEPT. NO.. X
as husband and wife,
Plaimiffs,

Y.

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA
RISH;: DOES 1 through V: and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Judgment, was entered with the above entitied
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Court on the 28" day of April, 2011, a copy of which is attached hereto.

DATED this 2™ day of May, 2011.

/

5 By:[ —— . 4

all -,
/ ROBERT T. EGLET,ESQ.
¢ Nevada Bar No. 3402
[ DAVIDT. WALL, ESQ.
L Nevada Bar No. 2805
" ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attormeys for Plaintiffs
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12
13
1
15
16
17
18
19
20
2]

23
24
25
26
27
28

| Sodida Wb

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing file stamped NOTICE OF ENTRY OF

JUDGMENT in the matter of SIMAOQ v. RISH, et 8 is hereby acknowledged:

7

Date:gf 2/ Time: 214

phen H. Rogers; Esq.

200 S. Fourth Street, #710
i.as Vegas, NV 89]01
Attorneys for Defendants

! ROGERS, MASTRANGEL'(_))
CARVALHO & MITCHELL, LTD,

Danie] F. Polsenberg, Esqg.
Jow] D, Henriod, Esq.
LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP.

L as Vepas, Nevada 8929
Attyrneys for Defendants

Date: 5‘& l it Time: 5.3 g,

3933 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAOQ; and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO,

DEPT.NO.: X
Plaintiffs,

Y.

MENT

JENNY RISH,

Defendant.

Eleclronically Filed
04/28/2011 01.45:32 PM

A dossn

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO.: A539455

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on April 1.

2011, IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment is hereby entered in

favor of Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as foliows:
William Simao’s past medica) and related expenses
William Simao's pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Foture pain and sufferinp
. Loss of Enjoymem of Life
Chery} Simao's loss of consortium (Society and Relationship)
Attorneys’ fees
Litigation costs

TOTAL

$194 390, W

$4YA, Yo,

51, I'-JQ’SSZ.
§ quS,19.

5 V. 2%0.
$_TRD

5 99.,555.1
$3,493,983.41%
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IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Judgmeni rgainst Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance with N.R.S. §7.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.34 64 (2005).

Dated this _217%ay of April, 2011.

DI CT COURT JUDG

= ————— s e . — A
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TJORIGINAL

JUDG
ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ,

2 Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
3 Nevada Bar No. 2805
4 ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Mevada Bar No. 6551
5 MAINOR EGLET
400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
6 1 1as Vegas, Nevada 89101
7 1 Ph.:(702) 450-5400
Fx.: (702) 450-5451
8 ] reglet@dmainor]awyers.com
9 dwall@mainorlawyers.com
badams@mainorlawyers.com
10 [ Attorneys for Plaintiffs
It DISTRICT COURT
12 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
13
41 WILLIAM JAY SIMAO. individually and | CASENO.: AS539455
15 [ CHERYL ANN SIMAQ. individualty.andas | DEPT.NO.: X
I husband and wife,
16 |
17 Plaintiffs.
18fF v
19§ JENNY RISH: JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH:
oo POES 1 through V: and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through V, inclusive,
AR
2 Defendants.
23
24
25 JUDGMENT
26 WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on Aprit 1, 2011,
217
28 -

Elecironically Filed

06/01/2011 09:26:39 AM

A b
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IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment was hereby entered in favor of]
Plainti{fs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:’

1T 1S ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff, WILLIAM SIMAO, have and recover of]
the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the following sums:

PAST DAMAGES:

Past Medical and Related Expenses $ 194,390.96

Past Pain, Sufforing, Disability $ 1,378.209.00

and Loss of Enjoyment of Life
Total Past Damages: $1,572,599.96

FUTURE DAMAGES:

Future Pain, Suffering, Disability $1.140,552.00

and Loss of Enjoyment of Life |
”[:ntal .Future Damages: % 1,140,552.00 § |

TOTAL DAMAGES: | $ 2.713,151.96 ér

ITIS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaimiiff, CHERYL SIMAO. have and recover

of the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the following sums:

PAST DAMAGES:

Loss of Cons;)rtium: $ 681.286.00
Total Past Damages: $ 681,266.00

TOTAL DAMAGES: $ 681,286.00

IT WAS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs be awarded and entiiled to costs in the

amount of $99,555.49,

"Exhibit | - Judgment

004531



¢€Sr00

MAINOR EGLET

C O O90 =2 o R W kR

— e e e

19

004532

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiffs’ past darnages in the amount
of Two Million Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-Five and 96/100 Dollars
($2,253,885.96), shall bear pre-judgment interest in accordance with Lee v. Bail, 116 P.3d 64, (2005)
at the rate of 5.25% per annum? from the date of service of the Summons and Complaint, on July 23.
2007 through May 18, 2011 as follows:*

PRE-JUDGMENT INTEREST:

07/23/07 THROUGH 05/18/11 = $ 452,231.10
(1395 days x $324.18 per day)

NOW, THEREFORE, Judgment in favor of Plaintiffs, WILLIAM SIMAC and CHERYL
SIMAO, is hereby given for Three Million Nine Hundred Forty Six Theusand Two Hundred Twenty-
Four and 55/100 Dollars ($3,946,224.55) against Defendant which shall bear post-judgment interest
at the current rate of 5.25% or $567.60 per day. until satisfied.

R A
DATED this __2l day of May, 2011.

Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

ADU Scuth Fourth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

¥ Exhibit Lee v. Ball
3 Exhibit Affidavit of Service
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
WILLIAM JAY SIMAOD; and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, DEPT.NO.: X
Plaintiffs,
JUDGMENT
JENNY RISH,

Defendant.

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgmeni having come before the Court on April 1.

2011. IT1S ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment is hereby entered in

favor of Plainiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:
William Simao's past medical and related expenses
William Simao's pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Future pain and suffenng
- Loss of Enjoymeni of Lile
Cheryl Simao’s Joss of consortium {Society and Relationship)
Attorneys’ fees
Litigation cosis

~ TOTAL

CASENO.: A539455

$194, 310.

s4N%, oY,
5|,Hg,5'5‘2.
$_q05,1¢4.

$ b 2%,

S TSD
5_99,555. 19
$3,443,98%.15
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1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Judgment against Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance with N.R.S. 17.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64 (2005).

Dated this _2/]™day of April, 2011,
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@ LexisNexis:

4 of 8 DOCUMENTS

BARRY J. LEE, Appeliant, vs. CHRISTOPHER G. BALL, Respondent.

Na. 41686

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

121 Nev, 391; 126 P20 64; 2003 Nev. LEXIS 435 121 Nev. Ady. Rep, 38

July 28, 2008, Decided

PRIOR HISTORY:  [***1] Appeel from a disiricl
court judgment granting edditur and denying shamezy
fees mw cosa. Eiphth Sudiclal Disuiet Coun, Clark
County; Stewart L, Bel), Judge.

DISPOSITION: Reversed and ramanded.

COUNSEL: Ronald M. Pehr, La3 Yegas, for Appeliani.

Piszza & Associples and Carl F. Piezza and David H.
Pumey, Les Veges, for Respondent,

JUDGES: BEFORE MAUPIN, DOUGLAS and PAR.
RAGUIRRE, 1), DOUGLAS and PARRAGUIRRE, 1).,
cOncw.

OPINION BY: MAUPIN
OPINION

[*393] [**85) OPIMION
By the Coun, MAUPIN, ).:

In this appesl, we clarify that » distric! court's grant
of sdditur is only wppropriale when presented to the de.
fendont as a0 allemative 10 » new trial an damages.

FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The litigation below arase from e car eccidend in
which the passenger In a vehicle, reapondzni Christopher
8all, sustained injuries afler the drives, appellam Barvy
Lee, negligently wmed into oncoming wreffic. Ball sued
Lee, alleging genersl and apecial dsmages. Unhappy
with the resuls of court-annexed srphirotion, Lee te-
quesied 8 trixl de novo. Before trial, Lee served Bal) with
an offer of judgment for 5§ B,011.46. After [**66] aiwo-

day triel, Ihe jury swarded Ball § 1,300. Les subse-
quently moved lor costs apd anomey fees becsuse
[***2) Ball feiled 1o 1ecovey an amoum in excess of the
offer of judgment. Ball oppozed this motion, requesting &
new isl of, in the pliemative, edditur. Afler an untran-
scribed hearing, the diswict count granted an § 3,200 ad-
ditur and awarded Ball prejudgment inteyest but did not
offer Lee the option of & new trial, The distriet court fug-
ther calcutared prejudgment intercst using o pro-raia
{ormvate based on the differing statutory rates of interest
in effecs before the eniry of fingl judgment. Lee appeals,
arguing that the district coun erred by granting an addi.
tur, feiling o offer a new Ivial, and erroncously caleuim-
ng prejudgment inlevesl. As a resoRt, Lee argues he is
entitled 10 sitoney fees and costs,

DISCUSSION

Additur

Under Drummond v. Mid-Wesi Growers, ' Nevada
courts have the power 1o condilion an order for 2 new
rrial on sccepiance of an additur. * In line with Drwm-
mond, our wbsequent decisions have cosllrmed |*394)
¢ “twoprong, test for additur: (1) whether the damages
sre clearly inadequale, and {2) whather the case would be
8 proper one for granting a motion for a new trial limited
10 dampges.” * If both prongs are mey, then the disorict
<ourt haa [***)] discretion Io grant o new irie), unless
the defendami consents lo the courl’s odditur. ¢ The dis-
irict court bas brord discrelion in determining motions
for additur, and we will not distorb the court's determning-
tion utiless thet discretion has been ehused. * However,
granting eddltur in (v absence of » demonsirable ground
for a new triel is on sbuse of discretion,

I 91 Nev. 698, 708-11, 542 P.2d 198, 205-G8
{1973).
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i25 Nev, J91, *; 116 P.3d &4, **;
2005 Nev. LEXIS 43, ***; 121 Nev, Adv. Rep. 28

2 /d m 708, 322 P.24 oy 205.

3 Evam v. Dean Wiiter Reynolds, Inc., 116 Necv.
393, 816, 5 P.3d 1043, 1034 {2000} (ching
Drinmond, 91 Nev. a1 705, 542 P.2d st 203).

4 Drummond,§1 Nev. et 712, 542 P.2d wt 208,

5 Donoldson v. Andersan, 109 Nev. 1015, 1041,
852 P.2d 1204, 1206 {1993).

We conclude that Lee has failed to demonstrate that
the district coun abused s diseretion in delermining thm
additur was warranted. Firsl, lhs hearing during which
the district count [***4} orally granted additur was not
reported, the panles have no) provided » trial transeript
in the record on appesl, ond the partics have nol other-
wise favored us with 1he disuict court's oral explanstion
for granting Bal) suth relief. * Second, becamse the sword
was subsiantislly fess than the conceded proofs of special
damages, there is at leasl some indication thal the jury
awand wes “elearly inadequate™ in viobution of the diswrict
cout’s inaiructions. Although tha jury, ssting reasonnbly,
could have disbelieved Dall's cvidence zonceming sk
leged pain and suffering and reasonably infared thay he
was not injured as severely a3 clsimed, ' and aithoogh the
jury was not bound w assign any paricular probative
value to ey evidence presented, * W i3 incumbent upon
Lee 1o demonsirste thal the sddijur, in and of jtsell, con-
stilues on abuse of discreiion. * He has failed 1o do 5o,

6 See Siover v. Lo Vegas Int't Courtiry Club, 93
Nev, 66, 68, 589 P.2d &71, 872 (1979) (sming
“when evidenice on which & districl cour's judg-
ment rens is hot properly ineluded in the record
on appeal, il is assumed that the record supponts
the lower court's Nndings")y We further note thnl
the district courr's written order granting sdditur
is silent 88 10 the reasona for this sward,

I.us}
7 Ser Quintero v. MceDonald, 116 Nev. 1183,
1184, 14 P3d 522, 524 (2000).
8 id
9 See Wolloce v. Haddack, 17 Conn. App. 6,
325 A.Md 148, 151-52 {Conn, App. Ct. 2003) (de-
clining to upset sn award of ndditur when the =p-
pellant failed 1o provide Iranscripts and "failed to
seck any further aricolation of the court’s vcason-
Ing for granting the mofion for an sdditur”).

We conchide, however, that the district count
abwsed s discretion In failing to offer Lec the option of
b new 1riaf or acceplance of the additur. We clerify tha,
undet Drummond, additur may not [*395) stmd nlone
a3 3 discrete remedy; rather, it is only appropriate [**67)
when presented to the defendant 33 an alicrative to »
new irisl ony damages. '

10 S#r Drummomd, 91 Nev. at 712, 592 P.Jd o
208; see piso Donoldson, 109 Nev. a1 1043, 862
P.2d m 1207 (veversing n disiricl court order and
remending wilh instructions 1o granl s new trish
limlted ta dameges, unless the defendam egresd
10 additur); 17T Horglord Ins, Co. of the S.E v.
Oweny, 316 So. 2d 572, $75-76 (Fla. 2002) (hold-
bng the relevamt Florids siatute requires o trial
court o give the defendant the opiion of 8 new
trial when additur is granled);, Wolloce, 825 A 2d
ul 153 (finding the relevanm Connecticut sinute
requires parties have the option of accepting sddi-
tur or receive 3 new triz) on the issue of dam-
ugesy; Aunlo v, Morguth Agency, Inc, 437
N.W.24 45, 50 (Minn. 1989) (*|A] new iriof may
be granted for excessive or Inadequate demuges
and mede condilions? upen the pany ogninst
whom the motion is dlrecied consenting o a re-
duction or an increase of the verdict. Consent of
the non-moving parly continues Lo be required.”);
Tucel v, Moore, 875 5.W 2d 115, 114 (Mo. 1994)
("Additur requires thal the party opainst whom
the new 1rin) wourld be granted have, instead, she
optlen of apreeing 1o additur."); Befonger by
Belanger v. Teague, 126 N.H. 110,490 A 2d 772,
772 (M.H. 1985) (mem.} (holding *a jury verdict
supplemenied with ant addltur may go 10 judg-
men) only il the defendant waives & new irial™)y,

[***6) Prajudgment interesi

Lee ergucs that the disirict coun erred in colculating
both the rale and period of prejudgment interest. We
agree and conclude thal the districl coun's caleulation
was ploinly eroneous. ¥

11 See Drudiey v. Romeo, 102 Nev. 103, 105,
716 P23 227, 228 (1986) ("The abilicy of this
coun 10 consider relgvant jxsues 5o spnie in or-
der ta prevent plain eror is well estoblished,
Such Is the case where a stalule which Is clearly
sontrolling was nol applied by the bisl coun,”
{cilmion omitied)).

Under NRS 17.530(2), * 2 judgmenl sccrues inter-
esl [rom the date of the service of Lhe summons and
camplaint until the date the judpment is satisfied. Unless
provided or by contract or otherwise by law, the apphi-
cable sute for prejudpment intorest is suwtorily deter-
mined. ¥ In determining what rolc applies, NRS
17.130(2) [*396) Instrucis couns so use the base prime
mte percenizge “33 gscertained by the Commissioner
[***7] of Firancial Instiwtions on Janvary 1 ar Juiy I,
us the case may be, immedisiely preceding the dste of
Jjudgment, plus 2 percent.”
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121 Nev. 391, ", 116 P.2d 64, **;
2005 Nev. LEX)S 41, **4; 121 Nev. Adv. Rep. 38

12 NRS 17.130{2) provides:

When np raie of interest is pro-
vided by contract or otherwise by
Taw, or speelfied in the judpnen,
the judgment draws interext from
the time of service of the sum-
mons and complalnt untif sstiyfied,
excepd fer eny Arnoust represend-
ing fature dumages, which draws
interest only from the time of the
entry of (he judpment until amis-
fied, at a rale equal 1o the prime
e 8t tie largest bonk in Nevede
w ascertsined by the Commis-
sioner of Financial !nstitutions on
Juary ) or Suly ], as the case
may be, immedistely preceding
the date of judgment, phis 2 per-
sent, The rate must be adjusted ze.
cordingly o each January 3 ang
July 1 thereofler unti) the judg-
ment is setisfizd.

13 NRS5 17.130(2); see also Gibellini v. Klindk,
{10 Nev. 1201, 1208, BG6S P.2d 140, 544-45
(1994} (holding thut Lhe “or specified in the

judament” languege does nol permis p judge to
vary an interest rate vutside of the slatuiory rate),

[***3] The distrler court ealculuted the rate of pre-
Jndgment fnterest using periadic hiannua! legst mies af
interest in effect berween May 27, 1999, and Mareh 24,
2003. This wes ervor. Uinder the plain Jangusge of NRS
12.330{2), the districs court should have calculaied pre-
Jjudgment interesi at 1he single rate in effect on the date
of judgmenl.

The district court further determined thay prejudg-
ment interest excrued from May 27, 1999, 10 Merch 24,
2003. NRS 17.130(2) explicitly provides that “the judg-
men draves interest from The time of service of the sum-
mons end complaint uniil satisfied.* Ball compleed ser-
vice of pracess on hune 9, 1999, and the disirict count
critered finel judpment on March 29, 2003. Therefore,
prejudgment inlerest accroed beginning June 2, 1999, noy
May 17, 1939. Accordingly, the district count also erred
in calculnting the period prejudgment interest accrued.

CONCLUSION

We hold that the district count erred in granting Bn
additur withour providing Lee the option of sccepling the
sdditur or o new trisl on demages and In calculating pre-
Judgmen ineres). Accordingly, we reverse the disiries
sourt's judgment and {***9) remand this |**68) marter
for procecdings coasistent with this apinion,

DOUGLAS and PARRAQUIRRE, ))., concur,

UU453Y
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- B COTTEELG e vviwgeggdtoo - L SRR ‘
District Court
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA e £25

'

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES 1 through V; end ROE CORPORATIONS
1through V, inclusive,

e 1y
WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individuslly,and ) Uiz g Pl gy
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually, ) .
and as husbhand and wife, ) { ‘ i ¢ L‘
) e
) SUMMONS
PlaintilTs, )
) CASE NO,
i ; Dept. NO. A539%455
3 .
)
)
)
)

Defepdants.

NOTICE! YOU HAVE BEEN SUED. THE COURT MAY DECIDE AGAINST YOU WITHOUT YOUR BEING

HEARD UNLESS YOU RESPOND WITHIN 20 DAYS. READ THE INFORMATION BELOW.

TO THE DEFENDANT. A Clvil Complaint has been filed by the plaintilY against you for the rellef set forth in the
Complaint.
JENNY RISH
223 NORTH COTTONWOOD DRIVE
GILBERT, ARIZONA 85234

IR If you iniend to defend this lawsnit, within 20 days afier this Summons is served on you exclusive of the
day of service, you must do the following:

8. File wilh the Clesk of this Court, whose eddress is shown below, 8 formal writien response 1o the
Compleint in sccordance with the rules of the Coun.

b. Serve a copy of your response upon the attomey whose name end address is shown below

y Unjess you respond, your default will be entered upon applicatian of the plaintiff and this Count may enter
& judgment npaintt you for the reliel demanded in the Complaint, which could result in the wking of money or property of
other reljef requested jn the Comphaint.

3 1f you intend to seek the advice of an anomey in this matter, you .-;huuld do so promptly so that your
teaponse may be filed on time.
Issued at the direction of:
AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD, CHARLES ). SHORT, CLERK OF COURT

r gﬂ] ! ' APR 13 1007
By: ’ By:
P

Maithew E. Anron, Esq. Deputy Clerk

Mavadn Bar No. 4500 4 Cormg Courthouse A BOGGESS
AARON & PATERNOSTER 200 South Third Streer

2300 West Sahara, Suite 650 Las Vegas, NV 891558

Attomeys for PlaintifTs
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CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT COURT
In And For The County Of Maricopa, State.Of Arizona
:;I:.;I:M JAY SIMAO AND CHERYL ANN i BT A 5 3 9 4 55
. 5}, R PLAIN I
10[ oy

-l
-l

| [ Deciaration OF Service |
JENN RISH, JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH — _

Defandant{s), in Propria Persona

- =k
w ~

-
Y

-
L=,

}, TYLER TREECE, being quefified under ARCP, 4{d) ard 4{e), io ssrve logal process within the State of l
18 Arizona and having been 30 appolnted by Maricopa Coundy Superior Courl, did raceive on July 12, 2007 from 1
‘1 THE PLAINTIFF, Atlorney For Tha Plainiifi, the loflowing Courl Issued documents:

vi|  sussmons AND coMPLAINT

. ]
} ey : sl = 5
% JENNY RISH BY LEAVIN COPIES mmnm muam AME VILLA AN OGCCUPANT OF !
20 SUITABLE AGE AND DISCRETION WHO RESIDES THEREIN. i
A Description of Person Served: M F 3040 5% 160 BRN i.
22 Raco Sax D08 or Approx Ape Halph} Weight Hatr Eyas |
21 pocuments Were Served At The 223 N COTTONWOOD DR :
24|]] Place Of at the place of abode GILBERY, AZ 85234 4
Localsd at.
| === — - = - ———
28 — SECURED
| datisre undar penally of perjury th
27 the foregoing Is true and correct s
8 was sxectied on this dete,
2
Jerly 24, 2007
29!
% /ﬂ
n
a2 TYLER VREECE, Decisrani '
3 ) AAA Landlord Services, Inc. An Officor Of Mwricops Gounly Superiar Gourt
93 woww.asslandiord.com
s
38 {
3
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Mevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702} 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwall@mainorfawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste, 550
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individvally and
CHERYL ANN SIMAOQ, individually. and as
husband and wife,

Plamuffs,
v.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;

DOES 1 through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants,

This Honorable Court, having read the pleadings and papers on file herein regarding

Electronically Filed
03/11/2011 08:37:31 AM

. 5.33&..«:...,—

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO.: AS539455
DEPT.NO.: X

ORDER REGARDING
PLAINTIFFS’ OMNIBLIS MOTION
IN LIMINE
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Plzintiffs’ Omnibus Mation in Limine, the parties appearing before the Court on Febmary 15,
2011 for hearing, DAVID T WALL, ESQ. and Mainor Eglet appearing for Plaintiffs, STEVE
ROGERS, ESQ. and Rogers, Mastrangelo, Carvalho and Mitchell appearing for Defendants, and
good cause appearing therefore, the Court rules upon the Plaintiffs’ Motion as follows:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to exclude prior and subsequent
unrelated accidents, injuries and medical conditions and prior and subsequent claims or lawsuits
is GRANTED in all respects;

1T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preclude reference 1o William
being a malingerer, magnifying symptoms or manifesting secondary gain motives is GRANTED,
such that medical witnesses may testify 10 medical inconsistencies, but references o Plaimtiff
being a malingerer, magnifying symptoms or manifesting secondary gain motives are excluded.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that treating physicians do not need to prepare expen
reports separate from and in addition 1o their medica) records and dictated reports.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preclude reference to defense
medical examiners as “independent” is GRANTED.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preclude arpument that this case
is “attorney driven” or a “medical-buildup” case™ is GRANTED.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED ihat Plaintitfs™ request to prectude references 1o collateral
sources of payment or medical bills and all other expenses, including health insurance, liens
and/or Medicare is GRANTED.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs” request 1o exclude evidence of when
Plaintiffs retained counsels is GRANTED.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that Plainuffs’ request to preclude Defendants from

3]
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arguing that Plaintiffs are asking the jury for an amount greater than they anticipate receiving is

GRANTED.
Mar
DATED this__{ f*day of Febmary, 2011.

-~

COURT JUDGE /

MAINOR EGLET

PAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2803

MAINOR EGLET

40C South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vepas, Nevada 89101
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WILLIAM SIMAO,
Plaintiff,
V.
DEPT. X
JENNY RISH,

Defendant.

CASE NO. A-539445

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JESSIE WALSH, DISTRICT CQURT JUDGE

MONDAY, MARCH 21, 2011

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
TRIAL BY JURY
DAY 1 - VOLUME I

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff: DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
RCBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.

Mainecr Eglet, LLP

For the Defendant:
Hutchison & Steffen,

RECORDED BY: VICTORIA BOYD, COURT RECORDER

STEVEN M. ROGERS, ESQ.

LLC

AVTranz
E-Reporting and E-Transcription
Phoenix [602] 263-0885 = Tueson |520} 403-8024
* Renver [303] 63422295 T
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There were multiple other slides that had the same type of
problems in them. Most of them Mr. Rogers agreed with and
took those statements out of the slides, but again, if we
hadn't done that, there would have been three to four more
clear violations of these -- this Court's pretrial orders.

As Mr. Wall said at the bench, I think it's clear --
I think it's abundantly clear that Mr, Rogers is going to try
to mistry this case. I think it is abundantly clear that
that's what's going on.

I told the Court at the last bench conference that
that was two. If there were any additional ones, we were
going to start asking for monetary sanctions and othef
potential sanctions in this case for this type of systematic
refusal to comply with pretrial court orders.

I expect his experts are going to do it as well, I
can assure this Court that they are going to violate a number
of the orders in their testimony, just like Mr. Rogers did up
there say oh, I -- I didn't realize that that was a, you know,
I didn’'t realize that was the Court's order. I was confused,
I guess.

So additionally, there are some other slides. Can I
have your young man over there put the slides --

MR. ROGERS: Yeah, Dan.

THE COURT: ~- that we were talking about one at a time,
MR. ROGERS: Which ones -- now just so —-
AVTranz

£-Reporting and E-Transcription .
. Phoerix [602] 263-0885 « Tucson [520] 403-8024
s o - . - Denver-[303) 634-2295 -
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CHERYL A. SIMAO and

WILLIAM J. SIMAO,

Plaintiffs,

V.

JAMES RISH, LINDA RISH

and JENNY RISH,

Defendants.

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO. A-539455

DEPT. X

L R i el ol S

BEFORE THE HONCRABLE JESSIE WALSH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

APPEARRANCES:

FRIDAY, MARCH 25, 2011

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT
TRIAL TO THE JURY
DAY 5 - VOLUME 1

For the Plaintiffs: DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

For the Defendants

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Mainor Eglet

BRYAN W. LEWIS, ESQ.

James and lLinda Rish: Lewis and Associates, LLC

For the Defendant

Jenny Rish:

STEVEN M. ROGERS, ES3Q.
CHARLES A. MICHALEK, ESQ.
Hutchison & Steffen, LLC

RECCRDED BY: VICTORIA BOYD, COURT RECCRDER

AVTranz

E-Reporting and E-Transcriplion
Phioenix {B02) 263-0885% « Tucson {520} 403-8024
+ Denver (303).634-2295 .
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and all that stuff.

a If it's okay, I'll just make the simple statement --
I just want to make sure nothing else is wrong. BSo I would
hypothetically repeat the MRI, repeat the CT, take the x-rays,
talk to the patient, examine the patient, and all that would
be a pertinent part to getting to the point of deciding that
the patient has a high likelihoed, of neuropathic pain and
considering a spinal cord stimulator trial.

Q Okay. Because it's possible that it isn't
neuropathic pain, it could be related to the hardware, for
example?

MR. EGLET: Objection, Your Honor, speculatioen,
possibility.

THE COURT: Sustained. BAsk you to rephrase the question.

MR. ROGERS: Sure.

BY MR. ROGERS:

Q The point of these ruling out tests that you've just
describe to the jury is that you need to rule out whether
there is an alternate problem that wouldn't be necessarily
repaired by a stimulator?

A Correct. fes.

Q Now, Doctor, yesterday there was a discussion about
the testimony history of a doctor. I don't broach this topic
with you to be insensitive, but I want to touch on it since

that issue has been raised. You testified under ocath, whether

AVTranz
. E-Reporting and E-Transcription - o
Phoenix (602) 263-08§5 » Tucson (520) 403-8024 N
2 ' 'Denver (303} 634-2295 - O
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it be in trial or in deposition, somewhere arcund 100 times;
is that right?

MR. EGLET: May we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

THE WITNESS: So I'm to wait?

THE COURT: Yes, please.

(Begin Bench Conference]

MR. EGLET: If he has a deposition of prior testimony of
this Doctor that he wants to impeach with him, or show that
he's testified inconsistently with, that's fine, but just to
throw out there this -- what he's asking feor is an opinion out
of a treating physician that oh, well sometimes doctors
testify differently at different depositions, you know,
without having any foundation for it, without having an
example of another deposition where that has occurred is
improper. There's no foundation for that.

MR. WALL: Excuse me, trial doctors, like in the opening,
this is medical buildup.

MR. EGLET: You know -— yeah, this is medical buildup.
it's -- this is like a trial doctor, like the slide he put up
there.

MR. WALL: You sustained the objection during the opening
of referring to him as a trial doctor, because it really
reflects medical buildup, which was kept out.

MR. EGLET: Okay. And there's no foundation for this --

AVTranz

E-Reporting and E-Transcription
' Phoenlx (602) 263-0885 « Tucson {520) 403-8024
- . Denver (303) 634-2295
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No, 3402

DAVID T. WALL, ES().
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwali@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E, AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4500

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vepas, Nevada §9102

Ph.: (702) 384-411]

Fx.: {702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs.

V.

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES | through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

This Honorable Court, having read the pleadings and papers on file herein regarding the

004555

CASE NO.: AS53%9455
DEPT.NO.: X

ORDER REGARDING PLAINTIFFS'
MOTION IN LIMINE TO (1)
PRECLUDE DEFENDANT FROM
RAISING A “MINOR” OR “LOW
IMPACT” DEFENSE; (2) LIMIT THE
TRIAL TESTIMONY OF
DEFENDANT’S EXPERT, DAVID
FISH, M.D. AND; (3) EXCLUDE
EVIDENCE OF PROPERTY
DAMAGE AND PLAINTIFES®
MOTION TO EXCLUDE SUB ROSA
VIDEO
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Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine to (1) Preclude Defendant from Raising a “Minor” or *Low Impact”
Defense; (2) Limit the Trial Testimony of Defendant’s Expert, David Fish, M.D., and; (3)
Exclude Evidence of Properly Damage and Plaintiffs’ Motion to Exclude Sub Rosa Video, the
parties appearing before the Courl on March 1, 2011 for hearing, and good cause appearing
therefore, the Court rules upon the Plaintiffs’ Motions as follows:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preciude Defendant from Raising
a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense is GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to limit the trial testimony of
Defendant’s expen, David Fish, M.D2, to those areas of expertise that he is qualified to testify in
regards to is GRANTED. Neither Dr. Fish nor any other defense expert shall not opine
regarding biomechanics or the nature of the impact of the subject crash at trial.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED ihat Plaintiffs” request to exclude lﬁc property damage
photos and repair invoice(s} is GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaimiffs’ request 1o exclude sub rosa video she is
deferred until after Plaintiff’s direct testimony, 54;1 that Defendant can éstablish how it impeaches

the Plaintiff. Defendant is precluded from showing the sub rosa video or referring to it unti] that

tinme.

DATED this__ %' day of March, 2011,

MAINOR EGLET

S

DAVID T.A&VALL, ESQ.

2
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JUDG

ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
L.as Vegas, Nevada 89101
Ph.: (702) 450-5400

Fx.: (702) 450-5451
regleti@mainorlawyers.com
dwall@mainorlawyers.com

badams@mainoriawyers.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed

CLERK OF THE CQURT

DISTRICT COURT

s CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAOQO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQO. individualiy. and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs.
Y.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;

DOES I through V; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASENO.: A539455
DEPT.NO.: X

JUDGMENT

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on April 1,2011.

06/01/2011 09:26:39 AM

A b s

004385

004385

. 004385



9800

MAINOR EGLET

N - DL N -\ W ¥ I SR V- B % Ry

— —
N—-= o

004386

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment was hereby entered in favor of|
Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:'
IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff, WILLIAM SIMAOQ, have and recover of|

the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the following sums:

PAST DAMAGES:
Past Medical and Related Expenses $194,390.96
Past Pain, Suffering, Disahility $ 1,378,209.00
and Loss of Enjoyment of Life

Total Past Damages: $ 1,572,599.96
FUTURE DAMAGES:
Future Pain, Suffering, Disability § 1,140,552.00
and Loss of Enjoyment of Life

'futal 'Furure Damages: % 1,140,552.00
TOTAL DAMAGES: $2,713.151.96

ITIS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff, CHERYL SIMAOQO. have and recover

of the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the fallowing sums:

PAST DAMAGES:

Loss of Cons;artium: | $ 681.286.00
Total Past Damages: $ 681,286.00

TOTAL DAMAGES: $ 681,286.00

IT WAS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs be awarded and entitled to costs in the

amuouni of $99,555.49,

'Exhibit | - Judgment
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1T IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiffs’ past damages in the amount
of Two Million Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-Five and 96/100 Dollars
(52,253,885.96), shall bear pre-judgment interest in accordance with Lee v. Buil, 116 P.3d 64, (2005)
at the rate of 5.25% per annum’ from the date of service of the Summons and Complaint, on July 23.
2007 through May 18, 2011 as follows:?

PRE-JUDGMENT INTEREST:

07/23/07 THROUGH 05/18/11 = § 452,231.10
(1395 days x $324.18 per day)
NOW, THEREFORE, Judgment in favor of Plaintiffs, WILLIAM SIMAO and CHERYL

SIMAQ, is hereby given for Three Million Nine Hundred Forty Six Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-
Four and 55/100 Dollars ($3,946,224.55) against Defendant which shall bear post-judgment interest
at the current rate of 5.25% or $567.60 per day, until satisfied.

st
DATED this __ 2l day of May, 2011.

ROBEBFT.-RGLEN

Nygvada Bar No. 3402
XVID T. WALL, ES{Q.

Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

? Exhibit Lee v. Ball
! Exhibit Affidavit of Service

004387

-004387_-

004387




88EY00

EXHIBIT “1”

004388

004388

004388




68EY00

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ; and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQG,

DEPT.NOQ.: X
Plaintiffs,

V.

JUDGMENT

JENNY RISH,

Defendant.

CASENO.: A539455

WHEREAS, a hearing for Defaul Judgment having come before the Court on April 1.

2011. IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment i$ hereby entered in

favor of Plaintiffs and againsi Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:
William Simao’s past medical and related expenses
William Simao’s pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Future pain and suffering
- Loss of Enjoyment of Life
Cheryl Simao’s loss of consartium (Society and Relationship)
Atiomeys' fees
Litigation costs

TOTAL

5194, 330.

3415, c4o.
$§,140, 552,
$_qus. 9.

) 1, 29fa.

5 TRD

$__ 4 _555.19
$5,443,98%. 45
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Judgment against Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance withN.R.S. 17.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64 {2005).

Dated this _27™ay of April, 2011.

s Nadah

DI CT COURT JUDGE
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BARRY J, LEE, Appeliant, vs. CHRISTOPHER (. BALL, Respondent,

No. 41686

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

121 Nev, 391; 116 P3d 64; 2005 Nev. LEXIS 43; 121 Nev. Ady. Rep. 38

July 28, 2005, Peelded

PRIDR HISTORY:  [***1] Appzal from a district
court judgment granting additur and denying shomey
fees and costs. Biphth Judicial District Coun, Clerk
County; Stewart L. Bell, Judge.

DISPOSITION: Reversed and remanded,

COUNSEL;: Ronald M. Pehr, Las Yegas, for Appeliant.

Plazza & Azsociotes and Cerl F. Plazzs and David H.
Pumey, Lus Vegas, for Respondent,

JUDGES: BEFORE MAUPIN, DOUGLAS and PAR-
RAGUIRRE, J). DOUGLAS and PARRAGUIRRE, 1),
caneur,

OFINION BY: MAUPIN
OFPINJON

[*393] [**65) OPINION
By the Court, MAUPIN, ).

In thiz appesl, we clarify tha: e districi court’s grant
of ndditur is only sppropriale when presented 1o the de-
fendont a5 an afiernative to a new Irinl on damages.

FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The litipation below wrage from a car aceldent in
which the passenger In n vehicle, respondent Christopher
Ball, susiained injuries afier the driver, appellant Bemry
Lee, pegligently umed inie oncoming 1raffic, Hall sued
Lee, alleging general end special domages, Unhappy
with the resulis of court-annexed arbitration, Lee re-
quested o trial de nova. Belore trigl, Lee served Ball with
an offer of judgment for § 8,011.46, After [*"66] 8 two-

day ftriol, the Jury awarded Ball § 1,300. Lee subse-
quenily moved (or cosit and atiomey fees brcause
{**42] Bzl failed to recaver an minount in excess of the
offer of judgment. Ball opposed this motion, requesting, a
new Irisl or, in the sliemative, additur. After an untron-
scribed hearing, the disrict courl granted an § 8,200 2d-
ditur and awarded Ball prejudamen) interest but did not
offer Lee the option of & new trial. The distriet coury (ur-
ther calculated prejudgment interest asing o pro-rata
formula based on the dilfering siattary ratcs of interest
in efTect bafore the eniry of final judgment, Leg appeals,
arguing that the district court etred by grenting sn addi-
tur, failing to offer a new trial, snd erroneously cafeulal-
ing prejudgment interesi. As o result, Lee argues he is
entitled 1o attarney fees anhd costs.

DISCUSSION

Additr

Under Drummond v, Mid-Wes1 Growers, * Nevadn
courts have the power 1o condition an order for a new
irial on acceptance of an additur. * In line with Drum-
mond, our subsequsnt decisions have conllirmed |*394)
& "two-prong test for additer: (1) whether lhe damages
are clearly inadequete, end (2) whether the case would be
a proper one lor granting a motion for a new triel fimied
10 dameges.” * I both prongs wre met, then the diswrict
court has [***3] discretion to grant o new trial, unless
(he defendant consents lo the court’s additor. * The dis-
iriet court hes brosd discretion in determining motions
for additur, snd we will not disturb the court’s determing-
lion unjess that discretion hes been ebused. * However,
graniing eddliur In the absence of 3 demonsirable ground
for a new trial is an sbuse of discretion,

I 91 MNeyv. 598, 708-13, 542 P.2d 198, 205-08
{1975).
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12) Nov. 391, *; 116 P3d &4, **;
2005 Nev, LEX]5 43, ***; 121 Nev, Adv, Rep. 18

2 id s OB, 542 P24 m 205.

3 Evans v. Dean Witner Reynolds, Inc., |16 Nev,
598, &85, 5 P.3d 1043, 1054 (2000 (citing
Drumrmond, 91 Mev, at 705, 542 P.2d st 203),

4 Drummond, 31 Nev. ol 712, 542 P.2d a2 208,

5 Donaldson v. Anderson, 109 Nev, 1019, 1041,
862 P.2d 1204, 1206 (1993).

We conclude thel Leg has Miled to demonsirate that
the district court abustd iis discretion in determining that
additr was warranted. First, ihe hearing during which
the distriel court (***4] orally granted additur was nat
reparied, the partley have not provided o tria) ranscript
in the record on sppen), and the parties have nol other.
wise favorad us with the distrlel court's oml explanation
for pranting, Bat) such relief, * Second, beeapae the sward
was substantiaily less than the conceded praofs of specisi
damazges, there is at least some indication that the jury
swend was “clearly inadequate” in violation of the diswict
courts instructions. Although the jury, acting reasontbly,
could have dishelicved Ball's evidence conceming al-
leged pain and suffering and reasanably inferred that he
was not injured as severely us claimed, * and although the
Jury was nol bound to assign any pariiculer probative
volue Lo sny evidence presenied, * W is incumbmt vpon
Lee ro demuonstrate that the addilur, In and of itself, con-
slitwes an abuse of discretion. * He has failed 10 do so,

6 See Stover v. Las Vegas Imt'l Counry Club, 95
Mev. 68, 68, 589 P.2d 671, 672 (1979) {staling
"when evidence on which a district court's judy-
ment resis is not properly ineluded fn the record
an appeal, it is assumed that the record sopports
the lower court's findings"). We further note that
the district court's written order granting additur
is silen 25 1o the reasons for this award,

loilsl
T See Quintero v. McDonald, 116 Nev, 118,
1184, 14 £.2d 522, 524 (200D).
8 id
9 See Wallace v. Haddock, 77 Conn. App, 634,
825 A.2d 14B, 151-52 (Conn. App. Ct. 2003) (de-
clining to upsct an award of addinus when 1he ap-
pelian: failed 10 provide iranscripts and "failed to
sceX any lurther artication of the couet's reason-
ing for granting the motion for en edditur®).

We conchsde, however, thet the disirict court
sbused its discretion in failing to offer Lee the option of
& new Irisl or accepiance of the additur, We ¢larify tha,
under Srummond, sdditur may nov [*395] stand slone
e} o discrete remedy; rather, it [s only eppropriate [Y*67)
when presented o the defendant as an altemative to »
new trin) on donoges.

10 Swe Drownmond, 91 Mev, oL 712, 542 P.2d ot
208; see also Donoidson, 109 Nev. gy 104), B62
P.2d g1 1207 (revemsing 8 districi count order and
remanding with instructions to grant 3 néw Iriet
limited to dmunnges, unless the defendent agresd
\o additur); /T7 Hariford Ins. Co. of the S.E v
Ohwens, 816 So. 2d 572, 575-76 {Fla. 2002) (ho\d-
ing the ralevani Florida siatule vequires & trial
court lo give the defendant the option of 8 new
trial when additur is pranted); Woallace, RB25 A.2d
gt 133 {finding lhe srelevant Coanscticut atute
requires parties have the option of eccepiing addi-
tur or receive o now triaf on the issve of dam-
Bges): Awnla v. Morguth Agency, Inc, 437
N.W.24 45, 50 (Minn. 1989) ("[A] new trin) may
be granted for excessive or Inadequate damoges
and made conditionsl upon the party ogeinst
whom the motion is directed consenting to & re-
ductlon or an increase of the verdict, Conseny of
the nop-moving panty coniipues to be required.");
Tuect v, Moore, 875 5.W.2d 115, 146 {Mo. 1994)
("Additur requircs thet the party ogainst wham
the new irial would be pranted have, insicad, vhe
optlon of apreeing to additur."), Bslanger by
Belanger v. Teagne, 126 N.H. 110,490 A2d 772,
772 (N.H. 1983) (mem.) (halding “a Jury verdic
supplemented with an additur may po 10 Judg-
ment only if the defendant waives a new trinl™).

[***6] Prefudgment inturesi

Lee argues that the district court crred in colcofating
both the rale and period of prejudgment interest. We
agree snd contlude that the disilo courts celeulotion
was plointy erroneous.

11 See Bradigy ». Romen, 102 Nev. 103, 145,
716 P.2d 227, 228 (1986} ("The ability of this
colit 10 consider rolevant jssucs sue sponte in pre
der Yo prevent plain error is well cstoblished,
Such Is the case where 2 staute which is clearly
controlling wes not epplied by the trisl coun.”
(eitation omfticd)).

Under NRS 17.130(2), " a judgment aeenses intes-
est from the date of the service of the summons snd
cooprimint until the date the judpment I3 satisfied. Unless
provided for by contract or otherwisc by law, the sppli-
cable rate for prejudgment Intcrest iy watutarily deter-
mined. " In determining what mte applies, NRS
§7.130(2) [*396] Instructs courts 1o use the base prime
mip percenizge “es ascerained by the Cainmissioner
[***7] of Financial Institutions on January t or July |,
ay the emye may be, immedintely preceding the drie of
Judgment, plus 2 percent.”
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121 Nev. 391, " 116 P,3d 64, **;
2005 Nev. LEXIS 41, ***; 12} Nev, Adv. Rep. 3B

12 NRS 17.130{2) provides:

When no rale of interest is prow
vided by contract or otherwise by
Isw, or apecified in the judpment,
the judgmenl draws interest fram
the tinte of service of the sum-
mons and complaing until setisfled,
except for any amous represent-
ing future damages, which draws
interest only from the time of the
entry of the judgment until safs-
ficd, at & rate equal 10 the prime
e ot the |nrgest bank in Nevuda
ms ascerinined by the Comifs-
sioner of Financial lnstitutions on
Jutvary 1 or July 1, as the case
may be, immediately preceding
the dote of judgment, plus 2 per-
cad, The rate must be edjusted ac-
cordingly on each Januery § and
July 1 thereafier untfl the judg.
ment is satisfled.

33 MRS FL130{2); see also Gibellini v, Kiingt,
110 Nev. $201, 1208, 885 P.2d 540, 34445
(19%4) (holing 'hmy the "pr specilied in \he

judgment” language dees not permil o judge to
vary an intercst rate outside of the statutory rate).

[***8) The disiict court calculnied the rate of pre-
Judpmen Inferest using periodic biannual lcgs! mies of
intecest in clfect between May 27, 1999, and March 24,
2003. This wes error. Under the plain language of NRS
§7.130(2), the districi court should have calculated pre-
judgment interest m the single mie in efTect on the date
of judgmen.

The district coort further determined thet prejudg-
mert Inlerest accrued from Mey 27, 1999, io Merch 24,
1003. NRS 17.130(2) explicitly provides that “the judg-
ment draws interest from (e timo of service of the sum-
mans and complaint untii satisfied.” Ball complered ser-
viee of process on June 9, 1999, and the district court
entered Mnal Judgment on March 29, 2003. Therefore,
prejodgment Interest acerued beginning lune 9, 1999, no
May 27, 1999. Accordingly, the district court aho erred
in ealeu)sling the perlod prejudgment fnterest accrued.

CONCLUSION

We hold (hat the district court erred In granting an
additur withoul praviding Lee the option of acceping the
additur of @ hew itisl on demnages and in caleulating pre-
Judgmens imerest. Accordingly, we reverse the ditiric
court’s fudgment and [***9] remand this |**68) maner
for praceedings consistent with this opinion.

DOUGTLAS and PARRAGUIRRE, JJ., concur,
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District Cour
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA octerdh #R25

WILLLAM JAY SIMAO, individually, and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually,
and as husband and wife,

fue 1¢ Q'“7PW'UZ

TR

! ’ T L !J,
SUMMONS

Plaintiffs,

V.
Dept. NO. A539455
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES | through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS
11hrough V, Inciusive,

Defapdants,

NOTICEl YOU HAVE BEEN SUED. THE COURT MAY DECIDE AGAINST YOU WITHOUT YOUR BEING
HEARD UNLESS YOU RESFOND WITHIN 20 DAYS. READ THE INFORMATION BELOW.

}
)
)
)
)
)
) CASE NO.
)
)
)
)
)
}
)

TO THE DEFENDANT. A Civil Complaint has been filed by the pleintiff agsinst you for the rellef set forth in the
Complaint,
JENNY RISH
213 NORTH COTTONWOOD DRIVE
GILBERT, ARIZONA 85234

. If you intend to defend this lawsuit, within 20 drys after this Summans is served on you exclusive of the
day of service, you must do the following:

a. File with the Clesk of this Courl, whose address is shown below, a formal writen response to the
Complaint in accordance with the mles of the Caurt.

b. Serve a copy of your response upon the attomey whose name and eddress Is shown below

2, Unless you respond, your default will be entered upon application of the plaintiff and this Court may enter

a judgment against you for the relief demended in the Complaint, which could result in the taking of money or property or
other relief requested in the Complaint.

3 If you intend to seck the advice of an attomey in this matter, you s-hculd do so promptly so that your
response may be Rled on time,
Issued at the direction of:
AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD. CHARLES J. SHORT, CLLERK OF COURT

Ifga]tlr E; PR 131007
By:

By: B
Matth . Aaron, Esq. Depuly Clerk
Novada Bar No, 4500 (:mgng Couthouse PﬁTg BOGGESS
AARON & PATERNOSTER 200 Souh Third Streei
2300 West Sahars, Snite 650 Lag Vegas, NV 89155
Attorneys for Plaintifts
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! | |
2
3
8 CLARK COUNYTY DISTRICT COURT
In And For The County Of Maricopa, State.Of Arizona
f
WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ AND GHERYL ANN |
SIMAO I
. Plaintitls), Reprasentad By THE PLAINTIEF '
10| ve.

. _ fihﬁﬂﬁmnuhnnmrsumwhé]
ol]  JENN RISH, JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH R .
i 8), I 2 Parsona

13

14}] &

e S kT

15{1 i, TYLER TREECE, being qualified under ARCF, 4(d} and 4(a), to serve legal procass within the Stele of
18 Arizona and having been so eppointed by Maricopa County Supsricr Courl, did recalve on July 12, 2007 from

1 THE PLAINTIFF, Attorney For The Plainiifl, the following Court issued documenis:
M| SUMMONS AND COMPLAINT ]
| on Monday, Julv 23, 2007 at 7: ! served fru of thess documents as follows: '\
) JENNY RISH BY LEAVIN COPIES WITH HER DAUGHTER, ARLENE VILLA AN OCCUPANY OF i
20 SUITABLE AGE AND DISGRETION WHO RESIDES THEREIN. '
2"\ Descripllon of Person Served:  H F 3540 59 180 BRN
22 Race Sex D08 or Approx Age Halighl Welght Halr Eyss
2 Documenis Wers Served At The 223 N COTTONWODOD DR
24|l Place OF al the place of abode GILBERY, AZ 55234

Located at:
25 — —
| SECURED
. 1 deciare undar penelly of perjury th
2 the foregoing Is true and correct an
" war sxecuied an this date.
July 24, 2007

29
30 1% |
N |
2 TYLRER YREECE, Deciaramt
33 , AAA Landiord Services, Inc. 4n Giicor Of Maricopn Counly Suparior Cout
34 www.saninndiord.com
s
3t

iy A

g ——
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Electronically Filed
06/06/2011 09:32:54 AM

RPLY )
ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ. Qi b Slnirrm

Nevada Bar No. 3402

DAVYID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ).
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwall@mainorlawyers.com

CLERK OF THE COURT

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ, individually and | CASENO.: A539455

CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually, and as | DEPT.NOQO.: X
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
PLAINTIFFS’ REPLY TO
V. PEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO
MOTION TO QUASH DEFENDANTS®
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH; SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO
DOES 1 through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1 JANS-JORG ROSLER, M.D. AT
through V, inclusive, NEVADA SPINE INSTITUTE ON
ORDER SHORTENING TIME
Defendants.

COME NOW, Plaintiffs, WILLIAM and CHERYL SIMAO, by and through their

attorneys of record, ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ., DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. and ROBERT M.

004399

004399

. .004399




0000

LET

o~
T

MAINOR EC

OO =) Dy I L N e

fe-] =~ (=] Ln E=S (o] [ — < D o0 -3 o Lh Y L) ~ — fane

004400

ADAMS, ESQ. of the law firm of MAINOR EGLET, and. hereby submits their Reply to
Defendant’s Opposition to Motion to Quash Defendants’ Subpoena Duces Tecum to Jans-Jorg
Rosler, M.D. at Nevada Spine Institute on Order Shorteping Time.
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
| B
ARGUMENT

Defendant's instant Opposition contains several inaccuracies that must be clarified here:

First and foremost, as the Court may recall, prior to Dr. Rosler taking the stand at trial,
Plaintiff was not in possession of the subject fluoroscopy image. Dr. Rosler brought the image
with him to Court on the day he took the stand, which was the first time Plaintiffs' counsel saw
the image. During Dr. Rosler's testimony, he referenced the fluoroscopy 1n his chart, which was
subsequently shown to the jury by use of the ELMO. This was the only 1ime Plaintiffs' counse)
used the ELMO as trial, which use was necessitated by the fact that Plaintiffs did not possess the
film prior and was not able to digitize it for use as an electronic exhibit as per Plaintiff's counsel's
usual trial custom. Thereafter, a copy of the fluoroscopy image brought by Dr. Rosler was
produced to Defendant during trial, on April 15, 2011, according to the Court’s instructions. This
is evidence by the Receipt of Copy attached to Plaintiffs' Motion to Quash at Exhibit "2" as
well as by Correspondence dated April 15, 2011 sent to defense counsel, which has attached
the subject diagnostic imaging study. (See Exhibit "1"). Interestingly, rather than acknowledge
the undoubted production of the requested item, Defendant still persists in her denial of receipt,
claiming that the "original film" has not been produced. Notwithstanding, while the original has
not been produced given the fact that Mr. Simao still receives medical treatment under the care
of Dr. Rosler and the film cannot lcave his facility, for purposes of the trial, a copy of the subject

image was sufficient to satisfy Defendant's needs. Frankly, the issue regarding the inferiority of
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a copy versus the original film is presently moot considering the fact that the trial has concluded
as a result of Defendant’s blatant violations of pretrial orders, which ultimately led to the sinking
of her Answer and entry of a Default Judgment after a prove-up hearing was
conducted. Until either a New Trial is granted by this Court and/or the Nevada Supreme Coun,
which is highly unlikely considenng the fact that this Court was well within 11s discretion 10
issue the pretrial orders at issue as well as the sanctions that were imposed, Defendant has
absolutely no right whatsoever to conduct any sort of discovery in this matter.

Second, with respect 10 Defendant's mention of Dr. Schifini, he was not ever identified as
one of Defendant’s trial witnesses. As such, Plaintiff is at a loss as to why Defendant's are even
bringing Dr. Schifini into this discussion as his subsequent involvement in this matter is wholly
irrelevant. Defendant's apparent retention of Dr. Schifini, post-triai, is yet another example of the
improper discovery that is being conducted by the defense after the trial of this matter has
already concluded.

Finally, as to Defendant's contention that a new trial is warranted based upon the
fluoroscopy image, which in Defendant's view constitutes "new evidence,” this blanket. bare-
bones contention is an irrelevant argument to the instant discussion and should not be considered
al this time. The instant Motion to Quash has no bearing on whether or not a new trial is
warranted on any matter, let alone 1he fact that a copy rather than an original film was produced
during trial. This argument is a red hermng and must be disregarded as the central issue is
whether or not the post-trial discovery soughi by the defense is permissible, not whether or not a
new trial is warranted. Based upon the facts and law of this case, there is absolutely no reason (o
permit the request discovery to be had as trial has already concluded, not to mention the fact that

the defense is already in possession of a copy of the requested imaging study.
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CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Count grant their
Motion to Quash Defendants’ Subpoena Duces Tecum to Jans-Jorg Rosler, M.D. at Nevada

Spine Institute.

DATED this B day of June, 2011,

MAINOR EGLET

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
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. o MAINOR EGLET tevr g

TRIAL ATTORNEYS Hon. Dawd T, Wall, Ret.
Tracy A Eglel 1
Robert M. Adams
Bradley 5. Mainor
Artemus W. Ham
Bradley | Myets
Erca D. Entsminger *
G. Asa Ginapp
Joseph J. Wirth
Brice J. Cralton

April 15, 2011

Danielle A. Tarmuy

t A somiFg A Obeo
4 Ao a0maIee 1 Aurony
= Aso aomated i Color o

Via Hand Delivery

Stephen H. Rogers, Esg.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL, LTD.
300 S. Fourth Street, #710

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Re: Simao v. Rish
Case No. AS539455

Dear Mr. Rogers:

Attached please find a copy of the fluoroscopy image Dr. Rosler addressed during
trial in the above-reference case.

Should you have any questions or concerns, feel free 1o contact me.

Very truly yours,

Ropént A. Adams, Esq.

RMA/amg

City Centre Place, 6th Fioor, 400 South 4th Stieet, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
| (702) 450-5400 Fax {702} 450-545] www.manorlawyers com
Tax |.D.# 32-0095047
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CLERK OF THE COURT

ORIGINAL

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* k K & Kk

WILLIAM SIMAO and . CASE NO. A-539455
CHERYL SIMRAC, .
. DEPT. NO. X

Plaintiffs,
VS. .
. TRANSCRIPT OF
JENNY RISH, JAMES RISH, . PROCEEDINGS
et al., .
Defendants.

BEFCRE THE HONORABLE JESSIE WALSH, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
’ TO JANS-JORG ROSLER, M.D.

TUESDAY, JUNE 7, 2011

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFFS: DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: STEPHEN ROGERS, ESG.

COURT RECORDER: TRANSCRIPTION BY:

VICTORIA BOYD VERBATIM DIGITAL REPORTING, LLC
District Court Englewocod, CO 80110

{303) 798-0890

Proceedings recorded by audio-visuval recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, JUNE 7, 2011, 9:07 A.M,
{Court called to order)

THE COURT: Let's call the matter of Simac vs. Rish,
Case No. A-539455.

MR. ROGERS: Good morning, Your Honor. Steve Rogers
for the defendant.

THE COURT: Goed morning, Mr. Rogers.

MR. WALL: David Wall on behalf of the plaintiff,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Wall.

This was Plaintiffs' Motion to Quash Defendants'
Subpoena Duces Tecum to Hans-Jorg Rosler and the Nevada Spine
Institute.

Mr. Wall?’

MR. WALL: Judge, I know you're painfully aware of
the procedural posture of this case. I mean, discovery is
closed. The trial has been completed. There is no grounds
for a subpoena feor the original fluoroscopy image. We
provided a copy, I think it was right at the close of trial,
if memory serves, that -~ I don't know if it was Mr. Rogers,
or Mr. Polsenberg actually requested a copy-

We provided a copy on April 15th. The original is
with Dr. Rosler, who continues to treat Mr. Simao. I just
don't see any grounds upon which the defense has a right to

continue to try to get the c¢original fluoroscopy image based on

Verbatim Digital Reperting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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the procedural posture of the case.

THE COURT: Very well. Mr. Rogers?

MR. ROGERS: Thank you, Your Honor. The Court
ordered the plaintiff to prsduce a duplicate of the
fluoroscopy image. And the duplicate that was produced is
actually the same as the one that Your Honor has seen and it
is indiscernible. 1It's -- it appears to be a photocopy image

of a film.

Perhaps a scanned image would suffice. But we're
simply seeking production of the document that Your Honor
already ordered, and a legible copy. That's all I have.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Wall?

MR. WALL: Judge, again, I'd stand on the grounds
that there's no -- there's no discovery at this point.
There's not continued discovery. The case is done. I
understand that the allegation is somehow that it's relevant

to some motion for new trial.

Number one, it isn't. Number two, it still doesn't

place them in a position where they can ocbtain the image. The

original is -- it was brought here. It was used on the ELMO
and that's -- that's what it is. I mean, we did our best to
provide a copy. There is no more discovery.

So, I'd submit it on the motion.

THE COURT: You know, it's interesting. I know of

no legal avthority that allows counsel to conduct discovery

Verbatim Digita! Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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post-trial, and defense didn't provide me with any such

authority,

nor did they argue this issue in their motion for

the new trial.

The motion is denied. 1I'll ask you -- or actually,

the motion to quash the subpoena is granted. I'll ask you to

prepare an order based on the Court's ruling. Please run the

order past Mr. Rogers before you submit it to me, Mr. Wall.

than as a

produce a

MR. WALL: I will.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. WALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR, ROGERS: Could we simply couch this then, rather
subpoena, as a ~- as a continuance of that order to

legible copy. That's -- we're not asking for

anything new. We're simply asking for what the Court already

ordered production of, just a legible copy.

THE CQURT: The Court's made its ruling, Mr. Rogers.
MR. ROGERS: Okay.

MR. WALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.

{Proceeding concluded at 9:11 a.m.)

* * * * *

Verbatim Digiial Reporling, LLC ¢ 303-798-0890
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM
THE AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DQOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR
ENTITY,

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC
Englewoed, CO 80110
303-798-08590

guu C)QJAOQ

JULIE LORD, TRANSCRIBER DATE

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC ¢ 303-798-0830
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STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 5755 CLERK OF THE CQURT
ROGERS, MASTRANGELQ, CARVALHO & MITCHELL

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Phone (702) 383-3400

Fax (702) 384-1460

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

CASENO.  AS539455
DEPT.NO X

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiff,

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOESI - V; and ROE CORPORATIONS I -V,
inclusive,

Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)
)
v, )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TC MOTION FOR ATTORNEY FEES

COMES NOW Defendant JENNY RISH, by and through her attorney, STEPHEN 11

ROGERS, ESQ., and hereby submits this Opposition to Motion for Attorney Fees.
i
i
i
i
H
"
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This Opposition is based upon the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the
pleadings and papers on file herein, and any argument the Court is willing to entertain at the time of
the hearing, ~
DATED this_ |4 _ d:ly of Tune, 2011.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO &

MITCHELL
d ",“-‘._..—_m ,,,,, =Y s /"
,:_;;,»-v e o Y 1, —

STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. ARGUMENT

This personal injury action arises out of a motor vehicle accident (“MVA™) that occurred
April 15, 2005, Defendant Jenny Rish rear-ended a vehicle driven by Plaintiff William Simao.
Plaintiff alleged personal injuries. The trial began on March 14, 2011, and concluded on March 31,
2011, after the Court struck the Answer and dismissed the jury as a sanction for Defendant’s
purported violation of pre-trial orders. The Court found in favor of the Plaintiff, and awarded
damages in the amount of $3,500,000.

Plaintiffs now seek aftorney fees and “punitive interest”, Plaintiffs seek an excessive amount
of fees, and have no legal basis for punitive interest, and so their request for fees and interest should
be denied, or significantly limited.

A. Plaintiffs request for fees is excessive.

The decision “whether to award attomey fees, pursuant to NRCP 68 and NRS 17.115 lies
within the discretion of the district court.” Thomas v. City of North Las Vegas, 122 Nev, 82,127P.3d
1057, 1063 (2006). The award of attorney fees must be reasonable both in light of the hours and

hourly rate claimed and the determination of the reasonablencss nmiust involve the exercise of
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discretion “tempered by reason and fairness”. University of Nevada v. Tarkanian, 110 Nev. 581, 594,
879 P.2d 1180 (1994). Failure to exercise is discretion when awarding fees is an abuse of discretion.
Massey v. Sunrise Hospital, 102 Nev. 367, (1986).

An award of fees must include an analysis of (1) whether the Plaintiff’s claim was brought
in good faith, (2) whether the offer of judgment was reasonable and served in good faith; (3) whether
the Defendant’s rejection of the offer was grossly unreasonable or in bad faith, and (4) whether the
fees sought by the offeror are reasonable and justified in amount, Beattie v. Thomas, 99 Nev. 579,
588-89, 668 P.2d 268 (1983).

1. Whether Plaintiffs claims were brought in good faith

Plaintiff sought a multi-million dollar award for an auto accident in which there was, quite
simply, a minor impact. Though Defendant was precluded from raising this issue, the claims of the
Plaintiff in seeking this award were not in good faith. Plaintiff cites to the hiring of Defense experts
as evidence that Defendant refuses to “accept responsibility” for her negligence, when the substance
of the expert testimony was the Plaintiff was not as injured as he alleged. Defendant has evidence that
Plaintiff has issues of secondary gain, yet were precluded from raising such issues at trial. In short,
there is substantial evidence that Plaintiff did not bring the claim in good faith.

2. The reasonableness of the offer of judgment.

In determining if an offer was made in good faith, the question to be considered is whether
the offer or proposal bears a reasonable relationship to the amount of damages suffered and was a
realistic assessment of liability. See Evans v. Piotraczk, 724 So0.2d 1210 (Fla. 5th DCA 1998).

Plaintitt subimitted a $799,999 offer of judgment on February 5, 2009. (Plaintiff’s exhibit
“1™). At the time the offer was macde, the medical bills of Plaintiff were, as Plaintiff himself admits,
only $63,000. Thus, Plaintiff asserts an offer of judgment, seeking well over 10 times the actual
medical expenses, is reasonable, when the reasonable amount attorneys expect to receive in such
cases is two to three time medical expenses. ‘I

It was only after the offer of judgment expired that Plaintiff set forth additional medical
expenses (totaling over $170,000) and submitted evidence of Stan Smith’s loss of value of life

calculations. In essence, Plaintiff cites to evidence submitied after the offer of judgment expired,
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in order to justify the reasonableness of the offer. Plaintiff improperly rely upon evidence submitted
after the offer expired to show that the offer was reasonable at the time the offer was made. In reality,
Defendant was fully justified in rejecting the offer, given its request for over 10 times the current
medical damages known to Defendant.

3. Defendant’s decision to refuse the offer and proceed to trial.

As shown above, Defendant’s rejection of the offer was proper. Given the knowledge and
amount of damages presented to Defendant at the time the offer was made, Defendant was fully
justified in rejecting the offer. Proceeding to trial was reasonable, given the significant amount of
legal issues involved in the case, none of which were resolved at the time the offer was made.
Defendant did not know that the court would rule against her on the various motions in limine,
precluding significant evidence, at the time the offer was rejected. There were serious legal and
factual issues that needed to be argued and heard prior to the time of trial, and were not resolved until
shortly before tnal. Given the significant issues, the unprecedented rulings of the court on the
motions, and the unreasonableness of the timing of the offer without first resolving these issues,
Defendant was justified in rejecting the offer.

4, The fees are unreasonable in amount.

Plaintiff seeks a 40% contingency fee in the amount of $1,397,593.38. This amount cannot
be awarded under NRS 17.115 or NRCP 68. These provisions only apply to attorney fees incuwred
after an offer of judgment was made. Under NRCP 68 and NRS 17.115, a Plaintiff can only obtain;

..reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by the party who made the offer for the period from the

date of the offer to the date of entry of the judgment.

Plaintiff’s request for recovery of the contingency fee necessurily seeks recovery of the entire of the
attorney fee incurred. This is improper. An award of attorney fees undet the provisions cited cannot
be made for fees that were incurred throughout the course of the litigation. Instead, only those fees
reasonably incurred following the offer of judgment may be recovered. A contingency fee award must
therefore be rejected.

Plaintiff also alternatively seeks an award of fees based upon a rate of $750 per hour.

Plaintitt’s request for this amount must likewise be rejected. Plaintif”s motion contains significant
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boasting of his trial record, as justification for the substantial hourly fee he is demanding. But absent
from the motion is any substantiation of the hourly claim. The affidavits simply state the hours were
worked, with no documentation as to what the hours were for, No documentation of the actual hours
worked by the attorneys were provided, nor was there any indication of the agreement between
Plaintiff and counsel as to the “hourly” rate. There is no detailed breakdown of work performed, no
time logs, no billing statements and no documentation of the claimed hours of any sort, referenced
either in the motion or in the affidavits. The form declarations provided are simply insufficient to
justify the reasonableness fo the fees sought. Therefore, as no actual fee has heen substantiated,
Plaintiff’s motion for fees should be summarily denied.

Moreover, Plaintiff seeks an unjustified multiple of 2.5 times the attorney fee hourly rate,
based upon the contingent risk involved in the case. After spending paragraphs stating how skilled
trial counsel is (and no doubt trial counsel has skill), Plaintiff requests the excessive multiplier due
to the risk that Plaintiff would not succeed at trial. Yet, the whole justification for the hourkly rate
of $750 an hour was that trial counsel’s skill was unmatched and that trial preparation was thourough
and complete. Plaintiff cannot have it both ways.

Fither Plaintiff is justified in having an excessive hourly rate at $750, due to counsel’s
“vunmatched” skills, or Plaintiff should be compensated for the extra “risk” that a contingency fee
case presents to the average case. But Plaintiff cannot have both an “unmatched” counsel with a high
rate, and a multiplier based upon average counsel and average results.

B. Punitive interest is not allowed under Nevada law.

Plaintiff seeks punitive penalty interest, calling it “applicable interest™. This request must be
rejected, as no pre-judgment interest is allowed for future damage awards. See NRS 17.130.
Plaintiff argues that Uniroval Goodrich Tire Co. v. Mercer, 111 Nev, 318, 850 P.2d 785 (1995)
allows for such interest, but Plaintiff is mistaken. Plaintiff fails to acknowledge that the provisions
of NRS 17.115 and NRCP 68 have been revised to clarify that no such interest' is warranted. The
revisions make it clear that an offeree is only obligated to pay interest that has been made

“applicable” by a statute, rule or contract. Not a separate amount of interest as a punitive measure.
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The notion that Plaintiff is entitled to “punitive” interest has been rejected by the provisions
cited above. Plaintiff si limited to pre-judgment interest on the portion of past damages, and any

punitive interest must be disallowed.
II. CONCLUSION

Forthe reasons outlined above, the Court should deny Plaintiff's motion for fees and interest.
AV

DATED this .} 7 day of June, 2011.

T
ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO &
MITCHELL

- ——y
T
- L /1 1
il (:v:. / H S

STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
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CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(a), and EDCR 7.26(a), I hereby certify that [ a.?} an employee of
ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL, and on the day of June, 2011,
a truc and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT’S QPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR

ATTORNEY FEES was served via First Class, U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows,

upon the following counsel of record:

David T. Wall, Esq.

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada §9101

Telephone: (702} 450-5400

Facsimile: (702) 450-5451

Attorneys for Plaintiffs , /
{
L

s
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{

—

N
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AH;EQH?M}’@Q.QF
‘Régers, Mastrafigelo, Carvaiho & Mitchell

M:\Rogers\Rish ady. Sinao\Pleadinpsiopposition to motion for fezs.wpd

Page 7 of 7

004419 -

004419




004420

0Zt¥00

004420



TZvv00

MAINOR EGLET

V.

004421.

Electronically Filed
06/16/2011 10:31:02 AM

ORDR ym
ROBERT T. EGLET. ESQ. % b

Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVIDT. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No., 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
MNevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
badams@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste 650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and { CASENO.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAOQO. individually, and as | DEPT.NO.: X
hushand and wife.
ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S
Plaintifts, MOTION TO RETAX COSTS

JENNY RISH: JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH:
[DOES I through V: and ROE CORPORATIONS [
through V. inclusive,

Defendants.

‘This Honorable Courl. having read the pleadings and papers on file herein regarding the

004421-
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Defendant’s Motion to Retax Costs, the matter being heard in Chambers on June 2, 2011 fo
hearing, and good cause appearing therefore, hereby rules that Defendant’s Motion to Retax
Costs is DENIED.

iT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED this lfi day of June, 2011,

DISTRIYT COURT JUDGE ;

Respectfully submitted

MAINOR EGLET

EKTT. EGLET, ESQ,.

_eaﬁda Bar No. 3402

AVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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NEO

ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
reglet@mainorlawyers.com
dwall@mainorlawyers.com
badams@mainorlawyers.com
Attorney for Plaintiffs

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, L.TD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
V.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH: LINDA RISH;

DOES I through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.
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CLERK OF THE COURT

004424

CASENO.: A539455
DEPT.NO.: X

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order Denying Defendant’s Motion 1o Retax Costs

was entered in the above-entitled matter on June 16, 2011 and is attached hereto as Exhibit

] 1 !!-

/b
DATED this l day of June, 2011.

?

MAINOR EGLEY
7

7 11737
A
ROBERTT. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
400 South Fourth Street, Ste. 600
1.as Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

004425

004425

004425 -



9Zvv00

MAINOR EGLET

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

The undersigned hereby certifies that on the Mﬂ{:y of June, 2011, a copy of the
above and foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was served by enclosing same in an
envelope with postage prepaid thereon, address and mailed as follows:

Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.
ROGERS, MASTRANGELO,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 82101
Attorneys for Defendants

bl

An employee of MAINOR EGLET
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ORDR %
ROBERT T. EGLET. ESQ. Qe b

Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVID T, WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ,.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702} 450-5451
badams{@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste,650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and | CASE NO.. A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAOQO. individually, and as | DEPT.NO. X
husband and wife.
ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT’S
Plaintifts, MOTION TO RETAX COSTS

V.
JENNY RISH: JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;

DOES J through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive.

Defendants.

This Honorable Court, huving reud the pleadings and papers on file herein regarding the
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‘Respectfully submitted

Defendant’s Motion 1o Retax Costs, the matler being heard in Chambers on June 2. 2011 fog

hearing, and good cause appearing therefore, hereby rules that Defendant’s Motion o Retax

Costs is DENIED.

IT 1S SO ORDERED.

DATED this f_"é day of June, 2011.

DISTRIGT COURT JUDGE ;

MAINOR EGJAT

EETT. EGLET, ESQ.
/ 4da Bar No. 3402
AVIDT. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
L.as Vegas. Nevada 89101
Atiorneys for Plaintiffs
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OPP
ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ. W&» i-kﬁ“""'—

Nevada Bar No. 3402 CLERK OF THE COURT
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2803

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwall@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and | CASENO.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and as | DEPT.NO.: X
husband and wife,

PlaintifTs,
PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO
\'2 DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR
NEW TRIAL

JENNY RISH: JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES i through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

COME NOW, Plaintiffs, WILLIAM and CHERYL SIMAO, by and through their

attorneys of record, ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ., DA\_/ID T. WALL, ESQ. and ROBERT M.
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ADAMS, ESQ. of the law firm of MAINOR EGLET, and hereby submits their Opposition to
Defendant’s Motion for New Trial.
This Opposition is made and based upon the pleadings and papers on file herein and the
attached Points and Authorities.
DATED this Q L{ day of June, 2011.
MAINOR EGLET

202

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
Attorney for Plaintiffs

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
STATEMENT OF FACTS

This case involves a motar vehicle accident occurring on April 15, 2005. The Plaintift,
WILLIAM SIMAO, was driving southbound on Interstate 15 when he was rear-ended by a
vehicle driven by the Defendant, JENNY RISH. Defendant did not deny causing the accident.
Plaintiff WILLIAM SIMAO was injured in the accident and brought the instant action, which
included a claim for loss of consortium by WILLIAM SIMAO’s wife, Plaintiff CHERYL
SIMAO.

This matter was presented for jury trial beginning on March 14, 2011, and the trial had
nearly been completed when, due to numerous violations of several of this Court’s pre-trial
rulings, including Plaintiff’s Motion regarding Defendant’s “minor impact” defense, which s
most central to Defendant’s instant Motion, ﬁefendmt’s Answer was stricken. Ultimately, the
Court was forced to strike Defendant’s Answer because progressive sanctions up to that point

had failed and had not deterred Defendant’s counsel in the least from disobeying the law of the

case as was prescribed by the pre-trial rulings and the Court’s instructions, warnings, and

. _2_
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admonitions during trial. (See Order Striking the Answer, attached hereto as Exhibit “1”).

While Plaintiffs® oral motion to strike Defendant’s Answer was rooted primarily in the
Defendant’s repeated violations of the Court’s Order granting the Plaintiffs” Motion in Limine
regarding a “minor impact defense”, Defendant violated other Orders of this Court during the
trial, and the cumulative effect of such violations was material to the Court’s analysis. These
other violations included violations of this Court’s pre-trial orders excluding prior and
subsequent accidents and injuries and medical build-up/attorney driven litigation arguments.
(See Exhibit “1).

Due to all of these violations, and only after progressive sanctions had been issued
against the Defendant to no avail, the Court granted Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Defendant’s
Answer, converting this litigation into a default judgment under NRCP 55. The case proceeded
to a prove-up hearing on damages only, which took place on Friday, April 1, 2011. On April 28,
2011, a Judgtent by the Court was filed, awarding Plaintiffs $3,493,983.45, inclusive of past
medical expenses, past and future pain and suffering, loss of consortium on behalf of Plaintiff,
Cheryl Simao, and litigation costs. (See Judgment at Exhibit “2”). The Judgment was
subsequently entered on May 3, 2011 (See Entry of Judgment at Exhibit “3”). Thereafter, on
June 1, 2011, a modified Judgment was filed, inclusive of pre-judgment interest. (See Exhibit
g,

Defendant now alleges that the Court abused its discretion by striking her Answer and
secks a new trial based primarily upon this sanction imposed against her. However, based upon
the following law and argument, Defendant’ s Motion must be summarily DENIED as this Court
was well within its discretion to strike Defendant’s Answer considering the blatant and repeated
acts of misconduct that occurred at trial.

Among Defendant’s other claims of error purportedly warranting a new ftrial arc that

-3-
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Plaintiff abused EDCR 7.27 by submitting ex parte briefs after trial began, that Defendant’s right
to voir dire was unreasonably restricted in violation of NRS 16.030, that the Court failed to
properly restrict Plaintiff’s voir dire, that Defendant was unfairly prejudiced because Plaintiff
purportedly failed to disclose certain medical evidence as required by NRCP 16.1(A)(1)(C) and
that a mistrial or a continuance should have been granted to rebut the “undisclosed” evidence.
Defendant also argues that the Court improperly awarded future medical special damages
“veiled” as general damages. Moreover, the Defendant not only requests that a new trial be
granted based upon all of the claims of ervor and abuse of discretion but also has the audacity o
request that this Court recuse itself because, in Defendant’s view, this case cannot proceed fairly
in the present Department.

For the reasons set forth betow, none of the claims of error argued by the defense are
meritorious, and Plainti{Ts respectfully request that the entirety of Defendant's Motion be
DENIED.

IL
LEGAL AUTHORITY

First, it must be noted that despite the correctness of the Court's pre-trial rulings,
Defendant was compelled to follow the law of the case as was determined by the Court’s pre-
trial rulings, preserving her right to appeal those decisions after trial had concluded. However,
because the Defendant instead chose to ignore many of the pre-trial rulings, especially
concerning “minor impact,” and attempted time and time again to circumvent the crystal clear
boundaries of how she could proceed in presenting the facts of the case, the Court had no other
option but to strike the Defendant’s Answer. This is evidenced by the fact that progressive
sanctions were iséued, to no avail, during the course of the trial from litcrally opening statements

forward. As a consequence, it only makes logical sense that Defendant’s lone purported error

-4-
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that can now be complained of is the striking of her Answer as any other issue(s) have been
rendered moot by Defendant’s choice to disobey the Court’s pre-trial rulings, thereby
necessitating the severe sanctions imposed against her.

However, even if Defendant’s other points of contention in favor of a new trial have not
been rendered moot, none of these warrant a new trial as there has been no demonstration of
reversible and plain error, or even an abuse of discretion, on any of the issues complained of by
the defense.

With respect to the grounds for a new trial, NRCP 59 provides, in pertinent part:

A new trial may be granted to all or any of the parties and on all or part of
the issues for any of the following causes or grounds materially affecting
the substantial rights of an aggrieved party; (1) Tmegularity in the
proceedings of the court, jury, master, or adverse party, or any order of the
court, or master, or abuse of discretion by which either party was prevented
from having a fair trial; (2) Misconduct of the jury or prevailing party; (3)
Accident or surprise which ordinary prudence could not have puarded
against; (4) Newly discovered evidence material for the party making the
motion which the party could not, with reasonable diligence, have
discovered and produced at trial; 5) Manifest disregard by the jury of the
instructions of the court; (6) Excessive damages appearing to have been
given under the influence of passion or prejudice; or, (7) Error in law
occurring at the trial and objected to by the party making the motion. On a
motion for a new trial in an action tried without a jury, the court may open
the judgment if one has been entered, take additional testimony, amend
findings of fact and conclusions of law or make new findings and
conclusions, and direct the entry of a new judgment,

004435

NRCP 59(a)
In short, Rule 59 allows for a new trial only in a few narrow circumstances, including
where there has been irregularity in the proceedings and where the court’s abuse of discretion
has prevented defendants from receiving a fair trial; as well as misconduct of counsel and error
in law occurring at trial to which timely and proper objections were made.
The Defendant would have this court believe that the various alleged errors that they

insist occurred at the trial are sufficient to reverse the judgment. This is not the case. As noted

-5-.
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above, there are only a limited number of grounds, seven to be precise, upon which a new trial
may be granted. See NRCP 59(a). However, the Defendant points out errors in fact and
disagreements with the trial judge over matters within the judge’s discretion, such as evidentiary
rulings. Certainly these alleged errors or irregularities do not rise to the ievel of granting a new
trial. There was overwhelming evidence to sustain the judgment in this case, and a new trial is
not warranted. See Brechan v. Masonry, 92 Nev. 633 (1976).

In Nevada, where there is a conflict in the evidence, the verdict or decision will not be
disturbed. However, there is an exception to this rule where there is plain error in the records, or
if there is a showing of manifest injustice. Frances v. Plaza Pac Equities, 109 Nev. 91, 847 P.2d
722 (1993) (citing Price v. Sinnott, 85 Nev. 600, 460 P.2d 837 (1969)). Further, a district
court’s decision to admit or exclude evidence rests within its sound discretion. See Vallery v.
State, 118 Nev. 357. 371 (2002). The decision will not be disturbed unless it is manifestly wrong.
Id. See also, Jackson v. State, 117 Nev. 116, 120 (2001). (The district court has broad discretion
to decide evidentiary issues).

Moreover, even in situations where error has occurred, NRCP 61, the “harmless error”
rule, prevents the granting of a new trial unless the error has affected a “substantial right” of the
parties. The Rule reads as follows:

No error in either the admission or the exclusion of evidence and no error or

defect in any ruling or order or in anything done or omitted by the court or by any

of the parties is ground for granting a new trial or for setting aside a verdict or for

vacating, modifying or otherwise disturbing a judgment or order, unless refusal to

take such action appears to the court inconsistent with substantial justice. The

court at every stage of the proceeding must disregard any error or defect in the

proceeding which does not affect the substantial rights of the parties.

N.R.C.P. 61

Errors not affecting substantial rights are disregarded. Under this rule, “which prohibits

the disturbance of a judgment for sundry errors of the trial court” unless such errors appear to be
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inconsistent with substantial justice, the Court must disregard any error or defect in the
proceeding which does not affect the substantial rights of the parties. United Tungsten Corp. v.
Corporation Serv., Inc., 76 Nev. 329, 353 P.2d 452 (1960). Questions as to whether error in the
exclusion {or inclusion] of evidence in jury cases is harmless or prejudicial must be solved by
determining whether substantial rights of the parties have been violated, which in turn depends
upon the circumstances of each case. Unless a party can demonstrate that the inclusion of
evidence has affected its substantial rights, the error will be regarded as “harmless.” See
Glenbrook Homeowners Ass'n v. Glenbrook Co., 111 Nev. 909, 915 (Nev, 1995).

None of the Defendant’s contentions about the Trial Court’s exclusion of evidence
constitute an abuse of the Court’s broad discretion. Moreover, the Defendant fails to offer any
competent analysis of the facts of this case with a view toward satisfying the goveming standards
for a New Trial.

II1.

ARGUMENT IN OPPOSITION

A. The Sanctions Issued by This Court Due to Defendant’s Repeated and Continuous
Violations of Pre-trial Orders Were More than Warranted and Were Not an Abuse
of Discretion.'

1. Multiple Pre-Trial Orders Were Blatantly Violated During the Pendency of Trial.

As a brief history, and to fully demonstrate the breadth of the continuous misconduct that
oceurred during trial, on January 7, 2011, Plaintiffs brought an Omnibus Motion in Limine,
which included a request to preclude the Defendant from introducing evidence of Prior and
Subsequent Unrelated Accidents, Injuries and Medical Conditions and Prior and Subsequent

Claims or Lawsuits. Plaintiffs specifically asked the Court to preclude evidence of an unrelated

! Plaintiffs refer the Court to its Order striking Defendant’s Answer, attached to this Brief at Exhibit “1,” as the
procedural history regarding Defendant’s numerous violations of Pretrial Orders as well as the legal reasoning for
issuing sanctions, up to and including striking the Answer, is fully set forth therein. Plaintiffs reiterate some of
those points in the instant Brief.

-7
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2003 motorcycle accident involving Plaintiff, William Simao (hereinafter William), as no
medical provider had opined that any of the minor injuries sustained by William in the
motorcycle accident were related and relevant to any injuries suffered in the instant accident. On
February 15, 2011, the Court GRANTED Plaintiffs’ request. The Order on Plaintiffs’ Motion
reads as follows:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to exclude prior and

subsequent untelated accidents, injuries and medical conditions, and prior and

subsequent claims or lawsuits is GRANTED in all respects.
(See Exhibit “5™),

Accordingly, there is no question that all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded the Defendant from introducing evidence of unrelated accidents, including
the 2003 motorcycle accident. However, in his Opening Statement, Defendant presented the jury
a Power Point slide referencing William Simao’s 2003 motorcycle accident. Upon Plaintiffs’
objection, the jury was directed to disregard the slide because the Court had excluded evidence
of the 2003 motorcycle accident,

Following this admonition, this Court held a hearing outside the presence of the jury to
allow the Defendant’s counsel and the Plaintiffs’ counsel to review the remaining slides
accompanying the defense Opening Statement to determine if any of them violated court orders.
Upon seeing multiple slides that clearly violated the Court’s pretrial orders, Plaintiffs’ counsel
made the following statement outside the presence of the jury:

There were multiple other slides that had the same type of problems in them.

Most of them Mr. Rogers agreed with and took those statements out of the slides,

but again, if we hadn’t done that, there would have been three to four more clear

violations of ... this Court’s pretrial orders,

As Mr. Wall [Plaintiffs’ co-counsel] said at the bench, 1 think it’s clear ~ I think

it’s abundantly clear that Mr. Rogers is going to try to mistry this case. [ think it

is abundantly clear that that’s what's going on.

[ told the Court at the last bench conference that that was two. If there were any
additional ones, we were going to start asking for monetary sanctions and other

-8-
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potential sanctions in this case for this type of sysiematic refusal io comply with
pretrial court orders.

1 expect his experts are going fo do it as well. | can assure this Court that they are

going to violate a number of the orders in their testimony, just like Mr. Rogers did

up there....

(See RTP, March 21, 2011, attached hereto as Exhibit “6” at p. 75) (Emphasis Added).

Further, also before trial, Plaintiffs sought to preclude any evidence or argument that the
case was “attorney driven” or a “medical build-up” case. This section of the Plaintiffs’ Omnibus
Motion in Limine was also heard by this Court on February 15, 2011, at which time the Court
GRANTED the Plaintiffs’ request and an Order was entered regarding the same. (See Exhibit
“5”).

However, as with the Order excluding William’s prior motorcycle accident, defense
counsel violated this pre-trial Order when he stated in his Opening Staternent:

And we are going to hear from various different kinds of doctors in this case.

One of them are doctors who appear down here regularly in court, as often, if not

more than trial lawyers. Doctors McNulty, and Grover...

(See Exhibit “6” at p. 72).

Plaintiffs’ counsel objected to this remark and asked that a slide entitled “Trial Doctors”
be removed from the jury’s sight. Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained and the jury was directed to
disregard the slide as Defendant’s counsel’s statements and slide were in violation of yet another
pretrial Order.

Later in the trial, Plaintiffs called Patrick McNulty, M.D., William’s spine surgeon, to
take the stand and offer medical witness testimony regarding William’s injuries and medical
treatment. Despite this Court’s ruling during the Defendant’s Opening Statement on the issue of
medical build-up and “Trial Doctors,” counsel for the Defendant asked Dr. McNulty:

Now, Doctor, yesterday there was a discussion about the testimony history of a

doctor. | don’t broach this topic with you to be insensitive, but I want to touch on
it since that issue has been raised. You testified under oath, whether it be in trial

-9.
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or in deposition, somewhere around 100 times; is that right?

(See RTP, March 25, 2011, attached hereto as Exhibit “7” at pp. 21-22).

Counsel for the Plaintiffs immediately objected, which objected was sustained as the
defense was unable to explain why, other than to establish a “medical build-up defense,” which
had been excluded, it was relevant to pursue this {ine of questioning with Dr. McNulty.

2. Defendant’s Repeated Violations of the “Minor Impact” Defense Pre-Trial Order,

As set forth above, Plaintiffs’ Motion to Strike Defendant’s Answer was based primarily
on Defendant’s repeated violations of this Court’s pretrial Order on the issue of a “minor impact”
defense after progressive sanctions had failed to deter defense counsel’s misconduct.

On February 17, 2011, Plaintiffs brought a Motion in Limine to Preclude Defendant from
Raising a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense. Specifically, the Motion asked the Court to
preclude the Defendant from “arguing, suggesting or insinuating at trial that the crash was a
‘minor impact’ or ‘low impact’ collision, and not significant enough to cause Plaintiff’s
injuries.” The Motion was based on Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008), and the
important fact that Defendant did not have any expert qualified to testify whether the impact in
the instant collision was sufficient 1o cause the injuries complained of. Plaintiffs, on the other
hand, had disclosed a biomechanical expert who was prepared to testify that the accident was of
the type to cause injury. The Motion further sought to preclude Defendant’s pain management
expert, David Fish, M.D., from testifying to biomechanical engineering opinions, as he lacks the
qualifications to testify to such opinions under the standard announced in Hallmark.

On March 1, 2011, the Court GRANTED Plaintiffs’ Motion in its entirety and the
defense was put on notice that it was not to present any evidence at trial that the impact at issue
was “minor” or not significant enough to cause William’s injuries. Based upon Hallmark, supra,

Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168 (1964) and Choat v. McDorman, 86 Nev. 332 (1970), issues of
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accident reconstruction and biomechanics are not within the common knowledge of laypersons
and require expert witness testimony. (See also, NRS 50.275. The Order specifically states as
follows:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preclude
Defendant from Raising a “Minor” or “Low Impact” Defense is GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to limit the trial
testimony of Defendant’s expert, David Fish, M.D., to those areas of expertise
that he is qualified to testify in regards to is GRANTED. Neither Dr. Fish nor
any other defense expert shall opine regarding biomechanics or the nature of the
impact of the subject crash at trial.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to exclude the
property damage photos and repair invoice(s) is GRANTED.

(See Order, attached hereto as Exhibit “8™).

Notwithstanding the Court’s pretrial order, Defendant persisted in her attempts to
interject the notion that the collision was too minor to cause William’s injuries, thereby violating
the law of this case. These violations caused the Court to sanction Defendant on several
occasions and ultimately strike the Answer.

Defendant now alleges that a new trial is warranted because she should not have been
sanctioned for “violating an ambiguous, changing order.” However, there is no question that
Defendant was on notice of the unambiguous Order, as well as the lines her counsel was
forbidden to cross.

For example, before Opening Statements, a hearing outside the presence of the jury was
held where the issue of “minor impact defense” was discussed on the record. (See, RTP, March
18, 2011, attached hereto as Exhibit “9” at pp. 112-129),

During this hearing, Plaintiffs® counsel brought to the Court’s attention the fact that
counsel for the Defendant, in his Opening Statement, might mention the subject of minor impact

by referring to the Defendant’s deposition testimony that the impact of the accident was merely
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“a tap.” Counsel for the Defendant conceded that it was his impression that this Court had not
precluded such an argument:

What happened was, there was a motion to exclude a defense that a minor

impact cannot cause injury. The Plaintiffs’ argument in the motion was

because the defense did not retain a biomechanical engineer they would not
be able to argue the general proposition that minor impacts cannot cause
injury.

The defense appeared at the hearing and said, ‘This is not a biomechanical
case, The defense is not going to argue that no minor impact can cause

injury. The defense is that this minor impact did not cause injury.
(See Exhibit “9” at p. 114)(Emphasis Added).

Thus, it was evident that the Defendant intended to present a minor impact defense,
despite the Court’s Order to the contrary. ~ Therefore, after further argument by counsel, the
Court reiterated its ruling on the Motion in Limine precluding a “minor impact™ defense and
precluded any references in Opening Statement or otherwise that the impact was minor in order
to imply that the accident was too minor to cause William’s injuries. (See Exhibit “9* at p. 125-
28).

Unfortunately, in spite of the Court’s March 18, 2011 instructions, the defense still
persisted in arguing a “minor impact defense.” In fact, on March 21, 2011, the first court day
following the hearing set forth above, the issue of “minor impact” was again raised outside the
presence of the jury immediately following Plaintiffs’ Opening Statement. Once again, the
Defendant sought permission to claim a “minor impact” defense arguing that the “door was
opened” because Plaintiffs’ counsel referred to the accident as a “motor vehicle crash” during
Opening Statement. Notwithstanding this feeble attempt, it was noted that the Plaintiffs did not
refer to the nature of the impact, the severity of the impact, the fact that the impact was
significant enough to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries nor any violence associated with the impact; in
faet, it was noted that Plaintiffs’ counsel did not describe the impact of the vehicles in any way.

See Exhibit “1”), Once again, the defense was put on notice that a “minor impact defense”
g
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should not be mentioned in front of the jury.

Immediately thereafter, however, counsel for the Defendant presented his Opening
Statement and proceeded to attempt to play selected portions of his Defendant’s videotaped
deposition regarding the nature of the accident. Upon Plaintiffs’ objection, a bench conference
was held, during which the Court determined, among other things, that the testimony regarding
the nature of the accident, if offered to show it was a minor impact, would be in violation of this
Court’s pretrial Order. (See Exhibit “1"),

Despite the numerous and consistent instruction from the Court that a “minor impacl
defense” was not allowed, the defense still persisted in its attempts to imply to the jury that the
impact was not severe enough to cause William’s injuries. For example, during Defendant’s
cross-examination of Dr. Jorg Rosler, one of the Plaintiff’s treating pain management physicians,
defense counsel asked the following question:

Do you know anything about what happened to [Defendant] Jenny Rish and
her passengers in this accident?

(See RPT, March 22, 2011 at Exhibit #10,” p. 84).

Before the witness could answer, the Plaintiffs objected, citing this Court's pretrial
motion ruling on “minor impact” as the only potential relevance of defense counsel’s inquiry
would be to raise an inference that the collision could not have been severe enough to cause
William’s injuries since the Defendant or her passengers were not injured. Such an inference
would be directly contrary to this Court’s Order precluding a “minor impact” defense. The
Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained,

Moreover, despite the Court’s preclusion of the above referenced question to Dr, Rosler,
counsel] for Defendant asked an almost identical question of the next treating physician to testify
for Plaintiff, Dr. Patrick McNulty. Within the first two minutes of the Defendant’s cross-

examination of Dr. McNulty, the following questions were asked:
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[Defense Counsel] And you don’t know anything about the car accident
other than what [Plaintiff] told you?

[Dr. McNulty] It was simply he said he had a car accident and that’s when
he — his problems started.

[Defense Counsel] Okay. But did you discuss with him whether he was
able to drive from the scene of the accident?

[Dr. McNulty] No, I really didn’t go into the other — into the other details.
No, I did not discuss that.

[Defense Counsel] Do you know anvthing about the folks in_Jemny
Rish’s ear?

(See RTP 3/25/11 at Exhibit “11,” p. 4) (Emphasis Added).

Plaintiffs’ counsel, of course, objected and counsel for the parties approached the bench.
At the bench conference, defense counsel argued that the inquiry to Dr. McNulty is relevant
because if one were injured in a motor vehicle accident or not, it would be probative of whether
others were injured. (See Exhibit “11” at p.5. Based upon the Court’s prior rulings, such a
position is without merit and was a clear attempt by the defense to circumvent the Court's prior
ruling in spite of muliiple clear instructions to stay away from “minor impact” arguments in front
of the jury. As was argued ad nauseam, there is no correlation between the size of the impact
and the potential for injury to the Plaintiff. There is no correlation between whether the
Defendant or one of her passengers was injured and the potential for injury to the Plaintiff. The
Defendant had no credible or admissible evidence suggesting such a correlation and no expert
testimony to suppott such a proposition, which is required under the evidentiary rules of this
jurisdiction. See NRS 50.275; see also See Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008);
Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168, 390 P.2d 718 (1964) and Choat v. McDorman, 86 Nev. 332, 468
P.2d 354 (1970} ( expert testimony cannot be based upon speculation; rather such testimony
must come from a qualified expert and must be based upon hard data, such as the speed of the
vehicles, the depth of the crush damage based upon a visual inspection of the vehicles, and the
weight and height of the vehicles, to name a few).

Further, the questions asked on cross-examination of Dr. McNulty are especially
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egregious considering that the exact same type of questioning was precluded during the cross-
examination of Dr. Rosler and the Defendant was clearly on notice that this area of inquiry was|
improper; nevertheless, defense counsel persisted in his blatant disregard and disrespect of the
Court’s Order on this matter. In fact, on the same afternoon as Dr. McNulty’s cross-examination,
defense counsel cross-examined Dr. Jaswinder Grover, yet another of William’s treating
physicians. To Plaintiffs’ counsel dismay, during that cross-examination, defense counsel posed
a question of the exact same type that had been precluded by the Court during the cross-
examinations of Drs, Rosler and McNulty:

[Defense Counsel] You know the Plaintiff wasn’t transported by

ambulance.

[Dr. Grover] Yes, sir.

[Defense Counsel] You know [whether] Jenny Rish —

[Plaintiff’s Counsel] Objection, Your Honor.

[Defense Counsel] — was lifted from the scene?
(See Exhibit “11” at p, 141).

Defense counsel’s deliberate choice to pose this question to Dr. Grover, considering all
that took place beforehand including Plaintiffs’ pretrial motion on “minor impact,” Opening
Statements, as well as the cross-examinations of Drs. Rosler and McNulty, 15 simply inexplicable
and evidence of intentional misconduct. Again, the inference that the defense was clearly trying
to communicate to the jury, that the impact was not significant enough to cause William's
injuries, had been precluded because the Defendant had no expert witness or admissible evidence
to support that inference. See NRS 50.275; see also Hallmark, Levine, and Chout, supra.
Plaintiffs’ objection was, once again, sustained.

Foliowing the testimony of Dr. Grover, outside the presence of the jury, Plaintiffs’
argued to the Court that after all the violations that had transpired against the Court’s pretrial

Order, as wcll as the clear instructions to the defense given during trial, progressive sanctions

should be issued for any further violations of the Order excluding the “minor impact defense.
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{(See Exhibit “11” at pp. 164-65).

At the conclusion of the hearing outside the presence of the jury, the Court made it clear
to the defense that the subject violations were continuous and that the Court would take
necessary measures if the violations persisted. The Court specifically stated:

I think you’re right, and I think that the defense is on notice. I think the
Order is very clear. I think it clearly has been violated. | was really
surprised to hear a question posed of [Dr. Grover] regarding Ms. Rish when
the Court sustained a previous question regarding Ms. Rish of another
witness and ruled that that was not relevant. So [ was really surprised to
hear that very same question posed as to Ms. Rish.

So I don’t know. It does seem to be at this point to be deliberate, Mr.
Rogers. And so, I'm inclined to agree that you 're on notice. The Court will
consider progressive sanctions. 1 don’t know what they will be. 1 hope
there won’t have to be any assessed. But I don't know what else to do 1o try
to get you to comply with the Court’s previous Orders.

{See Exhibit “11” at pp. 166-167) (Emphasis Added).

Next, due to certain scheduling conflicts and in the spirit of cooperation, Plaintiffs agreed

004446

to allow the defense to call one of her medical expert witnesses, Dr. David Fish, to testify out of
order during Plaintiffs’ case-in-chief. Plaintiffs’ counsel requested, and the Court permitied, (o
voir dire Dr. Fish to ensure he was aware of the Court’s previous rulings, especially the Order
granting the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine to Limit the Testimony of Dr. Fish. (See RTP March
24,2011 at Exhibit “12,” pp. 12-30).

It was discovered during voir dire that Dr. Fish was unaware of practically every pretrial
Order entered by this Court, including:

1) Plaintiff’s unrelated 2003 motorcycle accident;

2) Plaintiff’s unrelated 2008 motor vehicle accident;

3) Plaintiff’s unrelated medical conditions;

4) Any suggestion of secondary gain, symptom magnification or malingering,;

5) Sub rosa video surveillance of Plaintiff (ruling deferred until the conclusion of

-16-.
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Plaintiff’s direct examination);

6) Dr. Fish’s testimony regarding biomechanical opinions related to the accident.
(See Id.; see also Exhibit “17),

The Court, therefore, unambiguously placed Dr. Fish and the Defendant on notice that
violations of the Court’s pretrial Orders carried the possibility of sanctions, including striking the
testimony of Dr. Fish in its entirety. (See Exhibit “12” at p. 15).

Nevertheless, Dr. Fish violated rulings on “minor impact” during cross-examination.

!
When presented with contrary testimony on issues of medicine in prior depositions from other

cases, Dr. Fish responded by suggesting that the instant accident was not a “significant accident.”
(See RTP March 28, 2011 at Exhibit *13,” p.71-72).

As if this violation was not enough, at the end of the Defendant’s redirect examination,
Dr. Fish was asked by the defense to summarize his opinions on causation:

[Defense Counsel] ...Doctor, how is it that you can reach an opinion to a
medical probability that this accident didn’t cause the pain that [the
Plaintiff] complained of following this accident?

[Dr. Fish] Well, it’s based on multiple factors. It’s based on the actual —
looking at the images of the MRI. It’s looking at the discogram and the
results of the discogram. It’s looking at the pattern of pain. It’s looking at
the notes that were taken of the events that happened and it’s knowing
about the accident itself, '

(See Exhibit “13,” p.87) (Emphasis Added).

The Court noted that based on its observation of Dr. Fish's testimony, there is no
question that Dr. Fish’s response, which clearly violated the Court’s Order, was deliberate. (See
Exhibit “1”). Plaintiff’s objection to Dr. Fish’s testimony was sustained, and the jury was
admonished to disregard the final statement in Dr. Fish’s response. (See Exhibit *“13” at p. 88).

3. The Court’s Irrebuttable Instruction to the Jury was an Appropriate Sanction.

Given Dr. Fish's violation of the Court’s Order in spite of the clear instruction and

warning provided by the Court, a hearing outside the presence of the jury was subsequently held
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in order to consider a progressive sanction against the Defendant, just as was warned would
occur following Defendant’s counsel’s continuous and systematic violationé during the cross-
examination of William’s treating physicians. Although Plaintiff’s counsel believed that striking
the Defendant’s Answer was within the Court’s discretion based upon the numerous and blatant
violations, the Plaintiff offered as an alternative a special instruction to the jury directing them td
presume that the accident in question was of a sufficient quality to have caused the injuries of
which Plaintiff complained. (See Exhibit “9” RTP at pp. 89-112). Plaintiffs’ request was
granted and an irrebuttable presumption instruction was read to the jury as a curative instruction,
the need for which was caused by the above referenced violations.

The Court did not err in granting the curative instruction request based upon Young v.
Ribeiro Building, Inc., 106 Nev. 88 (1990). In Young, the Nevada Supreme Court reiterated that
trial courts have inherent equitable powers to issue sanctions for abusive litigation practices. id.
at 92. Before issuing such sanctipns, a trial court should carefully consider the factors
announced in Young, although no single factor is necessarily dispositive and each of the non-
exhaustive factors should be examined in the light of the case before the trial court. Id As
outlined during the hearing by counsel, as well as in the Order signed by the Court, each of the
Young factors were considered in addressing the subject sanction. (See Exhibit “1%). The
Court’s consideration was as follows:

a) Depree of willfulness of the violations

The trial court correctly found that the violations of the pretrial Orders were continuous
and systematic. As set forth above, the Defendant was clearly on notice of the Court’s Order
regarding this “minor- impact” defense yet the Defendant violated this particular Order on
numerous occasions. Based on the sheer number of violations of the same order in the same

fashion, the Court could only conclude that such violations were willful in nature, (See Exhibit
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“1”). Rather than comply with the Court’s orders, the Defendant intentionally disregarded them.

b) The extent to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser
sanction

As was evidenced by the record of the events in guestion, no lesser sanction had been
successful in precluding future violations by Defendant despite being instructed on numerous
occasions to not present a “minor impact defense.” The Court consistently sustained Plaintiffs’
objections, striking improper questions and answers. As this Court recognized in its Order, “[a]t
some point, simply directing jurors to disreQard continuous violations of pretrial Orders is
insufficient.” (See Exhibit “1%).

Notwithstanding Plaintiffs’ counsel’s belief that the violations to that point were
sufficient to warrant the case conciuding sanction of striking the Defendant’s Answer, the Court
instead considered the lesser sanction of the presumption instruction as a curative measure. (See
Exhibit “1%).

c} The severity of a sanction of dismissal relative to the severity of the abuse

Again, at the time of imposing the irrebuttable presumption instruction sanction, the
alternative request of whether striking Defendant’s Answer would be an appropriate response to
Defendant’s continuous violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders was contemplated. While the
abuse to that point was systematic and severe, the Court, in its discretion, determined that a
progressive sanction would be appropriate before consideration of a case concluding sanction.
(See Exhibit “17),

d) The feasibility and fairness of an altemnative, lesser sanction

Despite Plaintiffs’ requests, the Court, at that time, considered the feasibility and fairness
of a lesser sanction and determined that the irrebuttable presumption instruction requested by
Plaintiffs appropriately addressed the nature of the violations of the Court’s Order precluding

evidence to support a “minor impact” defense. (See Exhibit “17).
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An irrebuttable presumption is a presumption that cannot be overcome by any additional
evidence or argument, Employers Insurance Co. of Nevada v. Daniels, 122 Nev, 1009, 1013-16,
frn. 15 (2006), quoting Black’s Law Dictionary 1223 (8" ed. 2004),

Importantly, the Court noted during the sanction hearing, the Order granting the Motion
in Limine was based on the Defendant’s complete lack of evidence bearing on a “minor impact”
defense:

{Court] But the point of the matter was that Defense had no witness who
could testify that this was a minor impact and no witness who could testify
that this was a minor impact that could not have caused the injuries to
Plaintiff, that Plaintiff sustained. Defense simply didn’t have any witnesses
to so testify. That’s why the motion in limine was granted.

{See Exhibit “13”, p. 104).

In short, the Defendant had no admissible, credible evidence to offer to support a “minor
impact™ defense, and the irrebutlable presumption instruction was appropriate to communicate to
the jury what the Defendant failed to comprehend throughout the trial: there is no evidence to
suggest that the impact in this accident was too minor to cause the injuries the Plaintiff claims to

have suffered, (See Exhibit “1%).

¢) The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

Mindful of this policy, the Court initially declined to grant Plaintiffs’ request to strike the
Defendant’s Answer and instead issued the irrebuttable presumption instruction. (See Exhibit
w1y,

Notably, since the Defendant conceded responsibility for the accident, the “merits™ of this
case for the trier of fact to adjudicate were limited to the amount of damages suffered as a resuit
of the accident. Since the Defendant had no evidence to support a contention that the nature of
the impact in the accident was relevant to the amount of damagcs, the issues for the trier of fact

were not materially affected by the irrebuttable presumption instruction. (See Exhibit “17),
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f) Whether sanctions unfairly penalize a party for the misconduct of her attorney

The key to this factor from Young is whether the Defendant is unfairly penalized for her
attorney’s misconduct. However, the irrebuttable presumption instruction imposed as a sanction
by the Court did not unfairly penalize the Defendant. It simply allowed the jury to irrebuttably
presume the very fact that Defendant had no admissible evidence to rebut — that the motor
vehicle accident was sufficient in character and quality to have caused the injuries suffered by
the Plaintiff. (See Exhibit “1”).

Additionally, the special instruction to the jury still allowed it to consider whether the
accident in question actually and proximately caused William’s injuries. Th.e only presumption
was that the accident was sufficient in character and quality to have potentially done so. The
only issue eliminated or restricted by the irrebuttable presumption instruction was the “minor
impact” defense for which Defendant had no evidence to support. (See Exhibit <1).

g} The need to deter patties and future litigants

As demonstrated, the sanctions issued by the Court prior to the irrebuttable presumption,
meant to deter Defendant’s defiant conduct, were proven unsuccessful. Although this particular
factor was not dispositive in determining that the special instruction to the jury was warranted,
the Court hoped that this progressive sanction would at least deter the Defendant from continuing
to violate the Orders of this Court; it did not, however. (See Exhibit “1*).

As set forth above, before making the discretionary ruling to issue the curative instruction
to the jury, the Court examined the relevant facts, applied a proper standard of law and used a
demonstratively rational process to reach a reasonable conclusion. See, Bass-Davis v. Davis, 122
Nev, 442, 447-48 (2006). (See Exhibit “1”).

1
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4. The Court’s Order Striking Defendant’s Answer Based on Repeated Violations of
This_Court’s_Pretrial Orders was an Appropriate Exercise of Discretion and Not

Error.

During the hearing on March 28, 2011, that led to the special instruction in lieu of the
Plaintiffs’ request to strike Defendant’s Answer, counsel for the Plaintiffs argued that any further
violation of Orders should result in striking the Defendant’s Answer (See Exhibit “13” at p. 97).

This, however, did not seem to deter Defendant in the least given the fact that defense

counsel, once again, violated the “minor impact” defense Order the first moment that an

004452

opportunity presented itself. As the Court stated in its Decision and Order:

During the Defendant’s cross-examination of William, counsel asked
about circumstances surrounding the accident, including questions
regarding the stop-and-go nature of traffic on the freeway before the
accident took place. The Plaintiffs objected, and a bench conference
ensued.

At the bench conference, the Plaintiffs asked for an offer of proof of what
potential relevance the speed of the vehicles would have, ather than to
suggest an inference that the impact of the collision was insufficient to
cause the Plaintiff’s injuries (RTP March 31, 2011 at pp. 92-95). Counsel
for the Defendant failed to offer during the bench conference a sufficient
explanation of how the speed of the vehicles prior to the collision has a
tendency to make the existence of any fact of consequence more or less
probable, see, NRS 48.015, other than to suggest a minor impact. (RTP
March 28, 2011 at p. 94-96).

See Exhibit “1,” pp. 23-24.

Defense counsel then proceeded to intentionally violate the Court’s clear and

unambiguous order to refrain from arguing a “minor impact” defense. The questioning went as

follows:

[Defense Counsel] Now, we’ve heard several times through this trial that
an ambulance came to the scene.

(Mr. Simao] Yes.

[Defense Counsel] And that you declined treatment.

[Mr. Simao] [ did.

[Defense Counsel] And the paramedics didn’t transport anyone from
Mrs. Rish’s car?

22
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(See RTP March 31, 2011 at Exhibit “14,” p. 98) (Emphasis Added).
As this was the same type of question that the defense had been continuously ordered to
refrain from during the cross-examinations of Drs. Rosler, McNulty, and Grover, as well as Dr.
Fish, an immediate objection was interposed by Plaintiffs’ counsel and a brief bench conference
was convened before this Court excused the jury and addressed the matter on the record outside

their presence. As the cowrt stated in it’s Order striking the Answer:

During the hearing outside the jury’s presence, counsel for the Plaintiffs again
made an exhaustive record of all of the occasions this Court had to direct and
admonish Defendant not to address “minor impact” issues as a result of this
Court's previous Orders. A significant record was made of the notice provided to
the Defendants that not only was the conduct violative of this Court’s Order, but
further that the Plaintiffs would be asking the Court to strike the Defendant’s
Answer as a sanction therefore (RTP March 28, 2011 at pp.101-105).

The response from the Defendantwas essentially that she should not be precluded
from any discussion of the accident in question. Such an argument, this Court
noted, misses the point and unfairly and incorrectly broadens the scope of the
pretrial Order. An incorrect summary of the Court’s Order that any and all
discussion of the accident in question is precluded is vastly different from
questioning four separate witnesses as to whether anyone from the Defendant’s
vehicle was injured in the crash. On this issue, the Court’s prior pronouncements
could not have been clearer.

See Exhibit “1,” p.24-25.
The trial Court then analyzed the appropriate legal authority in its Order granting the

Motion 1o Strike the Answer.

As set forth above, the Nevada Supreme Court in Young reiterated that trial courts
have inherent equitable powers to issue sanctions for abusive litigation practices,
including case concluding sanctions such as dismissal or the striking of
pleadings. Young supra at 92. Case concluding sanctions are subject to a
“somewhat heightened standard of review,” Id.; Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d
1042, 1048 (Nev. 2010), to determine if the sanctions are just and relate to the
claims at issue.

Before issuing such sanctions, a trial court should carefully consider the factors
announced in Young, although no single factor is necessarily dispositive and each
of the non-exhaustive factors should be examined in the light of the case before
the trial court. Young, supra at 92. Additionally, case concluding sanctions shall
be supported by an express, careful and preferably written explanation of the trial

-23-
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court’s analysis of the Young factors, Id. at 93; Bahena v. Goodyear Tire &

Rubber Co., 235 P.3d 592, 598 (Nev. 2010), rehearing denied, 245 P.3d 1182

(2010).

See Exhibit “1,” pp. 25-26.

Accordingly, the Court carefully considered the multitude of violations that had
transpired from the outset of trial before granting Plaintiffs’ request to strike the Defendant’s
Answer. The Court’s consideration of the Young factors, although similar in many respects to
the consideration of the same factors three days earlier at the time of the irrebuttable presumption

sanction, includes the following:

a) Degree of willfulness of the violations

A violation of an Order on a motion in limine may serve as a basis for some type of
sanction if the Order is specific in its prohibition and the violation is clear. BMW v. Roth, 127
Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12, citing to Black v. Schultz,.530 F.3d 702, 706 (8" Cir. 2008). As set forth
previously, the violations of this Court’s clear and unambiguous Orders were continuous,
systematic and pervasive. Such violations include, but are not limited to, the following, as
quoted by trial Court in its Order:

i Violation of Order precluding evidence of “medical build-up”
during Opening Statement;

ii. Violation of Order precluding evidence of “medical build-up”
during the testimony of Dr. Patrick McNulty;

iii. Violation of Order precluding evidence of unrelated accidents
during Opening Statement;

iv, Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of
“minor impact” defense during Opening Statement;

V. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of
“minor impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jorg Rosler (question regarding
injuries to the Defendant or her passengers);

Vi Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of
“minor impact” defense during testimony of Dr, Patrick McNulty (question
-24 -
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regarding injuries to Defendant or her passengers);

vii.  Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of
“minor impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jaswinder Grover (question
regarding injuries to Defendant or her passengers);

viii.  Defendant’s abject failure to apprise defense expert Dr. David Fish
of court’s rulings on all motions in limine;

ix. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of

“minor impact” defense during testimony of Dr, David Fish (question and answer

regarding the nature of the accident);

X. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of

“minor impact” defense during testimony of Plaintiff William Simao {(question

regarding injuries to the Defendant or her passengers);
See Exhibit 17,

The Court considered these violations of the Court’s Order precluding the “minor
impact” defense to be even more egregious given the numerous hearings outside the presence of
the jury during which the Court repeatedly and unequivocally prohibited the areas of inquiry
subsequently broached by counsel for Defendant. Those hearings as found by the Court, include:

i. Hearing on the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine, March 1, 2011!;

kL]

il. Hearing outside the presence of jury to discuss “minor impact,
March 18, 2011;

iii. Hearing outside the presence of jury to discuss whether the
Plaintiffs opened the door to “minor impact™ defense during Opening Statement,
March 21, 2011;

iv. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr.
Rosler regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 22,
2011,

V. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr.
McNulty regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25,
2011,

vi. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr.
Grover regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25,
2011,

25-. .
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vii.  Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact™
defense and the Plaintiffs’ notice of seeking progressive sanctions, March 25,
2011;

viii.,  Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr.
Fish which resulted in response citing to the nature of the impact, March 28,
2011,

ix. Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact™
defense and the Plaintiffs’ request for irrebuttable presumption instruction for the
Defendant’s continued violations of Court’s Order, March 28, 2011;

X. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of
Plaintiff William Simao regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s
vehicle, March 31, 2011.

See Exhibit “1¥.
In its Order, the Court clearly identified its basis for determining that the violations were

willful and deliberate:

At the hearing on the Plainliffs' oral motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer, this
Court characterized the continuing violations as having been “willfull, deliberate,
fand] abusive,” (RTP March 31, 2011, pp. 111-12), based on the fact that counsel
for Defendant “refuses to comply with this Court’s rulings” (RTP March 31,
2011, p. 112). Particularly disturbing was counsel for Defendant’s systematic
insistence upon asking the Plaintiff and three separate treating doctors whether
they were aware of any injuries to passengers in the Defendant’s vehicle, despite
this Court’s clear preclusion of that inquiry after each instance of misconduct.

See Exhibit “1,” p.28-29.

b) The extent to which the non-offendi arty would be prejudiced by a lesser

sanction

As has been made clear given the history of this matter, the imposition of lesser sanctions
did not act to curb the Defendant’s violations of the Court’s pretrial Orders. An attorney’s
violation of an Order on a motion in limine is misconduct which justifies evidentiary sanctions or
even a new trial. See, BMW v. Roth, 127 Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12; Lioce v. Cohen, 124 Nev. |
(2008). Although Nevada precedent does not follow the federal model of requiring progressive

sanctions before imposing a case concluding sanction, see, Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber,

- 26~
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supra, 245 P.3d at 1184-85, the trial Court nevertheless imposed progressive sanctions against
the Defendant including the irrebuttable presumption instruction, although to no avail. The
defense literally forced the Court to issue case concluding sanctions as it was shown time and
time again that nothing the Court could fashion, short of a case concluding sanction, would be
successful to halt Defendant’s violations of pretrial Orders. (See Exhibit “1™).

As set forth in the Court's Order, the frequency of the Defendant’s violations, all of
which occurred in front of the jury, severely prejudiced Plaintiffs by having this issue repeatedly
brought to the jury’s attention, Certainly in the eyes of the jury, the Plaintiffs were preventing
the jury from hearing about the significance of the impact, when in fact this Court had
determined that a “minor impact” defense was unavailable to the Defendants given the lack of
evidence (and expert testimony) to support such a defense. (See Exhibit “1™). In reliance upon
the Court’s Order granting the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine, the Plaintiffs had released their
biomechanical expert and had neither mentioned his name nor offered his opinions in Opening
Statement. The Plaintiffs had relied on this Court’s Order that no “minor impact” defensc would
be presented to the jury. The Plaintiffs had further relied on the fact that such a ruling would be
upheld by the Court during the course of trial. The unfair prejudice to the Plaintiffs was clearly
shown. See, Roth, supra. (See Exhibit “17). The trial court recognized the prejudice to the
plaintiffs in its Order:

This Court also recognizes the prejudice to the Plaintiffs in making objection after

objection to the Defendant’s inappropriate questions. “[When...an attorney must

continuously object to repeated or persistent misconduct, the non-offending
attorney is placed in the difficult position of having to make repeated objections

before the trier of fact, which might cast a negative impression on the aftorney

and the party the attorney represents, emphasizing the improper point.” Lioce v.

Cohen, 174 P3d 970, 981 (Nev. 2008).

As such, it is the finding of this Court that Plaintiffs would be unfairly prejudiced

by the continuous introduction of questions, evidence and argument designhed to

create an inference that the subject motor vehicle accident was too minor to cause
the Plaintiff’s injuries.

_27-.

004457

004457



841700

MAINOR EGLET

continuing to violate the Orders of the Court. Although the defense will likely disagree,

004458

See Exhibit “1,” p.30.

¢) The severity of a sanction of striking Defendant’s Answer relative to the
severity of the abuse

The Court appropriately considered this prong of the Young test, as reflected by the
Court’s Order:

Again, the pervasive and continuous nature of these violations warranted the

sanction ultimately imposed. Every litigant has the right to disagree with any

ruling made or Order entered by a trial court. His remedy is with an appellate

coutt, based upon reasonable grounds as the law requires. His remedy is never to
just continue violating the Orders unchecked.

See Exhibit “1,” p.30.

d) The feasibility and fairmess of an alternative, lesser sanction

Unfortunately, alternative lesser sanctions were rejected by the Defendant in favor of

Plaintiffs’ counsel always suspected that the multiple violations of the Cowrt’s pretrial Orders

004458

were an attempt by Defendant to obtain a mistrial. When the Plaintiffs first asked this Court to
strike the Defendant’s Answer on March 28, 2011, the Court considered this factor from the
Young decision to impose an alternative lesser sanction of an irrebuttable presumption
instruction.

As this Court indicated at the hearing on the Plaintiffs’ second oral request to the strike
Defendant’s Answer:

[Court] Regarding the feasibility and fairness of an alternative, lesser
sanction, you know, the only thing 1 can say is less severe sanctions were
imposed to no avail.

(RTP March 31, 2011 at p. 113).

This analysis is bolstered by the fact that the Plaintiffs requested that the Court
strike the Defendant’s Answer three days earlier and put the Defendant on notice
that they would seek to strike the Defendant’s Answer should any future
violations occur.

See Exhibit “1,” pp. 30-31.
' T - 228
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e) The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

It was clearly the Court’s intention to have this matter adjudicated on its merits which is
evidence by the Court opting for less severe sanctions for all of the violations prior to March 31,
2011, However, even the irrebuttable presumption instruction given as a lesser, alternative
sanction did not prevent the Defendant from presenting any defense that they actually had
evidence to present. It is also worth noting that the Defendant had already agreed on the record
not to challenge liability for the accident. (See Exhibit *17),

As the Court stated in its Order:

Further, this Court recognizes that the Nevada Supreme Court has upheld the

striking of pleadings for a party’s failure to attend his deposition, Foster v.

Dingwall, supra; for repetitive, abusive and recalcitrant conduct during discovery,

Young, supra; Hamlett v. Reynolds, 114 Nev. 863 (1998) (upholding the trial

court’s strike order where the defaulting party’s constant failure to follow the

court’s orders was unexplained and unwarranted); for a party’s continued failure

to appear at scheduled court proceedings, Durange Fire Protection, Inc. v.

Troncoso, 120 Nev. 658, 662 (2004); and for the failure to abide by rulings of the

Discovery Commissioner, Bakena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber, supra.

Additionally, the Nevada Supreme Court has approved consideration of the Young

factors as a guide to trial courts for sanctions grounded in violations of court

orders at trial. See, Romo v. Keplinger, 115 Nev. 94, 97 (15999).

The willful and deliberate violations of this Court’s Orders are equally as

egregious as any discovery violation, especially given the fact that the repeated

violations in the instant case occurred in front of the jury.
See Exhibit “1,” p.31-32,

Therefore, a trial court can only do so much in allowing cases to be adjudicated on their
merits. However, when a party blatantly disregards order upon order, in front of the jury, and no
lesser sanction has proven to deter such conduct, a court has no other option but to issue case
concluding sanctions as a result. Furthermore, when a case spins out of control due to a party’s

refusal to abide by the law of the case as dictated by the court’s rulings, as is the case here,

adjudication on the merits is impossible given the severily of prejudice that is bestowed upon the
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non-offending party, The trial Court appropriately sanctioned Defendant by striking her Answer.
f} The need to deter parties and future litigants

Given its inherent powers derived from the Nevada Constitution and strong case
precedent, it would have been an utter disgrace for the Court to allow litigants to openly and
deliberately abuse the litigation process by disregarding Court Ovders when convenijent OIJ
tactically advantageous to do so, especially when unfair prejudice to the non-offending party
results. (See Exhibit “17),

After the Court’s review and consideration of all of the various factors set forth supra,
gach and every one of the sanctions employed by the Court for Defendant’s intentional,
deliberate, abusive and unfairly prejudicial conduct are more than warranied, including the
employment of the ultimate sanction of striking the Defendant’s Answer. (See Exhibit “1%).

As the Court noted, “[iJt is immaterial whether, as the Plaintiffs suggested several times
during the trial, it was the true intention of the Defendant to force or goad the Plaintiffs to seck a
mistrial, What is material is that the deliberate conduct of counsel for the Defendant in
disregarding and violating Court Orders could not be halted by this Court with any other
sanction. Neither sustained objections, a multitude of hearings outside the presence of the jury,
nor progressive sanctions deterred the Defendant’s disregard 1o Orders of this Court.” (See
Exhibit “17).

5. It Was Not Error to Dismiss the Jury and Hold Default Judgment Proceedings after

Defendant’s Answer was Stricken.

While Plaintiffs do not dispute that a jury, under normal circumstances, is the trier of fact
who is to render a verdict on the evidence presented to it, under the circumstances of this case
the Court was well within its discretion to enter defauit after Defendant’s Answer was stricken
due to the abusive litigation practices that teok place at trial.

Ample authority exists setting forth a court’s discretion to enter default after an Answer

-30-

" 004460

004460




197100

MAINOR EGLET

s
i

4

wN

19

has been stricken for abusive litigation practices. Hamlett v. Reynolds, 114 Nev. 863 (1998). In
Hamlett, the Nevada Supreme Court struck Hamlett’s Answer as a sanction for his continued
fajlure to comply with discovery orders pursuant to Young v. Ribeiro Building, supra; see also

Durango Fire Protection, Inc., supra, Bahena, supra., and Romo, supra.

As the Court clearly outlined:

In Foster v. Dingwall, supra, the Nevada Supreme Court clearly stated the
standard for proving up damages after a default is entered as a sanction. During
the prove-up hearing, this Court considers the allegations deemed admitted by the
fact of the default to determine if the Plaintiff has established a prima facie case
for liability. Foster, supra, 227 P.3d at 1049-50. A prima facie case is defined as
sufficiency of evidence in order to send the question to the jury. Id at 1050. In
the instant case, Defendant Rish admitted responsibility for the accident and
stipulated to liability. What was left was a determination of the Plaintiffs’
damages, and the Plaintiffs requested that this Court take notice of the evidence
that had been presented in the preceding ten (10) days of testimony. Even though
allegations in the pleadings are deemed admitted as a result of the entry of default,
the admission does not relieve the non-offending party’s obligation to present
substantial evidence of the amount of damages suffered by both of the Plaintiffs.
Id  The Court, having reviewed the evidence and concluding that a prima facie
case had been established by both Plaintiffs, it was determined that the Plaintiffs
are entitled to damages for the harms proximately caused by the motor vehicle
accident.

See Exhibit *1,” p.33-34.
Defendant’s argument that the jury was entitled to determine that the accident did not
cause Plaintiffs’ injuries is based, as always, on the exclusion of the “minor impact” defense,
arguing that because the doctors did not do an accident reconstruction analysis, ““it was within the
province of the jury to conclude that it is unlikely that THIS minor impact was the event that
genuinely caused the plaintiff’s pain complaints.” (See Defendant’s Motion at p. 18)(Emphasis
Original). Again, Defendant is missing the vital point in the Court’s exclusion of the “minor
impact” defense which is, a lay person, notwithstanding all the common sense in the world, is
uneducated, untrained, and not knowledgeable in accident dynamics and the effect a motor

vehicle collision, even a minor one, can have on a particular human body; therefore, a qualified

-31-

004461

004461

004461




29vv00

MAINOR EGLET

004462

expert witness is required to present this sort of evidence to the jury. See NRS 50.275. Without
a qualified expert witness to present such evidence, it is inadmissible because unqualified
testimony from a lay witness/party is simply unreliable and will lead to confusion of the issues
and misleading of the jury. See NRS 48.035; see also Hallmark, Levine and Choat, supra.

Defendant’s citation to out-of-jurisdiction cases such as Brenmarn v. Demeilo, 921 A.2d
1110 (N.J. 2007); Fronabarger v. Burns, 385 IlL.App.3d 560, 895 N.E.2d 1125 (Il App.Ct.
2008), or, Ferro v. Griffiths, 361 1lL.App.3d 738, 742, 297 Ill. Dec. 194, 836 N.E.2d 925 (2005),
are unavailing to this discussion:

First and foremost, the law in Nevada, which is the only binding authority upon this
Court, holds that a qualified expert witness, who possesses the skill, experience, training or
education, is required for all topics that involve scientific, technical, or specialized knowledge.
See NRS 50.275; see also Hallmark, supra. Furthermore, a lay witness is only permitted to
testify to matters rationally based upon perception and helpful to a clear understanding of the
testimony or the determination of a fact in issue. See NRS 50.265. With regard to matters
involving scientific, technical, or specialized knowledge, a lay witness would not be able to give
rationally based and offer helpful information to a clear understanding because the lay witness
will simply not know or understand the complexity of the issue and therefore not be able to
present the evidence in a reliable manner beyond speculation. NRS 48.035(1) excludes all
evidence, even if relevant, if that evidence has the tendency to confuse the issues and misiead the
jury. Lay witness testimony on matters that are scientific, technical, and/or specialized, such as
whether William was or could have been injured in a minor impact collision, would certainly
confuse and mislead the jury. Moreover, as the underlying issue is directly related to medical
causation, the Supreme Court of Nevada’s holding in Morsicato v. Sav-On Drug Stores, Inc., 121

Nev. 153, 158 (Nev. 2005), unequivocally requires that testimony related to causation of injury
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must be stated to a reasonable degree of medical probability. For a lay witness to state or
suggest that the injuries complained of by a plaintiff could not have been caused by a collision
because the forces were not significant completely undermines the well-established principles
requiring expert testimony on matters outside of the ordinary knowledge of lay persous, such as
medical causation. Accordingly, this Court properly excluded the “minor impact” defense,
which logically includes any attempt to imply to the jury, directly or indirectly, that Wiiliam
could not have been hurt in the subject motor vehicle collision.

Further, if laypersons were permitted to testify regarding incident dynamics and their
personal opinions regarding whether an injury can arise from a particular event, there would be
no need for an expert of any type at trial and the resulting consequence would be a chaotic free-
for-all of speculation, conjecture, and guesswork, which in turn would result in absurd and
inequitable jury verdicts. Clearly, Nevada's evidentiary rules are designed to only permit
reliable testimony and evidence in order to avoid jury verdicts based upon speculation. Here, the
Court’s exclusion of the “minor impact” defense was based upon the fundamental evidentiary
principles to only allow reliable evidence to reach the jury. Because the Defendant was
relentless in arguing “minor-impact” regardless of the Court’s clear Order and admonishinents to
the contrary, the Court had no other choice but to strike Defendant’s Answer, enter default
according to NRCP 55, and render a judgment based upon the evidence that had been presented
over the course of ten (10) trial days, plus Plaintiffs’ presentation at the default proccedings.

The authority cited to by the defense is simply not the law in Nevada. Although the
Supreme Court of New Jersey in Brenman held that “the fundamental relationship between the
force of impact in an automobile accident and the existence of extent of any resulting injuries
does not necessarily require “scientific, technical, or other specialized knowledge,” ({d. at 1120),

it did recognize that other jurisdiction have a different outlook on the matter. /d. at 1116). In
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fact, one of the New Jersey Supreme Court Justices disagreed with the majority of that Court,

stating:

To be sure, it is common nature for a fact-finder to conclude from a
photograph depicting minor vehicle damage that the resulting injuries were
also minor. However, that inclination should not influence the admissibility
of the photographs. 1 agree with the Appellate Division that "photographs
depicting slight vehicular damage, although conceivably serving other valid
purposes, simply do not support, without corroborative expert proof, the
inference that the accident could not have caused the serious injury of which
a plaintiff complains." Brenman v. Demello, 383 N.J. Super. 521, 533, 892
A.2d 741 (App. Div. 2006).

In this case, the issue was causation of plaintiff's injuries. Because the
parties failed to present expert proof demonstrating that the slight damage to
the vehicle could not have caused plaintiff's serious injuries, the
photographs should not have been admitted without restrictions on their use.
In my view, the Appellate Division struck the proper balance in holding
that: photographic evidence is neither automatically admissible nor
excludable, but rather subject to the sound exercise of the frial court's
discretion. Whether an expert foundation is required depends, of course, on
the particular issue in the case to which the photographic evidence relates.
Here, that issue was causation and because no expert proof of correlation
was produced, we hold that the introduction of the photographs without
restriction on their use and the use actually made of them by the defense
constitute reversible error.

Id at1121-1122.

to the laws of Nevada. In Davis, the irial Court erred in allowing the Defendant to improperly
argue that the insignificance of that motor vehicle collision is suggestive that any resultant injury

would also be minor.

Importantly, Davis v. Maute, 770 A.2d 36 (Del. 2001), cited to by Brenman, is more akin

Delaware held:

We hold that, in general, counsel may not argue that there is a correlation
between the extent of the damage to the awtomobiles in an accident and the
extent of the occupants' personal injuries caused by the accident in the
absence of expeit testimony on the issue. Although counsel in the present
case made this argument by implication rather than directly, we conclude
that the argument was improper. We also conclude that it was error 1o admit
the photographs of the plaintiff's car without a specific instruction limiting
the jury’s use of the photopraphs. Because the trial court failed to provide a
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curative instruction to mitigate the effects of the defendant’s improper
argument, the trial court abused its discretion and a new trial on damages is
required.

Id a1 38.

The Court further reasoned:

As a general rule, a party in a personal injury case may not directly argue
that the seriousness of personal injuries from a car accident correlates to the
extent of the damage to the cars, unless the party can produce competent
expert testimony on the issue. Absent such expert testimony, any inference
by the jury that minimal damage to the plaintiff's car translates into minimal
personal injuries to the plaintiff would necessarily amount to unguided
speculation. Since Maute presented no expert testimony on this issue, the
trial court properly prohibited Maute from making this argument directly.
Id at 40,

This Court’s pretrial ruling on the issue of “minor impact” is consistent with the Davis
and Brenman dissent, but more importantly, is consistent with Nevada law which also preciudes
an inference to be drawn between the severity of a collision and the severity of an injury without
competent and qualified expert opinion. Brenman, therefore, must be disregarded as it promotes
an application of law that is inconsistent with Nevada’s evidentiary rules and case law.

As for the Fronabarger and Ferro decisions cited to by the defense, both of these
decisions are focused upon a trial court’s broad discretion over evidentiary matters. In fact, the

Ferro court stated that a trial court has to determine "whether the photographs make the resulting

injury to the plaintitf more or less probable” and "whether the nature of the damage to the

“vehicles and the injury to the plaintiff are such that a lay person can readily assess their

relationship, it any, without expert interpretation.” Ferro, 361 1ll. App. 3d at 742, This is an
evidentiary question that is left to the discretion of the trial court. Ferro, 361 111. App. 3d at 742,
Neither Fronabarger or Ferro held that it was an abuse of discretion to allow or to disallow
vehicular damage in relation to injury with or without expert testimony; these two (2) courts

simply left it to the discretion of the trial judge.

-2 35.
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Applying this to the instant matter, even if it were appropriate for the defense to argue
“minor impact” to the jury based upon the vehicle’s damage of the force of impact {which it 1s
not in Nevada as set forth above), it certainly cannot be argued that the Court’s exclusion of
“minor impact” evidence was an abuse of discretion and/or plain error warranting a new trial.
Moreover, regardless of the appropriateness of the Court’s exclusion of a “minor impact”
defense, the Defendant was still obliged to follow the Court’s order and then, if she disagreed,
take it up on appeal. The Defendant instead chose to ignore the Court and to continuously and
systematically interject her “minor impact” defense into the minds of the jurors, thereby violating
the Court’s Order on numerous occasions. This rebellious behavior resulted in progressive
sanctions up to the point of striking the Answer and entering Default, all of which were within

this Court’s sound discretion.

B. Defendant’s Argument Concerning the EDCR 7.27 Trial Briefs is Misplaced as
There was No Abuse Warranting a New Trial that Occurred.

EDCR 7.27 reads:
Unless otherwise ordered by the court, an attorney may elect to submit to
the court in any civil case, a trial memoranda of points and authorities prior
to the commencement of trial by delivering one unfiled copy to the court,
without serving opposing counsel or filing the same, provided that the
original trial memoranda of points and authorities must be filed and a copy
must be served upon opposing counsel at or before the close of trial.
Prior to the commencement of trial, as the defense concedes (See Defendant’s Motion at
p- 21), Plaintiffs’ served their EDCR 7.27 briet to the Court. Subsequently, throughout the
course of trial as the need surfaced, Plaintiffs” filed several supplemental trial briefs in order to
provide the Court with the facts and law pertaining to issues that Plaintiffs anticipated would
arise during trial. Despite Defendants’ argunients, the suppletentation of Plaintiffs” EDCR 7.27

trial brief is not prohibited by the Rule and Defendant’s complaints of abuse and resulting

prejudice are simply misplaced.

- 36 -
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l Moroever, Photovest Corp. v. Fotomat Corp., 606 F.2d 704 { 7" Cir. 1979), cited 10 by
2 || the defense, is inapposite to this discussion because that case did not involve the supplementation
3 [ oftrial briefs, rather trial briefs in general. However, it should be noted that the Photovest Court
4 acknowledges that the “delayed exchange of briefs” is not a per se violation of due process
2 protections, although the 7" Circuit stated it prefers that trial briefs are exchanged at the time
v filed with the Court, /d. at 710, Moreover, the Court further held that reversal would not be
8 i warranted because “Fotomat did not cite any prejudice from the delay in service. Indeed. in ali of
9 || its briefs and arguments in this appeal, Fotomat has failed to demonstrate any specific instance of
10 prejudice resulting from the trial briet procedure.™ /d. at 711.

:; Similarly, in Whitaker-Merrell Co., v. Profit Counselors, Inc.. 748 F.2d 354 (6" Cir.
13 [ 1984), the 6" Circuit held that the exchange of ex parte briefs was improper, in_that Circuit but
14 | that because Whitaker-Merrell pointed (o no specific prejudice arising from the court's use of the
15 [ brief and the court considered the error to be harmless. Jd. at 359. The exchange of Trial Brief
16 in this jurisdiction, however, has never been proclaimed to be invalid. Indeed, EDCR 7.27
]1; expressly permits these sort of briefs to be submitted to the Court until the close of trial.
19 | Moreover, even if Plaintiffs’ supplementation of their Trial Briel is improper, the error was
20 | harmless as this Court’s rulings were a proper exercise of the Court’s discretion and are not
21 | contradictory to the law of this jurisdiction.

2 Defendant here bears the burden to prove that an alleged error is prejudicial. Miller v.
zj State, 121 Nev. 92, 99 (Nev. 2005). Merely asserting that an error has occurred without
94 demonstrating that the error was prejudicial fails. /d. Here, the defense has failed to provide this
26 | Court any rational basis to justify a New Trial on any basis, let alone the “supplemental trial
27 | brief” argument asserted. Except for the issue of “minor impact,” the defense has failed to
28 specifically mention any other ruling that poteniial caused her prejudice warranting a New Trial
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based upon Plaintiffs’ supplemental trial briefs.

As for the “minor impact” argument, the facts and law set forth in the sections above
clearly demonstrate that the Court’s exclusion of the “minor impact™ defense was appropriate
considering Nevada's stance on the issue. Unless the defense can demonstrate that the
supplementation of Plaintiffs’ trial brief on this issue has affected her substantial rights, the error
will be regarded as “harmless.” See NRCP 61; see also Glenbrook Homeowners Ass'n v.
Glenbrook Co., 111 Nev. 909, 915 (Nev. 1995).

Here, Defendant has failed to establish that 1) the supplementation of Plaintiffs’ trial brief
was improper or, 2) that the supplementation, if improper, was more than just harmless error.
Accordingly, this item of contention must be disregarded.

As to Defendant’s blanket claim that “in every motion made by Defendant or Plaintift
during trial, Plaintiff submitted arguments 1o the court ex-parte...,” arguing that the Court’s
rulings might have been different otherwise, such an overbroad assertion is improper in any sott
of discussion, let alone on a Motion for New Trial. As has been cautioned by many courts in
this. and other jurisdictions, it behooves litigants, particularly in a case with a record of great
magnitude, 1o resist the temptation to treat judges as if they were pigs sniffing for truffles. See
Downs v. Los Angeles Unified Sch. Dist., 228 F.3d 1003, 1007 n.1 (9th Cir. 2000) (citing United
States v. Dunkel, 927 ¥.2d 955, 956 (7th Cir. 1991)); Dzung Chu v. Oracle Corp. (In re Oracle
Corp. Secs. Litig.), 627 F.3d 376, 386 (Sth Cir. Cal. 2010).

If Defendant had specific arguments regarding Plaintiffs’ supplemental trial briefs and
could point to specific instances where the Court’s rulings would have differed but for the
suppltemental trial briefs, these contentions should have been spelled out for this Court. Because
there is no specific argument concerning which of the rulings and which of the issues Defendant

is contending was incorrect due to the supplemental trial briefs, besides “minor impact,” any
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future argument in Reply by the defense which was not raised in her original Motion, must be
disregarded. See Edwards v. Emperor's Garden Rest., 122 Nev, 317, 330 n.38, 130 P.3d 1280,
1288 (2006) (noting that appellants bear the responsibility to present cogent arguments and
relevant authority in support of their appellate concerns), Weaver v. State, Dep't of Motor
Vehicles, 121 Nev. 494, 502, 117 P.3d 193, 198-99 (2005) (pointing out that the court need not
consider arguments raised for the first time in the reply brief). Dickinson v. Am. Med. Response,
186 P.3d 878 (Nev. 2008); See also Sanchez v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., 221 P.3d 1276 (Nev.
2009)(refusing to consider new arguments that should have been raised beforehand).

C.  All Arguments Concerning Voir Dire Have Been Rendered Moot; But if Not,

Nothing Improper Took Place During Voir Dire Which Would Warrant a New

Trial.

Defendant’s arguments conceming voir dire have been rendered moot considering the
fact that this case never reached the jury for deliberation due to the abusive litigation practices
that occu&ed at trial. See Binakonsky v. Ford Motor Co., 4 Fed. Appx. 161, 165 (4th Cir. Md.
2001)*(holding that because Judgment as a Matter of Law was granted prior to the case going to
the jury, issues pertaining to the manner in which voir dire was conducted is rendered moot).

However, even if not rendered moot, there was nothing regarding the manner in which
voir dire was conducted which can even remotely constitute reversible error.

First, it must be noted, again, that Defendant bears the burden to prove that an alleged
error is prejudicial. See Miller, supra. Defendant has failed to set forth her basis that the striking
of certain jurors was prejudicial and/or revcrsible other than arguing in very broad strokes that it
was entitled to supplemental examination of the stricken jurors. Such a vague argument cannot

meet Defendant’s burden to show that reversible error has accurred.

2See a true and correst copy of Binakoitsky attached at Exhibit *15™). Pursuant toa FRAP 32.1(b) the use of

unpublished opinions issued prior to January 1, 2007 is permitted f)roviding that a copy of the opinion is attached
and that there is no published opinion that would serve as well.
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NoOTC . éﬂw,w..
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG % i

State Bar No. 2376 CLERK OF THE COURT
JOEL D. HENRICD

State Bar No. 8492

LEWIS AND ROCA LLP

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 474-2616

STEPHEN H. ROGERS (SBN 5755)

ROGERS MASTRANGELO CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 170

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

{702) 383-3400

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and Case No. AS539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually and as
husband and wife, Dept. No. XX

Plaintiffs,
vs.

JENNY RISH; JAMES RiSH; LINDA RISH;
DOES Ithrough V; and ROE
Corporations I'through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Please take notice that defendant JENNY RISH hereby appeals to the Supreme
Court of Nevada from:
1. All judgments and orders in this case;
2, “Decision and Order Regarding Plaintiffs’ Motion to Strike Defendant’s
Answer, filed April 22, 20117
3. Judgment, filed April 28, 2011, notice of entry of which was served via
hand delivery on May 2, 2011; and
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4.  All rulings and interlocutory orders made appealable by any of the

foregoing.

DATED this 31% day of May 2011.
LEWIS AND ROCA LLP

By: s/ Daniel F. Polsenber
.~ DaANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376)

LEWIS AND ROCA LLP

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 474-2616
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b), | HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 31% day of May,
2011, I served the foregoing NOTICE OF APPEAL by depositing a copy for mailing,
first-class majl, postage prepaid, at Las Vegas, Nevada, to the following:

ROBERT T. EGLET
DAvVID T. WALL
ROBERT M. ADAMS
MAINOR EGLET .
400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89101
s/ Ma.ri' Kay Carlton
An Employee of Lewis and Roca LLP
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Sujte 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
reglet@mainorlawyers.com
dwall@mainorlawyers.com
badams(@mainorlawyers.com
Attorneys for Plainiiffs

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste. 650
Las Vegas, Nevada 83102

Ph.: (702) 384-4111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Atrorneys for Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAOQO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
v.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;

DOBES I through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS |
through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASENO.: AS539455
DEPT.NO.: X

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a Decision and Order Regarding Plaintiffs’ Motion to
Strike Defendant's Answer was entered in the above-entitled matter on April 22, 2011 and is

attached hereto.

DATED this Rl day of April, 2011.

MAINOR EGLET

RBBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No, 3402

DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

MNevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 ,
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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CERTIFIATE OF MAILING
The undersigned hereby certifies that on the ﬁQ day of April, 2011, a copy of the
above and foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was served by enclosing same in an

envelope with postage prepaid thereon, address and mailed as follows:

. Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELD,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendants
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Ar{\employté'of MAINOR EGLET
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ. | v, Mo

Nevada Bar Np, 3402 CLERK OF THE COURY
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vepas, Nevada 89101

Ph: (702) 450-5400

Fx: (702) 450-5451
dwall@mainorlawyers.com

MATTHEW E. AARON, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 4900

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD.
2300 West Sahara Avenue, Ste.650
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

Ph.: {(702) 3844111

Fx.: (702) 384-8222

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ, individually and | CASE NO.: A539455
CHERYIl, ANN SIMAO, individually, and as | DEPT. NO.: X
hushand and wife,

Plantiffs,
v.
JENNY RISH,

Defendant,

DECISION AND ORDER REGARDING PLAINTIFFS' MOTION TO STRIKE
T’S WER

This matter having come before the Court on March 31, 2011, on Plaintiffs* oral Mation
to SI_rike Defendant's Answer, ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ., DAVID T. WALL, ESQ. and

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ. present for Plaintiffs, WiLLIAM SIMAQ and CHERYL SIMAQ,
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STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. and DANIEL F. POLSENBERG, ESQ. present for Defendant,
JENNY RISH, and following the Court’s oral pronouncement from the bench GRANTING
Plaintiffs’ Motion, the Court hereby enters the following writien Decision and Order:

I. Factual and Procedural Background

This case involves 2 motor vehicle accident occurring on April 15, 2005, The Plaintiff,
WILLIAM SIMAO, was driving southbound on Interstate 15 when he was rear-ended by a
vehicle driven by the Defendant, JENNY RISH. Defendant did not deny causing the accident,
Plaintiff WILLIAM SIMAQO was injured in the accident and brought the instant action, which
included a claim for loss of consortium by WILLIAM SIMAQ’s wife, Plaintiff CHERYL
SIMAO.

This matter was presented for jury trial beginning on March 14, 2011, and the trial had
nearly been completed before the instant Motion was made. However, the facts supporting the
Motion and the grounds upon which to analyze the Motion include rulings made by this Court
before the trial commenced. The Plaintiffs’ oral motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer is
rooted primarily in the Defendant’s repeated violations of this Court’s Order granting the
Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine to Preclude Defendant From Raising a Minor Impact Defense.
However, this Court recognizes that Defendant violated other Orders of this Court during the
trial, and the cumulative effect of such violations is material to the Court’s analysis. Before
ttemizing and analyzing the violations of this Court's Order on “minor impact,” it is necessary to
consider the violations of other Court orders by the Defendant.

A. Violation of Order Precluding Evidence of Unrelated Accidents, Injuries or Medical
Conditions

1. Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine

On January 7, 2011, Plaintiffs brought an Omnibus Motion in Limine, which included a

2
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request to preclude the Defendant from introducing evidence of Prior and Subsequent Unrelated
Accidents, Injuries and Medical Conditions and Prior and Subsequent Claims or Lawsuits. This
portion of the Omnibus Motion in Limine specifically asked this Court to preclude evidence of
an unrelated 2003 rhotorcycle accident involving the Plaintiff, since no medical provider had
connected any of the minor injuries sustained by the Plaintiff in the 2003 motorcycle accident to
any injuries suffered in the instant accident. In short, the evidence established that the
motorcycle accident was irrelevant.

The Defendant filed an Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Omnibus Motion in Limine, and the
matter was heard by this Court on February 15, 2011, at which time this Court GRANTED
Plaintiffs’ request. On March 9, 2011, this Court entered a written Order which stated in
pertinent part as follows:;

“IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintilfs® request to exclude prior and
- subsequent unrelated accidents, injuries and medical conditions, and prior and subsequent
claims or lawsuits is GRANTED in all respects,”

Following the entry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded the Defendant from introducing evidence of unrelated accidents, inciuding
the 2003 motorcycle accident.

2. Defendant’s Clear Violation in Opening Statement

In his Opening Statement, counsel for the Defendant presented to the jury a Power Point
slide referencing William Simao’s 2003 motorcycle accident. The Plaintiffs objected, asked that
the slide be shielded from the jury, and approached for a sidebar conference.

The slide clearly and unambiguously violated the Order of this Court on the Plaintiffs’
Omnibus Motion in Limine, which Motion specifically referenced the 2003 motorcycle accident

as an accident unrelated to any issue in the instant case. The jury was directed to disregard the

-004317
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slide and was further admonished that a pretrial ruling of the Court excluded evidence of the
2003 motorcycle accident.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

Following this admonition, this Court held a hearing outside the presence of the jury to
allow the Defendant’s counsel and the Plaintiffs’ counsel to review the remaining slides
accompanying the defense Opening Statement to determine if any of them violated court orders.
Several of them violated orders and were removed (RTP, March 21, 2011, p. 75). Notably, the
Plaintiffs' counsel made the following statement outside the presence of the jury:

There were multiple other slides that had the same type of problems in them.
Most of them Mr. Rogers agreed with and tock those statements out of the slides, but
again, if we hadn't done that, there would have been three to four more clear violations of
... this Court’s pretrial orders,

As Mr, Wall [Plaintiffs’ co-counsel] said at the bench, 1 think it’s clear — [ think
i’s abundantly clear that Mr. Rogers is going to try to mistry this case. I think it is
abundantly clear that that’s what’s going on. .

1 told the Court at the last bench conference that that was two. If there were any
additional ones, we were going to start asking for monetary sanctions and other potential
sanctions in this case for this type of systematic refusal to comply with pretrial court
orders.

I expect his experts are going to do it as well. | can assure this Court that hey are
going to violate & number of the orders in their testimony, just like Mr. Rogers did wp
there....

(RTP, March 21, 2011, p. 75) (emphasis supplied).
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B. Violations of Order Precluding Evidence That This is 2 “Medical Build-up” Case
1. Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine

Within the afore-mentioned Omnibus Motion in Limine, the Plaintiffs also sought to
preclude any evidence or argument that the case was “attorney driven” or a “medical build-up”
case. This section of the Plaintiffs’ Omnibus Motion in Limine was also heard by this Court on
February 15, 2011, at which time this Court GRANTED the Plaintiffs’ request. During the

hearing on this Motion, counsel for the Defendant conceded he had ne evidence of any kind

suggesting that this case was “attorney driven" or & “medical build-up” case. This Court's

written Order of March 9, 2011, also stated as follows:
“IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to preclude argument that
this case is ‘attorney driven’ or a ‘medical build-up’ case is GRANTED.”

Following the entry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded the Defcndant from arguing or presenting evidence that the instant case
was a “medical build-up” case, in large measure as a result of the Defendant having no such
evidence to present.

2. Defendant’s Clear Violation During Opening Statement

In his Opening Statement, counsel for the Defendant made the following statement when
discussing the testimony of the Plaintiff’s treating physicians:

“And we are going to hear from various different kinds of doctors in this case.

One of them are doctors who appear down here regularly in coun, as ofien, if not more

than trial lawyers. Doctors McNulty, and Grover...”

(RTP March 21, 2011, p. 72).

Defense counsel‘s.lstatement was interrupted by an objection from the Plaintiffs, who

additionally asked that the Power Point slide that accompanied the defense’s Opening Statement

004319
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be shielded from the jury. The slide referenced the Plainiliff’s treating physicians as “Trial
Doctors,”

At the sidebar conference that followed, the Plaintiffs objected to the statements of
counsel and the “Trial Doctors” slide as violating this Court’s Order precluding any argument
that the case was “attorney driven” or a “medical build-up” case. Since no other purpose for the
statement or the slide was forthcoming from counse! for the Deflcndant at the sidebar, the jury
was directed to disregard the slide.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

3. Defendant’s Clear Violation During Cross-Examination of Dr, Patrick McNulty

Despite this Court’s ruling during the Defendant’s Opening Statement on the issue of
medical build-up and “Trial Doctors,” counsel for the Defendant asked the following question of
Dr. McNulty, one of the Plaintiff’s treating doctors:

“Now, Doctor, yesterday there was a discussion about the testimony history of a
doctor. I don’t broach this topic with you to be insensitive, but I want to touch on it since
that issue has been raised. You testified under oath, whether it be in trial or in deposition,
somewhere around 100 times; is that right?”

(RTP, March 25, 2011, pp. 21-22).

Counsel for the Plaintiffs immediately objected and approached the Court for a sidebar
bench conference. There, the Court heard argument regarding the “discussion” “yesterday”
which was the Plaintiffs’ use of specific prior deposition testimony to impeach the Defendan(’s
expert witness during cross-examination. Further, the Court heard arpument that this line of
questioning could only be presented to create an inference of “medical build-up.” Counsel for
the Defendant did not sufficiently explain to this Court how this line of questioning was not a

violation of the pretrial order precluding evidence of “medical build-up,” especially in light of
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the fact that the Defendant admittedly had no evidence to support a “medical build-up™ defense.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.
C. Violations of Pretrial Order Precluding “Minor Impact” Defense

As set forth above, the Plaintiffs’ ultimate motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer was
based primarily on repeated viclations of this Court’s pretrial Order on the issue of a “minor
impact” defense,
1. Plaintiff's Moticn in Limine

On February 17, 2011, Plaintiffs brought a Motion in Limine to: 1) Preclude Defendant
from Raising a “Minor” or “*Low Impact” Defense; 2) Limit the Trial Testi;aaony of Defendant’s
Expert, David Fish, M.D,; and 3) Exclude Evidence of Property Damage. The Motion sel out the
fact that the Nevada Highway Patrol Trooper who completed the Accident Report referred to the
vehicle damage as “moderate.” Specifically, thg Motion asked the Court to preclude the
Defendant from “arguing, suggesting or insinuating at trial that the crash was a *minor impact® or
*low impact’ collision, and not significant enough to cause Plaintiff’s injuries.” The Motion was
primarily based on Hallmark v. Eldridge, 189 P.3d 646 (Nev. 2008), coupled with the fact that
Defendant did not have any expert qualified to testify whether the impact in the instant collision
was sufficient to cause the injuries complained of. Conversely, the Plaintiffs had disclosed a
biomechanical expert who was prepared to testify that the accident was of the type to have
proximately caused injury to the Plaimiff. The Motion further sought to limit Defendant’s pain
management expert, Dr. David Fish, from testifying to opinions rooted in biomechanical science,
as he lacks the qualifications to testify to such opinions under the standard announced in
Hallmark.

On February 25, 2011, Defendant filed an Opposition to the Motion and the matter was

heard by this Court on March 1, 2011, at which time the Court GRANTED Plaintifls’ Motion in
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its entirety. Defendants prévided no evidence or information to correlate the amount of damage
to a vehicle in a collision to the severity of the injury suffered by a passenger. Defendants had
no expért wiiness on biomechanics to sﬁppoﬁ an argument or inference that this accident was too
minor to cause the injuries alleged to have been suffered by the Plaintiff. Based on Lhe Nevada
Supreme Court’s rulings in Hallmar#, supra, Levine v. Remolif, 80 Nev. 168 {1964} and Choat v.
McDorman, 86 Nev. 332 (1970), this Court found that issues of accident reconstruction and
biomechanics are not within the common knowledge of laypersons and require expert witness
testimony. As such, this Court found no evidentiary or factual foundation upon which the
Defendant could argue or infer that the accident was too minor to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries.
On March 8, 2011, this Court entered a written Order which stated in pertinent part as
follows;
*IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Plaintiffs* request to preclude Defendant from

Raising a “Minor” er “Low Impact” Defense is GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ reguest to limit the frial testimony

of Defendant’s expert, David Fish, M.D., to those areas of expertise that he is qualified to

testify in regards to is GRANTED. Neither Dr. Fish nor any other defense expert shall

opine regarding biomechanics or the nature of the impact of the subject crash at trial.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs’ request to exclude the property
damage photos and repair invoice(s) is GRANTED."”

Following the entry of the foregoing Order, all parties were on notice that this Court had
specifically precluded a defense (or even an argument) that the accident was too minor to cause
the injuries for which Plaintiff sought to recover damages.

Despite a clear and unambiguous Order precluding the Defendant from raising as a

defense that the impact of the accident was too minor to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries, counsel for

004322
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the Defendant persisted in violating this Court's order, ultimately leading to the sanction
imposed herein. There can be no question or argument that the Defendant was on notice of this
Court’s Order, based on the following:

a) Hearing Outside the Presence of the Jury on March 18, 201}

After jury selection had been completed and before Opening Statements, this Court held a
hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss, among other things, the issue of a minor
impact defense. The discussion on the record was extensive and comprises seventeen (17) pages
of the transcript (See, RTP, March 18, 2011, pp. 112-129).

During this hearing, the Plaintiﬁ's-' counsel brought to this Court’s attention the fact that
counsel for the Defendant, in his Opening Statement, might broach the subject of minor impact
by referring to the Defendant’s deposition testimony that the impact of the accident was merely
“a tap.” Counsel for the Defendant conceded that it was his impression that this Court had not
precluded such an arpument:

“What happened was, there was a motion to exclude a defense that 2 minor
impact cannot cause injury. The Plaintiffs' argument in the motion was because the
defense did not retain a biomechanical engineer they would not be able to argue the
general proposition that minor impacts cannot cause injury.

The defense appeared at the hearing and said, *This is not a biomechanical case.
The defense is not going to argue that no minor impact can cause injury. The defense is
that this minor impact did not cause injury.”

(RTP, March 18, 2011, p. 114)(emphasis supplied).

It became clear to this Court that the Defendant intended to present a minor impact
defense, despite the Order of this Court to the contrary. Plaintiffs’ counsel was allowed to once

again state on the record their position on the original Motion in Limine, outlining that the
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Defendant had no expert witness to opine that the accident was too minor to cause the claimed
injuries, and further that the Order of this Court on the Motion in Limine precluded a “minor
impact” defense at trial.

By the conclusion of the hearing outside the presence of the jury, this Court reiterated its
ruling on the Mation in Limine precluding a “minor impact” defense (RTP March 18, 2011, p.
125-26). Likewise, this Court precluded counsel for the Defendant from referencing in his
Opening Statement that it was a2 minor impact, or simply “a tap,” for the purpose of raising an
inference that the accident was too minor to cause the Plaintiffs injuries (RTP March 18, 2011,
pp. 127-28). This Court further reminded counsel for the Defendant to review the Order entered

on this issue to avoid violating it in the future (RTF March 18, 2011, p. 126, 127).

b) Hearing Qutside the Presence of the Jury on March 2], 2011

On the first court day following the hearing set forth above, the issue of “minor impact”
was again raised outside the presence of the jury immediately following the Plaintiffs’ Opening
Statement. At this hearing, the Defendant sought permission to claim a “minor impact” defense
based on the door allegedly being opened by the Plaintiffs in their Opening Statement when
counse) referred to the accident as a “motor vehicle crash.” This Court noted that the Plaintiffs
in their Opening Statement did not refer 1o the nature of the impact, the severity of the impact,
the fact that the impact was significant enough to cause the Plaintiff*s injuries nor any violence
associated with the impact. In fact, this Court noted that Plaintiffs’ counsel did not describe the
impact of the vehicles in any way.

Based on that finding, the Court denjed the Defendant’s renewed request to be able to
raise a “minor impact” defense. Again, the Defendant was clearly and unequivecally on notice

that such a defense was preciuded.

10
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2. Reference to Minor Impact during Defendant’s Opening Statement

Immediately following the foregoing discussion outside the presence of the jury, counsel
for the Defendant delivered his Opening Statement. He described the stop and go traffic the
Defendant encountered before the accident, and stated that the Defendant was nearly stopped
before the impact (RTP, March 21, 2011, p. 63). Plaintiffs did not object to this statement,
although it arguably raises an inference of a minor impact.

Thereafter, counsel for the Defendant proceeded to attempt to play selected portions of
his client’s videotaped deposition regarding the nature of the accident, which drew an objection
from the Plaintiffs. After a bench conference, this Court determined that not only was the
Defendant’s deposition hearsay when offered on her own behalf, but aiso that testimony
regarding the nature of the accident, if offered to show it was a minor impact, would be in
violation of this Court’s pretrial Order.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

3. Clear Violation of Order During Cross-Examnination of Dr. Jorg Rosler

During the testimony of Dr. Rosler, one of the Plaintiff’s treating pain management

physicians, counse] for the Defendant asked the following question:
“Do you know anything about what happened to [Defendant] Jenny Rish and her

passengers in this accident?”

(RPT, March 22, 2011, p. 84)

Before the witness could answer, the Plaintiffs objected, citing this Court’s pretrial
motion ruling.

The only potential relevance of such an inquiry would be to raise an inference that since
the Defendant or her passengers were not injured (or that the Plaintiff’s treating physician was

unaware of any injury), the accident must not have been significant enough to injure the Plaintiff.

11
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There is no other potential purpose in obtaining an answer from this witness to that question.
Such an inference would be directly contrary to this Court’s Order precluding a “minor impact”
| defense.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

4. Clear Violation During Cross-Examination of Dr. Patrick McNulty

Despite the fact that the Court sustained the Plaintiffs’ objection to the improper question
of Dr. Rosler, counsel for Defendant asked an almost identical question of the next treating
physician to testify for Plaintiff, Within the first two minutes of the Defendant’s cross-
examination of Dr. McNulty, the following questions were asked:

[Defense Counsel] And you don’t know anything about the car accident other
than what [Plaintiff] told you?

[Dr. McNulty] It was simply he said he had a car accident and that’s when he ~
his problems started.

[Defense Counsel] Okay. But did you discuss with him whether he was abie to
drive from the scene of the accident?

[Dr. McNulty] No, I really didn’t go into the other — into the other details. No, I

did not discuss that.

[Defense Counsel] Do you know anything about the folks in Jenny Rish's car?

(RTP 3/25/11, p. 4) (Emphasis supplied).

Counsel for the Plaintiffs immediately objected and a bench conference ensued. At the
bench conference, counsel for the Defendant indicated his position on the relevance of the
I question:
’ [Defense Counsel] The relevance is that if one of them were injured or were not,

that would be relevant or probative to whether the others were injured.

12
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(RTP 3/25/11, p. 5).

In fact, based on this Court’s prior rulings, such a position is untenable. As stated in the
alithority supporting the grant of the Plaintiffs’ pretrial Motion in Limine, there is no correlation
beiween the size of the impact and the potential for injury to the Plaintiff. There is no correlation

between whether the Defendant or one of her passengers was injured and the potential for injury

to the Plaintiff. The Defendant had no credible or admissible evidence supgesting such a 7

correlation and no expert testimony to support such a proposition.

Further, since the question asked on cross-examination of Dr. McNulty was exactly the
same question precluded during the cross-examination of Dr. Rosler, the Defendant was clearly
on notice that this area of inquiry was impropet.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

5. Clear Violation During Cross-Examination of Dr. Jaswinder Grover

On the very same afternoon as Dr. McNulty’s cross-examination, the Defendant had the
opportunity to cross-examine Dr. Grover, another of the Plaintiff’s treating physicians. During
that cross-examination, comnsel for the Defendant again asked the very same type of question
precluded during the cross-examination of Drs. Rosler and McNulty:

[Defense Counsel] You know the Plaintiff wasn’t transported by ambulance.
[Dr. Grover] Yes, sir.
[Defense Counsel] You know {whether] Jenny Rish —
[Plaintiff's Counsel] Objection, Your Honor.
[Defense Counsel] — was lifted from the scene?
(RTP 3/25/11, p. 141).
After all of the previous hearings on the issue of a “minor impact” defense, and afier the

objections to the same type of question were sustained by this Court, such a question of Dr.
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Grover is simply inexplicable. Again, there is no potential relevance to a question asked of one
of the Plaintiff’s treating doctors (who didn’t treat the Plaintiff until almost three years afier the
accident) about any injuries to the Defendant, other than to attempt to infer that the accident was
too minor to injure the Plaintiff if the Defendant was niot injured. That inference is precluded,
based on the fact that the Defendant had no expert witness or admissible evidence to support that
inference.

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained and the jury was directed to disregard the last
question,
6. Hearing Outside the Presence of the Jury on March 25, 2011

Following the testimony of Dr. Grover, at a hearing outside the presence of the jury,
counsel for the Plaintiffs made the following record regarding the pervasive and continuous
violations of this Court’s Orders on pretrial Motions by counsel for the Defendant:

[Plaintiffs’ Counsel] Despite the ruling of the Court, despite the arguments we've
had outside the presence on the issue of minor impact, in Opening Statement and with
each and every witness so far, there’s been a question which leads to a conclusion or an
argument about minor impact, whether the Defendant was injured in — whether the doctor
knows whether the Defendant was injured in the accident, which could only potentially
be relevant to some argument that the accident was too minor to have caused injury,
because she wasn’t injured.

Each time we’ve objected. Each time the Court has sustained the abjection. |
would look f‘or, frankly, some guidance from the Court on what we can do from here out,
because it — I can only assume that it will continue to occur. And so, 7 don’t know
whether a progressive sanction that we'd ask for, that there should be a waming from

the Court before this should happen again, But those are my concerns, and 1 don’t know
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what other potential relevance there could be to asking a treating physician whether he’s

aware of whether or not the Defendant was injured in the accident.

(RTP 3/25/11, pp. 164-65) (emphasis supplied).

Thereafter, a discussion ensued on the record regarding the Court’s pretrial ruling and ihe
fact that the Defendant had repeatedly violated it. At the conclusion of the hearing outside the
presence of the jury, this Court attempted, once again, to make it clear that the violations were
continuous and that the Court would take necessary measures if the violations occurred again.
To the Plaintiffs’ counsel’s suggestion of a progressive sanction, the Court responded thusly:

[Court] I think you’re right, and I think that the defense is on notice. Ithink the

Order is very clear. I think it clearly has been violated. 1 was really surprised to hear a

question posed of [Dr. Grover] regarding Ms. Rish when the Courl sustained a previous

question regarding Ms. Rish of another witness and ruled that that was not relevant. So 1

was really surprised to hear that very same question posed as to Ms. Rish.

S0 I don’t know. It does seem to be at this point to be deliberate, Mr. Rogers.
And so, I'm inclined to agree that you're on notice. The Court will consider progressive
sanciions. 1 don't know what they will be, I hope there won’1 have to be any assessed.,
But I don’t know what ¢lse 1o do to try to get you to comply with the Court's previous
Orders.

(RTP 3/25/11, pp. 166-67) (emphasis supplied).

7. Testimony of Defendant’s Expert Witness, Dr. David Fish
a) Voir Dire Examination Prior to Direct Examination

Defense expert Dr. Fish testified out of order during the Plaintiffs’ case-in-chief as an

accommodation by the Plaintiff to the Defendant and her expert. At request of the Plaintiffs’
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counsel immediately prior to Dr. Fish’s testimony to the jury, this Court held a hearing outside
the presence of the jury to allow the Plaintiffs® counsel to take Dr. Fish on voir dire to ensure he
was aware of the Court’s previous rulings (including an Order granting the Plaintiffs’ Motion in
Limine to Limit the Testimony of Dr. Fish). Dr. Fish’s testimony outside the presence of the
jury comprises eighteen pages of the record (See, RTP March 24, 2011, pp. 12-30).

This questioning of Dr, Fish revealed that he was unaware of virtually every pretrial
Order entered by this Court, including the Order limiting his testimony. He was unaware of this
Court’s Order precluding:

1} Plaintiff’s unrelated 2003 motorcycle accident;

2) Plaintiff"s unrelated 2008 motor vehicle accident;

3) Plaintiff’s unrelated medical conditions;

4) Any suggestion of secondary gain, symptom magnification or malingering;

5} Sub rosa video surveillance of Plaintiff (ruling deferred umtil the conclusion of

Plaintiff’s direct cxamination);

6) Dr. Fish’s testimony regarding biomechanical opinions related to the accident.

Of obvious concem to this Court was the fact that despite the voluminous pretrial
maotions, the thorough and even repetitious hearings and arguments entertained by this Court on
the issues and the consistency of the enforcement of those rulings by this Court, the Defendant
had not properly prepared her expert witness. When Dr. Fish volunteered that he thought some
of the impediments to his testimony were “strange,” the Court responded:

[Court] You know what seems strange to me? Thal this wiméss obviously
doesn’t have any idea what the Court has ruled prior to these motions in limine.

(RTP March 24, 2011, p. 24).

The Court unambiguously placed Dr, Fish and the Defendant on notice that violations of
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the Court’s pretrial Orders carried the possibility of sanctions, including striking the testimony of
Dr. Fish in its entirety (RTP March 24, 2011, p. 15).

b) Violation During Cross-Examination

Nevertheless, during cross-cxamination, Dr. Fish persisted in failing to respond to
pertinent questions from the Plaintiffs’ counsel and -on more than one occasion responded to
questions by stating, inferring or insinuating that he was unfairly prohibited from answering the
questions based on this Court’s prior rulings (RTP March 24, 2011, p. 106, 133).

Despite the repeated and systematic violations of the pretrial Orders in this case and the
Court’s efforts to cure and prevent the same, Dr. Fish violated tulings on “minor impact” during
cross-examination,

When presented with contrary testimony on issues of medicine in prior depositions from
other cases, Dr. Fish responde.d by suggesting that the instant accident was not a “significant
accident.” The Plaintiffs’ oral Motion to Strike was Granted by this Court (RTP March 28,

2011, p.71-72),

c) Violation During Redirect Examination

At the end of the Defendant’s redirect examination of Dr. Fish, counsel for the Defendant

‘ in a conclusory fashion asked Dr. Fish to summarize his opinions on causation.

[Defense Counsel] ...Doctor, how is it that you can reach an opinion to a medical
probability that this accident didn’L cause the pain that [the Plaintiff] complained of
following this accident?

[Dr. Fish] Well, it's based on multiple factors. It's based on the actual — looking
at the images of the MRI. It’s looking at the discogram and the results of the discogram,
It’s looking at the pattern of pain. It’s looking at the notes that were taken of the events

that happened and it's knowing about the accident itself.

17
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(RTP March 28, 2011, p.87) (Emphasis supplied).

Based on this Court’s observation of Dr. Fish’s testimony, there is no question that Dr.
Fish's response, clearly in violation of this Coﬁrt’s Order, was deliberate. The Plaintiff’s
objection was sustained, and the jury was admonished to disregard the final statement in Dr,
Fish's response.

D. Irrebuttable Presumption Instruction to the Jury
1. Plaintiffs’ Request for a Special Instruction to the Jury

Following the testimony of Dr. Fish, the Court conducted a hearing outside the presence
of the jury at the request of counsel for the Plaintiffs to consider a progressive sanction against
the Defendant for the continuous and systematic violations of this Court’s Orders on pretrial
motiens. The Plaintiff offered, as an altemative to striking Defendant’s Answer, a special
instruction to the jury directing them to presume that the accident in question was of a sufficient
quality to have caused the injuries of which Plaintiff complained. The entire hearing on this
issue outside the jury’s presence comprises twenty-three (23) pages of transcript, which includes
a recess by the Court to consider the appropriate language of an adverse inference instruction
(See, RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 89-112).

During the hearing, the Plaintiffs’ counsel correctly identified the factual and procedural
history of the issue of a “minor impact” defense in this case {much of which is set forth above),
including the rulings on pretrial motions, the numerous hearings outside the presence of the jury
on this issue, the repeated violations of this Court’s Order on “minor impact” and the records
made establishing notice to the Defendant of possible progressive sanctions for any further
violations (RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 89-93).

Counsel for the Plaintiffs then made a further record outlining the proper standard for

consideration by this Court under Young v. Ribeiro Building, Inc., 106 Nev. 88 (1990).

8
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2. This Court’s Consideration of the Ypung Factors

In Young, the Nevada Supreme Court reiterated that trial courts have inherent equitable
powers to issue sanctions for abusive litigation pfaclices. Id at 92, Before issuing such
sanctions, a trial court should carefully consider the factors announced in Young, although no
single factor is necessarily dispositive and each of the non-exhaustive factors should be
examined in the light of the case before the trial court. /4 As outlined during the hearing by
counsel for the Plaintiffs, this Court considered the following factors set forth in Young before
addressing the language of the special instruction 1o the jury.!

a) Degree of willfulness of the violations

The violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders were continuous and systematic. As set
forth above, the Defendant was clearly on notice of the Court's Order regarding this “minor
impact” defense yet the Defendant violated this particular Order on numerous occasions, Based
on the sheer number of violations of the same order in the same fashion, this Court can only
conclude that such violations were wiliful in nature.

b) The extent to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction

To date, no lesser sanction had been successful in precluding future violations. This
Court has consistently sustzined the Plaintiffs’ objections and stricken offending questions and
answers. Al some point, simply divecting jurors to disregard continuous violations of pretrial
Orders is insufficient.

Counsel for the Plaintiffs indicated that the violations to this point were sufficient to

! In considering non-case concluding sanctions, a trial court shall hold such hearing as It reasonably deems
pecessary to consider matfers that are pertinent to the imposition of appropriate sanctions Bahena v
Goodyear Tire & Rabber Co., 245 P.3d 1182, 11B5 (Nev, 2010) This court heard extensive arguments from the
Plaintifls and the Defendant before granting tbe Plaintiffs’ request for o progressive sanction, While an
“express, careful srd preferably written” order s required by the Nevada Supreme Court for case
concluding sanctions only, Voung, supre at 93; Foster v. Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1043-49 (Nev, 2010), this
Court outlines hercin Its analysis of the Yeung factors that supported the imposition of the non-case
concluding samnetion of an ircebutiable presumption instruction.
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warrant a request that this Court impose a case concluding sanction of striking the Defendant’s
Answer, but that in harmonizing this particular factor from Young it might be necessary for this
Court to consider a lesser sanction of a presumption instruction.

¢) The severity of a sanction of dismissal relative to the severity of the abuse

This Court considered, at the time of imposing the sanction of an irrebuttable
presumption instruction to the jury, whether the altemative request of striking Defendant's
Answer wounld be an appropriate response to Defendant’s continuous violations of this Court's
pretrial Orders, While the abuse to this point was systematic and severe, this Court determined
that 2 progressive sanction would be appropriate before consideration of a case concluding
sanction,

d) The feasibility and fairness of an alternative, lesser sanction

Again, against the backdrop of the Plaintiffs’ alternative request to strike Defendant’s
Answer, this Court considered the feasibility and fairness of a lesser sanction and determined
that the irrebuttable presumption instruction requested by Plaintiff appropriately addressed the
nature of the violations of the Court’s Order precluding evidence to support a “minor impact”
defense.

An irrebuftable presumption is a presumption that cannot be avercome by any additional
evidence or argument. Employers Insurance Co. of Nevada v. Daniels, 122 Nev. 1009, 1015-16,
fon. 15 (2006), quoting Black's Law Dictionary 1223 (8" ed. 2004). As this Court noted during
the sanction hearing, the Order granting the Motion in Limine was based on the Defendant’s
complete lack of evidence bearing on a “minor impact™ defense:

[Court] But the point of the matter was that Defense had no witness who could

testify that this was a minor impact and no witness who could testify that this was a

minor impact that could not have caused the injuries to Plaintiff, that Plaintiff sustained,
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Defense simply didn’t have any witnesses to so testify. That's why the motion in limine

was granted.

(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 104).

Given that the Defendant had no admissible, credible evidence to offer 10 support this
“minor impact” defense, an irrebuttable presumption instruction was appropriate to communicate
to the jury what the Defendant failed to comprehend throughout the trial: namely, that there is no
evidence to suggest that the impact in this accident was too minor to cause the injuries the
Plaintiff claims to have suffered. An alternative adverse inference instruction or a rebuttable
presumption instruction would have given the Defendant exactly what was precluded in the
Order on the pretrial motions: namely, an opportunity to rebut the contention that the accident
was of sufficient character to have caused injury, Again, the Defendant had no evidence with
which to rebut that contention.

e) The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

Mindful of this policy, the Court declined at this point to grant the Plaintiffs’ request to
strike the Defendant’s Answer and instead issued the irrebuttable presumption instruction.

Given the Defendant's concession of responsibility for the accident, the “merits” of this
case for the trier of fact to adjudicate were limited to the amount of damages suffered as a result
of the accident. Since the Defendant had no evidence to support a contention that the nature of
the impact in the accident was relevant to the amount of damages, the issues fof the trier of lact
were not materially affected by the irrebuttable presumption instruction.

f) Whether sanctions unfairix penalize a party for the misconduct of her attorney

In this Court’s view, the key 1o this factor from Young is whether the Defendant is
unfairly penalized for her attomey’s misconduct. However, the irrebuttable presumption

instruction imposed &s a sanction by the Court did not unfairly penalize the Defendant, It simply
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allowed the jury to irrebuttably presume the very fact that Defendant had no admissible evidence

to rebut — that the motor vehicle accident was sufficient in character and quality to have caused

the injuries suffered by the Plaintiff,

Additionally, as set forth below, it must be noted that the special instruction to the jury
still allowed them to consider whether the accident in question actually and proximately caused
Plaintiff’s injuries. The only presumption was that the accident was sufficient in character and
quality 10 have potentially done so. The only issue eliminated or restricted by the imrebuttable
presumption instruction was the “minor impact” defense for which Defendant had ne evidence to
Support,

£} The need to deter parties and future litigants

As set forth in great detail above, the sanctions employed by the Court to deter this
conduct had proven unsuccessful. Although this particular factor was not the overriding factor in
determining that the special instruction to the jury was warranted, this Court hoped that this
progressive sanction would at least deter the Defendant from continuing to vielate the Orders of
this Court,

3. The lrebuttable Presumption Instruction

This Court took & recess to allow the Plaintiffs’ counsel to draft a proposed instruction
and then heard argumnent from both sides regarding the exact language of the instruction, After
considering the proposed language and making some amendments thereto, as well as considering
the necessity of instructing the jury immediately as a curative measure, the Court read the
following instruction to the jury:

[Court] Furthermore, ladies and gentlemen of the jury, the Defendant has, on

numerous gccasions, atterpted to introduce evidence that the accident of April 15, 2005,

was too minor to cause the injuries complained of. This type of evidence has previously
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been precluded by this Court.

In view of that, this Court instructs the members of the jury that there is an
irrebuftable presumption that the motor vehicle accident of April 15, 2005, was sufficient
to cause the type of injuries sustained by the Plaintiff. Whether it proximately caused
those injuries remains a question for the jury to determine.

(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 113, 149-50),

Before making the discretionary ruling to issue that curative instruction to the jury, this
Court examined the relevant facts, applied a proper standard of law and used a demonstratively
rational process to reach a reasonable conclusion. See, Bass-Davis v. Davis, 122 Nev. 442, 447-
48 (2006).
E. Plaintiffs’ Request to Strike Defendant’s Answer Based on Repeated Violations of This

Court’s Pretrial Orders

During the hearing on March 28, 2011, wherein this Court considered the above-quoted
special instruction in lieu of the Plaintiffs’ request to strike Defendant’s Answer, counsel for the
Plaintiffs made clear that & further violation of this Court’s Orders would be met with the
Plaintiffs’ renewed request of the Court to strike the Defendant's Answer (RTP March 28, 2011,
p. 97).

. Cross-Examipation of Plaintiff, William Simao

During the Defendant’s cross-examination of Plaintiflf WILLIAM SIMAOQ, counsel asked
about circumstances surrounding the accident, including questions regarding the stop-and-go
nature of traffic on the freeway before the accident took place. The Plaintiffs objected, and a
bench conference ensued,

At the bench conference, the Plaintiffs asked for an offer of proof of what potential

relevance the speed of the vehicles would have, other than to suggest an inference that the
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impact of the collision was insufficient to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries (RTP March 28, 2011, pp.
92-95). Counsel for the Defendant failed to offer during the bench conference a sufficient
explanation of how the speed of the vehicles prior to the collision has a tendency to make the
existence of any fact of consequence more or less probable, see, NRS 48.015, other than to
suggest 2 minor impact (RTP March 28, 2011, p. 94-96).

The Plaintiffs’ objection was sustained.

What then followed can only be described by this Court as an intentional attempt to
further violate this Court’s clear and unambiguous Order.

Regarding the post-accident response by law enforcement and medicat personnel, counsel
for the Defendant asked the following questions of Mr. Simao:

[Defense Counsel] Now, we've heard several times through this trial that an
ambulance came to the scene.

[Mr. Simao] Yes.

[Defense Counsel] And that you declined treatment.

[Mr. Simao] I did.

[Defense Counsel) Ard the paramedics didn 't transport anyone from Mrs. Rish’s
car?

(RTP March 28, 2011, p. 98) (Emphasis supplied).

An imecdiate objection was interposed by Plaintiffs’ counsel and a brief bench
conference was convened before this Court excused the jury and addressed the matter on the
record outside their presence.

2. Plaintiff’s Request to Strike Defendant’s Answer
During the hearing outside the jury’s presence, counsel for the Plaintiffs again made an

exhaustive record of all of the occasions this Court had te direct and admonish Defendant not to
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address “minor impact” issues as a result. of this Court’s previous Orders. A significant record
was made of the notice provided to the Defendants that not only was the conduct violative of this
Court’s Ofder, but further that the Plaintiffs would be asking the Court to strike the Defendant’s
Answer as a sanction theref;)re (RTP March 28, 2011, pp. 101-05).

The response from the Defendant was essentially that she should not be precluded from
any discussion of the accident in question. Such an argument, this Court noted, misses the point
and unfairly and ipconectly broadens the scope of the pretrial Order. Ar incorrect summary of
the Court’s Order that any and all discussion of the accident it question is preciuded is vastly
different from questioning four separate witnesses as 1o whether anyone from the Defendant’s
vehicle was injured in the ¢rash. On this issue, the Court’s prior pronouncements could not have
been clearer,

While inclined to grant the Plaintiffs’ motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer at the
conclusion of the hearing outside the presence of the jury, this Court instead took the opportunity
to recess to again review the appropriate law, including the Nevada Supreme Court’s opinion in
Young v. Ribeire Building, Inc., on the issue of case concluding sanctions for abusive litigation
practices and continuous violations of Orders of the Court.

3. This Court’s Consideration of the Law as Applied to the Facts of This Case

As set forth above, the Nevada Supreme Court in Young reiterated that trial courts have
inherent equitable powers to issue sanctions for abusive litigation practices, including case
concluding sanctions such as dismissal or the striking of pleadings. Young supra at 92. Case
concluding sanctions are subject to a “somewhat heightened standard of review,” /d.; Foster v.
Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042, 1048 (Nev. 2010), to determine if the sanctions are just and relate to
the claims at issue.

Before issuing such sanctions, a trial court should carefully consider the factors

23

004339

004339

004339




OvEY00

MAINOR EGLET

= I = e - T e - e P o

-2 bJ ] (o] [\ ™D [ [ — -t -— g — — bt — e —
50 ﬁ = (%] S [FE] ~3 —_— = O ce ~J (=, Lh - ) [\ =] — =]

004340

announced in Young, although no single factor is necessarily dispositive and each of the non-
exhaustive factors should be examined in the light of the case before the trial court. Young,
supra at 92. Additionally, case concluding sanctions shall be supported by an express, careful
and preferably written explanation of the trial court’s analysis of the Young factors. /d at 93;
Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., 235 P.3d 592, 598 (Nev. 2010), rehearing denied, 245
P.3d 1182 (2010).

This Court carefully considered the plethora of violations of Court Orders before granting
the Plaintiffs’ request to strike the Defendant’s Answer, The hearing outside the presence of the
jury encompasses fifteen pages (15), which does not include the independent research and
analysis conducted by this Court during a lengthy recess in the proceedings. The Court's
consideration of the Young factors, although similar in many respects to the consideration of the
same factors three days earlier at the time of the irrebuttable presumption sanction, includes the
following:

a) Depree of willfulness of the violetions

A. violation of an Order on a motion in limine may serve as a basis for some type of
sanction if the Order is specific in its prohibition and the violation is clear. BMW v. Rorh, 127
Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12, citing to Black v. Schuliz, 530 F.3d 702, 706 (8lh Cir. 2008). As set forth
previously, the violations of this Court's clear and unambiguous Orders were continuous,
systematic and pervasive. Such viclations include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. Violation of Order precluding evidence of “medical build-up” during Opening

Statement;

il. Violation of Order precluding evidence of “medical build-up” during the
testimony of Dr. Patrick McNulty;

iii. Violation of Order precluding evidence of unrelated accidents during Opening
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Statement;

iv. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact™ defense during Opening Statement;

v. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jorg Rosler (question regarding injuries to the
Defendant or her passengers);

vi. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Patrick McNulty (question regarding injuries to
Defendant or her passengers),

vii. Violation of QOrder precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. Jaswinder Grover {question regarding injuries Lo
Defendant or her passengers);

vili. Defendant's abject failure to apprise defense expert Dr. David Fish of
court’s rulings on all motions in limine;

ix. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Dr. David Fish (question and answer regarding the
nature of the accident);

X. Violation of Order precluding evidence or argument in support of “minor
impact” defense during testimony of Plaintiff William Simao {question regarding injuries
to the Defendant or her passengers);

These violations of the Court’s Order precluding the “minor impact™ defense are

considered by this Court to be even more egregious given the numerous hearings cutside the
presence of the jury wherein this Court repeatedly and unequivocally prohibited the areas of

inquiry subsequently broached by counsel for Defendani. Those hearings include:
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1 | i. Hearing on the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine, March 1, 2011;

2 ii. Hearing outside the presence of jury to discuss “minor impact,” March 18,

3 2011

4 iii. Hearing outside the presence of jury lo discuss whether the Plaintiffs opened

Z the door to “minor impact™ defense during Opening Statement, March 21, 2011;

2 iv. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. Rosier

] regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 22, 2011;

9 v, Objection sustained 1o counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. McNulty

19 regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25, 2011;

:; vi. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Dr. Grover

13 regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 25, 2011,

14 vii. Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact™ defense

5 and the Plaintiffs’ notice of seeking progressive sanctions, March 25. 2011;

16 viii. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant's question of Dr. Fish

:; which resulied in response citing to the nature of the impact, March 28, 2011,

19 ix. Hearing outside the presence of the jury to discuss “minor impact” defense

20 and the Plaintiffs’ request for irrebuttable presumption instruction for the Defendant’s

2l continued violations of Court’s Order, March 28, 2011;

2 x. Objection sustained to counsel for the Defendant’s question of Plaintiff

ij William Simao regarding injuries to occupants of the Defendant’s vehicle, March 31,

;5 20115

26 At the hearing on the Plaintiffs’ oral motion to strike the Defendant’s Answer, this Court

27| characterized the continuing violations as having been “willfull, deliberate, [and] abusive,” (RTP

28 March 31, 2011, pp. 111-12), based on the fact that counsel for Defendant “refuses to comply
28
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with this Court’s rulings” (RTP March 31, 2011, p. 112). Particularly disturbing was counsel

for Defendant’s systematic insistence upon asking the Plaintiff and three separate treating

* doctors whether they were aware of any injuries to passengers in the Defendant’s vehicle, despite

this Court’s clear preclusion of that inquiry after each instance of misconduct.

b) The extent to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction

As set forth previously, the imposition of lesser sanctions did not act to curb the
Defendant’s violations of this Coun’s pretrial Orders. An attorney’s violation of an Order on a
motion in limine is misconduct which justifies evidentiary sanctions or even a new trial. See,
BMW v. Roth, 127 Nev.Ad.Op. 11, p.12; Lioce v. Cohen, 124 Nev. 1 (2008). Although Nevada
precedent does not follow the federai model of requiring progressive sanctions before imposing a
case concluding sanction, see, Bahena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber, supra, 245 P.3d at 1184-85.
this Cowrt nevertheless imposed progressive sanclions against the Defendant including the
itrebuttable presumption instruction to no avail. Nothing this Court could fashion, short of a
case concluding sanction, wag successful to halt violations of this Court’s pretrial Orders.

Given the frequency of the Defendant’s viclations of this Court’s Order precluding a

“minar impact” defense, all of which occurred in front of the jury, the Plaintiffs were prejudiced |

by having this issue repeatedly brought to the jury’s attention. In the eyes of the jury. the
Plaintiffs were repeatedly preventing the jury from hearing about the significance of the impact,
when in fact this Court had determined that a “minor impacl” defense was unavailabie (o the
Defendants piven the lack of evidence (and expert lestimony) to support such a defense, In
reliance upon this Court’s Order granting the Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine, the Plainmiffs had
released their biomechanical expert and had neither mentioned his name nor offered his opinions
in Opening Statement. The Plaintiffs had relied on this Court’s Order thal no “minor impact™

defense would be presented to the jury. The Plaintiffs had further relied on the fact that such a

29
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ruling wouid be upheld by this Court during the course of trial. The unfair prejudice to the
Plaintiffs was clearly shown. See, Roth, supra.

This Court also recognizes the prejudice to the Plaintiffs in making objection after
objection to the Defendant’s inappropriate questions. “[Wlhen...an attorney must continuously
object to repeated or persistent misconduct, the non-offending attomney is placed in the difficult
position of having to make repeated objections before the trier of fact, which might cast a
negative impression on the attorney and the party the attomey represents, emphasizing the
improper point.” Lioce v. Cohen, 174 P3d 970, 981 (Nev. 2008).

As such, it is the finding of this Court that the Plaintiffs would be unfairly prejudiced by
the continuous introduction of questions, evidence and argurment designed to create an inference

that the subject rotor vehicle accident was too minor to cause the Plaintiff’s injuries.

c) The severity of a sanction of striking Defendant’s Answer relative to the severity of

the abuse

Again, the pervasive and continuous nature of these violations warrants the sanction
ultimately imposed. Every litigant has the right to disagree with any ruling made or Order
entered by a trial court. His remedy is with an appellate court, based upon reasonable grounds as
the law requires. His remedy is never o just continue violating the Orders unchecked.

d) The feasibility and faimess of an alternative. Jesser sanction

As set forth above, alternative lesser sanctions were apparently rejected by the Defendant
in favor of continuing to violate the Orders of the Court. When the Plaintiffs first asked this
Court to strike the Defendant’s Answer on March 28, 2011, the Court considered this factor from
the Young decision to impose an alternative sanction of an irrebuttable presumption instruction.

As this Court indicated at the hearing on the Plaintiffs’ second oral request to the sirike

Defendant's Answer:
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[Court] Reparding the feasibility and fairness of an aliernative, lesser sanction,
you know, the only thing [ can say is less severe sanctions were imposed to no avail.

(RPT March 31, 2011, p. 113).

This analysis is bolstered by the fact that the Plaintiffs requested that the Court strike the
Defendant’s Answer three days earlier and put the Defendant on notice that they would seek to
strike the Defendant’s Answer should any future violations occur.

e} The policy favoring adjudication on the merits

As set forth above, this Court opted for less severe sanctions for all of the violations prior
to March 31, 2011, in large measure because of the policy favoring adjudication on the merits.
Even the irrebuttable presumption instruction given as a lesser, alternative sanction did not
prevent the Defendant [rom presenting any défense that they actually had evidence to present. It
is also worth noting that the Defendant had already agreed on the record not to challenge liability
for the accident.

Further, this Court recognizes that the Nevada Supreme Court has upheld the striking of
pleadings for a party’s failure to attend his deposition, Foster v. Dingwall, supra, for repetitive,
abusive and recaleitrant conduct during discovery, Young, supra; Hamlett v. Reynoids, 114 Nev.
863 (1998) (upholding the trial court’s strike order where the defaulting party’s constant failure
1o follow the court’s orders was unexplained and unwarranted); for a party’s continued failure to
appear at scheduled court proceedings, Durango Fire Protection, Inc. v. Troncoso, | 20 Nev. 658,
662 (2004); and for the failure to abide by rulings of the Discovery Commissioner, Bahena v.
Goodyear Tire & Rubber, supra. Additionally, the Nevada Supreme Court has approved
consideration of the Young factors as a guide to trial courts for sanctions grounded in violations
of court orders at trial. See, Romo v. Keplinger, 115 Nev. 94, 97 (1999).

The willful and deliberate violations of this Court’s Orders are equally as egregious as
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any discovery viclation, especially given the fact that the repeated violations in the instant case
occurred in front of the jury.

f) The need to deter parties and future litigants

Given its inherent powers derived from the Nevada Constitution and strong case
precedent, this Court simply cannot allow litigants to openly and deliberately abuse the litigation
process by disregarding Orders of the Court when convenient or tactically advantageous to do so,
especially when unfair prejudice to the non-offending party results. Such an allowance would
render courts of justice meaningless in the State of Nevada.

In the final analysis, after review and consideration of all of the various factors
announced in Young, it is the determination of this Court that the intentional, deliberate, abusive
and unfairly prejudicial conduct of the Defendant in repeatedly violating clear Orders of this
Court warrants the ultimate sanction of striking the Defendant’s Answer,

It is immaterial whether, as the Plaintiffs suggested several (imes during the trial, it was
the true intention of the Defendant to force or goad the Plaintiffs to seek a mistrial. What is
material is that the deliberate conduct of counsel for the Defendant in disregarding and violating
Court Orders could not be halted by this Court with any other sanction.

Neither sustained objections, a multitude of hearings outside the presence of the jury, nor
progressive sanctions deterred the Defendant’s ignorance of Orders of this Court.

Having carefully and thoughtfully considered the available remedies, it is the decision of
this Court, for all of the reasons set forth above, that striking the Defendant's Answer is
appropriate under the particular circumstances presented herein.

11, Plaintiffs’ Request for a Prove-Up Hearing to Establish Damages
By the time of the last violation of this Court's Orders by the Defendant, most of the

Plaintiffs” evidence had been presented to the Court over the first ten (10) days of testimony.
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Counsel for the Plaintiffs requested a hearing the following day for essentially a prove-up
hearing similar to the entry of a default judgment under NRCP 55b.

Counsel for the Defendant then requested the ability to be heard at the argument on
damages, pursuant to Hamilert v. Reynolds, 114 Nev. 863 (1958). In Hamlert, the Nevada
Supreme Court struck Hamleit’s Answer as a sanction for his continued failure to comply with
discovery orders pursuant to Young v. Ribeiro Building, supra. Hamlett claimed the trial court
erred in restricling his participation in the prove-up hearing to cross-examining Reynolds’
witnesses. In analyzing this issue under NRCP 55(b)(2), the Court stated;

The language of NRCP 55(b)2) that the “court may conduct such hearings or
order such references as it deems necessary and proper” suggests to us an intent to give
trial courts broad discretion in determining how prove-up hearings should be conducted.
Thus, we conclude that the extent to which a defaulting party will participate in prove-up
is a decision properly delegated to the trial courts. The trial courts should make this
determination on a case-by-case basis and not according to static rules implemented by
this court.

In deciding the extent to which a defaulted party will be permitted to participate in
prove-up, if at all, trial courts should remember that the purpose of conducting a hearing
after default, according to NRCP 55(b)(2), is to determine the amount of damages and
establish the truth of any averment. To that end, trial courts should determine the extent
to which full participation by the defaulted party will facilitate the truth-seeking process.

Hamlett, supra at 866-67.

In Foster v. Dingwall, supra, the Nevada Supreme Court clearly stated the standard for
proving up damages after a default is entered as a sanclion. During the prove-up hearing, this
Court shall consider the allegations deemed admitted by the fact of the default to determine if the
Plaintiff has established a prima facie case for liability, Foster, supra, 227 P.3d at 1049-50. A
prima facie case is defined as sufficiency of evidence in order to send the question to the jury.
Id. at 1050. In the instant case, Defendant Rish admitted responsibility for the accidem and

stipulated to liability, What was left was a determination of the Plaintiffs” damages, and the

Plaintiffs requested that this Court take notice of the evidence that had been presented in the
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preceding ten (10} days of testimony. Even though allegations in the pleadings are deerned
admitted as a result of the entry of default, the admission does not relieve the non-otfending
party’s obligation to present substantial evidence of the amount of damages suffered by both of
the Plaintiffs, Jd Having reviewed the evidence and concluding that a prima ﬁacie case had
been established by both Plaintiffs, this Court determined that the Plaintiffs are entitled to
damages for the harms proximately caused by the motor vehicle accident.

In determining the level of participation of the Defendant in the prove-up hearing, this
Court was mindful of the Nevada Supreme Court’s pronouncement in Foster and Young that
because the default was entered as a result of the Defendant's abusive litigation practices, the
Defendant “forfeited his right 1o object to all but the most patent and fundamental defects™ in the
prove-up. Foster, supra at 1050; Young, supra at 95.

Nevertheless, in an exercise of diseretion authorized by Hamlerr, this Court determined
that the Defendant would be allowed to address the Plaintiffs’ brief final argument on damages
in an argument of her own, to be followed by 2 brief rebuttal argument on behaif of the Plaintiffs.

Based on all of the foregoing, THIS COURT HERERY ORDERS that Plaintiffs’ oral
Motion to Strike Defendant’s Answer is GRANTED.

This matter stands submitted following the arguments of counsel and the prove-up
hearing of April 1, 2011, pending further Order of this Court.

DATED this zzlﬂ’day of April, 2011.

W
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 23805
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M, ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 8910]
Ph.: (702) 450-5400

Fx.: (702) 450-5451
reglet@mainorlawyers.com

dwall ainorlawyers.co

badams@mainorlawyers.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAQO, individually and | CASENO.: AS339455

" CHERYL ANN SIMAOQ, individually. and | DEPT. NO.: X

as husband and wife,
Plaintiffs,
Y,
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA

RISH; DOES I through V; and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Judgment, was entered with the above entitled
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Court on the 27™ day of April, 2011, a cop

DATED this 2™ day of May, 2011.

y of which is attached hereto.

-—
/r"
MAIy)R EGLEA
/ )
Yy

Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.

- Nevada Bar No. 2805

ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attomeys for Plaintiffs
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Daniel F. Polsgberg, Esq.

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing file stamped NOTICE OF ENTRY OF

JUDGMENT in the matter of SIMAO v. RISH, et al is hereby acknawledged:

Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.

ROGERS, MASTRANGELO,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL, LTD.
300 S. Fourth Street, #710

Las Vegas, NV 8910}

Attorneys for Defendants

Jowl D, Henriod, Esq.

LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP.

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Attorneys for Defendants

Date; Time:

Date: glai]g Time: 334 ppw .
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Electronically Filed
04/28/2011 01:45:32 PM

Q%_j.gg&;m_

CLERK OF THE COURT

. DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
WILLIAM JAY SIMAQ; and CASE NO.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAOQO, DEPT.NO.: X
Plaintiffs,
A’
JUDGMENT
JENNY RISH,
Defendant.

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on April 1,

2011. IT 1S ORDERED, ADIUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment is hereby entered in

favor of Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:
William Simao’s past medical and related expenses
William Simao’s pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Future pain and suffering
- Loss of Enjoyment of Life
Cheryl Simao’s loss of consortium {Society and Relationship)
Attomeys” fees

Litigation costs

TOTAL

$194 390, 9L

SH1% eYo.

S!,WQrSS?..
$_4uS. 119,

3 ALY
$_TBD
$_49,555. 19
$3,493,983. 4>
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Judgment against Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance with N.R.S. 17.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64 (2005).

Dated this Z:If’tlay of April, 2011.
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DANIEL F. POLSENBERG

State Bar No. 2376

JOEL D. HENRIOD

State Bar No. 8492

LEWIS AND ROCA LLP .

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 474-2616

STEPHEN H. ROGERS (SBN 5755)
ROGERS MASTRANGELO CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 170
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 383-3400
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish
DiSTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually and as

Eiectronically Filed

05/31/2011 10:12:57 AM

Qi b B

CLERK OF THE COURT

Case No. A539455

husband and wife, Dept. No. XX

Plaintiffs,
Vs,

JENNY RiSH; JAMES R1SH; LINDA RisH;
DOES I through V; and ROE
Corporations 1 through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT

1. Name of appellant filing this case appeal statement:

Defendant JENNY RiSH

2. Identify the judge issuing the decision, judgment, or order appealed from:

THE HONORABLE JESSIE WALSH

3. Identify each appellant and the name and address of counsel for each appellant:

DANIEL F. POLSENBERG

Nevada Bar No. 2376

LEWIS AND ROCA LLP _

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 474-2616
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STEPHEN H. ROGERS

ROGERS MASTRANGELO CARVALHO & MITCHELL
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 170

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702) 383-3400

Attomeys for Appellant

Identify each respondent and the name and address of appellate counsel, if
known, for each respondent (if the name of a respondent’s appellate counsel is
unknown, indicate as much and provide the name and address of that
respondent’s trial counsel):

ROBERT T. EGLET
DaviD T. WALL
ROBERT M. ADAMS
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street
Sixth Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89101
(702) 450-5400

Attorney for Respondents
William Jay Simao and Cheryl Ann Simao,

Indicate whether any attorney identified above in response to question 3 or 4 is
not licensed practice law in Nevada and, if so, whether the district court granted
that attorney permission to appear under SCR 42 (attach a copy of any district
court order granting such permission):

N/A

Indicate whether appellant was represented by appointed or retained counsel in
the district court;

Retained counsel

Indicalte whether appellant is represented by appointed or retained counsel on
appeal:

Retained counsel

Indicate whether aﬂ)el]apt was granted leave to proceed in forma pauperis, and
the date of entry of the district court order granting such leave:

N/A

Indicate the date the proceedings commenced in the district court, e.g., date
complaint, indictment, information, or petition was filed:

Complaint filed April 13, 2007.

Provide a brief description of the nature of the action and result in the district
court, including the type of judgment or order being appealed and the relief
granted by the district court:
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This is a motor vehicle accident occurring on April 15, 2005, Plaintiff’s
complaint al%\f/:lgedlnﬁh%ence and loss of consortium. The case presented for
arch 14,

jury trial on . :
to strike defendant’s answer which was granted. After a prove-up hearing on

April 1, 2011 ; i%dfment was entered on April 28, 2011, in favor of plaintiff in

93,983.45.

Indicate whether the case has previously been the subject of an appeal or an
original writ proceeding in the Supreme Court and, if'so, the caption and
Supreme Court docket number of the prior proceeding.

N/A

Indicate whether this appeal involves child custody or visitation:

N/A

If this is a civil case, indicate whether this appeal involves the possibility of
settlement:

the amount o

No.

DATED this 31% day of May 2011.
LEWIS AND RoCA LLP

By: s/ Daniel F. Polsenberg
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376)
LEWIS AND ROCA LLP

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 474-2616

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

011. On March 31, 2011, plaintiff made an oral motion

a
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b), | HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 31" day of May,

2011, 1 served the foregoing CASE APPEAL STATEMENT by depositing a copy for
mailing, first-class mail, postage prepaid, at Las Vegas, Nevada, to the following:

ROBERT T. EGLET
DAvID T, WALL
ROBERT M. ADAMS
MAINOR EGLET )
400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89101
s/ Mar?/ Kay Carlton
An Employee of Lewis and Roca LLP
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ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Ph.: (702) 450-5400

Fx.: (702) 450-5451
reglet@mainorlawyers.com
dwall@mainorlawyers.com
badams(@mainorlawyers.com

Attomneys for Plaintiffs
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO. individualiy. and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiffs.

V.

JENNY RISH: JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES I through V; and ROE
CORPORATIONS I through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE NO.:  A539455
DEPT.NO.: X

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on April 1,2011.
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21
22
23
24
25
26

28

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment was hereby entered in favor of]

Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:'

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff, WILLIAM SIMAO, have and recover DH

the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the following sums:

PAST DAMAGES:

Past Medical and Related Expenses

Past Pain, Suffering, Disability
and Loss of Enjoyment of Life

Total Past Damages:
FUTURE DAMAGES:

Future Pain, Suffering, Disability
and Loss of Enjoyment of Life

'fotal 'Future Damages:

TOTAL DAMAGES:

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiff, CHERYL SIMAO. have and recover

of the Defendant, JENNY RISH, the following sums:
PAST DAMAGES:
Loss of Consortium:

Total Past Damages:

TOTAL DAMAGES:

IT WAS FURTHER ORDERED that Plaintiffs be awarded and entitled to costs in the

amouni of $99,555.49.

" Exhibit | - Judgment

$ 194,390.96

$ 1,378,209.00

$1,572,599.96

$1,140.552.00

% 1,140,552.00

$2,713,151.96

$ 681,286.00
$ 681,286.00

$ 681,286.00
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Plaintiffs’ past damages in the amount
of Two Million Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Eight Hundred Eighty-Five and 96/100 Dollars
($2,253,885.96), shall bear pre-judgment interest in accordance with Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64, (2005)
at the rate of 5.25% per annum?’ from the date of service of the Summons and Complaint, on July 23,
2007 through May 18, 2011 as follows:’

PRE-JUDGMENT INTEREST:

07/23/07 THROUGH 05/18/11 = $ 452,231.10
(1395 days x $324.18 per day)
NOW, THEREFORE, Judgment in favor of Plaintiffs, WILLIAM SIMAO and CHERYL

SIMAOQ, is hereby given for Three Million Nine Hundred Forty Six Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-
Four and 55/100 Dollars ($3,946,224.55) against Defendant which shall bear post-judgment interest
at the current rate of 5.25% or $567.60 per day. until satisfied.

Y 2
DATED this__ 2! day of May, 2011.

Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551

400 South Fourth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

? Exhibil Lee v. Ball
¥ Exhibit Affidavit of Service
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAOQO, and CASE NQ.: A539455
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, DEPT.NQ.: X
Plaintiffs,
V.
JUDGMENT
JENNY RISH,
Defendant.

WHEREAS, a hearing for Default Judgment having come before the Court on April 1.

2011. 1T IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, that Judgment is hereby entered in

favor of Plaintiffs and against Defendant, Jenny Rish as follows:
William Simao’s past medical and related expenses
William Simao’s pain and suffering:
- Past pain and suffering
- Future pain and suffering
- Loss of Enjoyment of Life
Cheryl Simao’s loss of consortium {Society and Relationship)
Attorneys’ fees

Litigation cosls

TOTAL

$194. 330.

SH!]&,QHQ.
$L,140, 5572
$_405,1L9.

$ i, 2%(o.
$TG&D
5_49%,555. ¥4

$3,493,98%.45

004365

- 004365

004365




99€¥00

20

1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Judgment against Defendant, Jenny Rish, shall bear interest in
accordance with N.R.S. 17.130 and Lee v. Ball, 116 P.3d 64 (2005).

Dated this 7 7 1%ay of April, 2011.
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BARRY J. LEE, Appellant, vys. CHRISTOPHER G, BALL, Respondent,

No. 41686

SUPREME COURT OF NEVADA

121 Nev. 391; 116 P.3d 64; 2005 Nev. LEXIS 43; 121 Nev. Adv. Rep. 38

July 28, 2005, Decided

PRIOR HISTORY: [***1} Appcal from a dlisirict
court judgmem pranting additur and denying atomey
fees and costs. Eighth Judicial Distrit Court, Clark
County; Stewart L., Bell, Judge.

DISPOSITION: Reversed and remanded.

COUNSEL: Ronald M. Pehr, Las Vepas, for Appellan.

Piazza & Associates and Carl F. Piazza and David H.
Putney, Las Vegas, for Respondent.

JUDGES: BEFORE MAUPIN, DOUGLAS and PAR-
RAGUIRRE, JJ. DOUGLAS and PARRAGUIRRE, 1),
concur.

OPINION BY: MAUPIN
OPINION

[*393] [**65) OFINION
By the Court, MAUPIN, J.:

In this appeal, we clarify that a districi court’s grant
of additur is only appropriaie when presented to the de.
fendant as an aliernative to a new trial on damages,

FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY

The Jitigation below arase from a car eccident in
which the passenger In a vehicle, respondend Christopher
Ball, sustained injuries afer the driver, appellant Barry
Lee, nepligently tumed into oncoming traffic. Ball sued
Lee, olleging general and special demages. Unhappy
with the resulis of court-unnexed arblration, Lee re-
quesied a tria) de novo, Before trial, Lee served Ball with
an offer of judgment for $ 8,011.46, ARer [**56] a twor

day Irial, the jury awarded Ball § 1,300. Lee subse-
quently moved for cosls and atlomey fees becouse
[***2] Ball failed ta recover an amount in excess of the
offer of judgment. Ball opposcd this motion, requesting a
new Irial or, in the altemnative, additor. After an untran-
scribed heering, the disiricl court granted an § 3,200 ad-
ditur and awarded Ball prejudgment interest but did not
offer Lee the option of a new trial. The district court fur-
ther calculated prejudgment imerest using o pro-raa
formula based on the dilfering stattory rates of interest
in efTeca before the eniry of final judgment. Lee appeals,
erguing that the district count erred by granting an addi-
tur, failing o offer a new Irinl, and erroncously celeulal-
ing prejudgment interesi. As 8 result, Lee argues he is
entitled to anomey fees and cosis.

DISCUSSION

Additur

Under Drummond v. Mid-West Growers, ' Nevado
courts have the power to condition an order for a new
trial on acceptance of an additer, * In line with Drum-
mpnd, our subsequent decisions have conlirmed [*394]
8 "two-prong test for additur: (1) whether the damages
are clearly inadequale, and (2) whether the case would be
a proper one [or granting a motion for a new trial limited
to damages.” * If both prongs are me1, then the dismict
court has [***3]) discretion 10 grant & new trial, unless
the defendant ¢consents to Ihe courl's ndditur. ' The dis-
trict court hes broad discrelion in determining motions
for additur, and we will not disturb the ¢court’s determine-
tion unless that discretion has been sbused. ' However,
groming addltur in the absence of a demonsmable ground
for a new trial is an abuse of discretion.

I 91 Nev, 698, 708-13, 542 P.2d 198, 205-08
{1973).
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121 Nev, 391, %; 116 PAd 64, **;
2005 Nev. LEXIS 43, ***, 121 Nev. Adv. Rep. 38

2 ld at 708, 542 P.2d m 205.

3 Evans v. Dean Witter Reynalds, Inc., 116 Nev.
598, 616, 5 P.3d 1043, 1054 (2000) {citing
Drummond, 91 Nev. at 705, 542 P,2d st 203).

4 Drummond, 91 Nev. wt 712, 542 P.2d a1 208,

S Donaldson v, Anderson, 109 Nev. 1039, 1041,
862 P.2d 1204, 1206 (1593).

We conclude that Lee hes failed lo demonstrate that
the disirict court abused ils discretion in delermining that
additur was warranted. Firsi, the hearing during which
the district court [***4] orally granted additor was not
reported, the perties have noy provided a (rial transcript
in the record on appeal, ond the parties have nol ather.
wise favored us with the disurict court's oral explanation
for granting Ball such relief. * Second, betavse the award
was subsiantiefly less than the conceded praof of special
damages, there is at least some indication thar the jury
award was “clearly inadequate” in vipiation of the district
coun's instructions. Although the jury, acling reasonnbly,
could have disbelisved Ball's evidence conceming ol-
leged pain and suffering and reasonebly inferred that he
was not injured 85 severely os claimed, ’ and nlthough the
jury was nat bound to assign any parlicular probative
value to eny evidence presented, ' It is incumbmt upon
Lee 10 demonsteate that the addiyur, in and of itsell, con-
stitwies on abuse of giscrelion. * He has fziled 1o do so.

& See Siover v, Los Vegas Int't Country Club, 93
Mev, 66, 6B, 589 P.2d 671, 672 (1979} (staling
"when evidenice on which a district cournr’s judg-
ment resis is nol properly included In the record
on eppeal, il is assumed that the record sepports
the tower courl's findings™). We further note that
ihe distriet court's written order pranting addiiur
#5 silent as 1o the reasona far this award.

[0'05]
7 See Quimerg v. McDonald, 116 Nev. 1181,
1184, 14 P.3d 522, 524 (2000).
B Id
9  See Wallace v. Haddock, 17 Conn. App. 64,
325 A.24 14B, 15)-52 {Conn. App. Ct. 2003) (de-
clining to upset an award of additur when the ap-
pellam fuiled 10 provide irenseripts and “failed to
seek any further articudation of the court's reason-
ing for granting the motion for an sdditur™).

We conclude, however, that the district coun
abused jts discretion in failing o offer Lee the option of
a new trial or accepiance of the edditor. We clarify thal,
under Drummend, additur may not {*395] stand alone
as o discrete remedy! rather, it is only appropriate [**67)
when presented 1o the defendant as sn alternative to 2
new trial on damages.

10 See Druwmmond, 91 Nev. al 712, 542 P.2d o
. 208; see also Donaldson, 109 Nev, a1 1043, 862
P.2d a1 1207 (reversing & district court order and
remending with instructions to grant 3 new trial
limited to demauges, unless the defendant ogreed
to additur);, /77 Hartford ins. Co. of the 8.5 «
Dwens, 816 So. 2d 572, §75-76 (Fla, 2002) (hold-
ing the relevant Florida statute requires a trial
court 1o give the defendent the option of a new
trial when eddinr is pranted);, Wolface, 825 A.2d
at 153 (finding the relevant Connecticut statute
requires parties have the option of accepting oddi-
wr or receive a new tria) on the issve of dam-
Bges); Aunfa v. Marguth Agency, Inc., 437
N.W.2d 45, 50 (Minn. 1989) ("[A] new tria} may
be granted for excessive or Inadequate damages
and meade conditional upon the party ogainst
" whom the motion is directed consenting 1o a re-
duction or an increase of the verdict, Consent of
the non-moving parly conlinues io be required.™);
Tucel v. Moore, 875 5.W.2d 115, 116 {Mo. 1994)
("Additur requires thal the party against whom
the new Irial would be granted have, instead, the
option of agreeing to additur."); Belonger &
Belanger v. Teague, 126 N.H. 110,490 A.2d 772,
772 (N.H. 1983} (mem,) (holding “a jury verdict
supplemented with an additur may go 10 judg-
ment only if the defendant waives a new wint").

[***6) Prefudgment interest

Les argues that the district cowrt erred in colculating
both the raic and period ol prejudgment interest, We
apree and conclude thal the district courts caleulation
was ploinly erroneous. "'

11 See Bradigy v. Rapreo, 102 Nev. 103, 105,
716 P.2d 227, 228 (1986) ("The ability of this
coun 10 consider relevan; Issues sua spovite in or-
der 10 preveni plain error is wrll estblished.
Such is the case where a statute which is clearly
controlling was not applied by the sl coun.”
(cilation omitied)).

Under NRS 17.130(2), ¥ a judgment accrues [nter-
est from the date of the service of the summons and
complaint until the date the judgment is satisfied. Uniess
ptovided for by contract or otherwisc by law, the appli-
cable rate for prejudgment interest is sintutority deter-
mined. " In determining what rate applies, NRS
17.130{2) [*396] Instrucis courts to wse the base prime
rate percentage "as ascertained by the Commissioner
[***7) of Financial Instilutions on January | or July ),
s the case may be, immediately preceding the date of
judgment, plus 2 percent.”
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121 Nev. 391, *; 116 P.3d 64, **;
2005 Ney. LEXIS 41, ***; 12} Nev. Adv. Rep. 3R

12 NRS 17.130(2) provides;

When no rate of interest is pro-
vided by contraci or otherwise by
Taw, or specified in the judgment,
the judgment draws interest from
the \ime of service of the sym-
mons and complaint until satisfied,
excepl for ony emounl represenl-
ing futluyre darmages, which draws
interest only from the time of the
entry of the judgment unti] saris-
ficd, 2t & rate equpl 1o the prime
roie at the |argest bapk in Nevada
as ascertained by the Cominis-
sioner of Financial lnstitutions on
January 1 or July I, as the case
may be, immedimely preceding
the date of judgmeny, plus 2 per-
cent. The reie must be sdjusted ac-
tordingly on each Jsnuary ) and
July 1 thereafier until the judg-
ment i5 satisfied.

13 NRS 17.130(2); see also Gibeltini v. Klingt,
{30 Nev. 120), 1208, 885 P.2d4 540, 544-45
(1994} {(holding thnt the “or specified in ihe

judgment" lanpuage does not permit o judge to
vary an interest rate cutside of the sinlutory rate).

{***8) The district count caleulaled the rate of pre-
jndgment Interest using periodic bignnua! lcga! rales of
interest in elfect between May 27, 1999, and March 24,
2003. This was error, Under the pfain fanguage of NRS
17.030(2), the district court should have calculated pre-
judgment interest 81 the single rate in efTect on the date
of judgmen).

The district court further determined that prejudg-
menl inlerest accrued from May 27, 1999, to March 24,
2003, NRS 17.130(2) explicitly provides that "he judg-
ment draws interest frorm the time of service of the sum-
mons and complaint until satisfied.” Ball compicied ser-
vice of process on June 9, 1999, and the disivict court
entered final judgment on March 29, 2003. Therafore,
prejudgment interest acerued beginning June 9, 1999, not
Mey 27, 1999. Accordingly, the district court also erred
in calculsting the period prejudgment interest accrued.

CONCLUSION

We hald that the district court erred in grunting an
additur without providing Lee the option of accepling the
additur or a new 1rial on demages and in calculating pres
judgmeni inerest. Accordingly, we reverse the distrial
court’s judgment and [***9] remand this |**68) matter
For proceedings consistent with this opinian.

DOUGLAS and PARRAGUIRRE, J],, concur.
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sSUM

District Court K

JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES 1 through V; and ROE CORPORATIONS
1 1through V, inclusive,

bl

CLARK COUNTY,.NEVADA ctérg/ F,f},?;:""
A =T,
Aue -
WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individuaily,and ) 1z Fii 07 |
CHERYL ANN SIMAQ, individually, ) i
and as husband and wife, ) TR
) NIy
) SUMMONS
Plaintiffs, )
) CASE NO.
Vs, )
) Dept. NO. A539455
) ;
)
)
}
)

| Defendants,

NOTICE! YOU HAVE BEEN SUED. THE COURT MAY DECIDE AGAINST YOU WITHOUT YOUR BEING
HEARD UNLESS YOU RESFOND WITHIN 20 DAYS, READ THE INFORMATION BELOW,

TO THE DEFENDANT. A Civil Complaint has been filed by the piaintiff against you for the selief set forth in the

¢Lev00

Complaint, §
JENNY RISH 3
223 NORTH COTTONWOOD DRIVE : :
GILBERT, ARIZONA 85234
1. If you intend to defend this lawsuit, within 20 days after this Summons is served on you exclusive of the
day of service, you must do the following:
{ a. File with the Clerk of this Court, whose address is shown below, a formal written response to the

Complaint in accordance with the rules of the Court.
b, Serve a copy of your response upon the attomey whose name and address is shown below

2, Unless you respond, your default will be entered upon application of the plaintiff and this Court may enter ;
a judgment against you for the relief demanded in the Complaint, which could result in the taking of rnoney or property or !
other relicf requested in the Complaint.

3 If you intend to seck the sdvice of an attorney in this matter, you s:hould do so promptly so that your
response may be Mled on time.
Issued at the direction of:
i

AARON & PATERNOSTER, LTD. CHARLES J, SHORT, CLERK OF COURT ;
By: i — By: fy| @t' D UI’

Matthew/'E. Aaron, Esq. Deputy Clerk Tg

Nevada Bar No. 4900 County Courthouse PA BOGGESS

AARON & PATERNOSTER 200 South Third Street

2300 West Sahara, Suite 650 Las Vegas, NV 89155 {

Attomneys for Plaintiffs b
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|
!
|
1
eER g R e
i
[]
r
!

1 T

2

3 i

4 CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT COURT '

In And For The County Of Maricopa, State.Of Arizona
WILLIAM JAY SIMAO AND CHERYL ANN SR
SIMAO _ i _ . A539455
. Elaintiff(s), Represanted By THE PLAINTIFF l
10‘ Vs,

N | [ Dectaration of Service |

JENN RISH, JAMES RISH, LINDA RISH T

Defendant{s). In P, sua

181¥ i, TYLER TREECE, being qualified undsr ARCP, 4(d) and 4(s), to serve legal process within the Stais of
18 Arizonn and having been so eppointed by Maricopa County Supsrior Courl, did recelve on July 12, 2007 from
!| THE PLAINTIFF, Altorney For The Plainiifl, the foliawing Courd issued documsnts; I;

| SuMMONS AND COMPLAINT
18¢

On Monday, July 23, 260 : i ally served frua ¢ of these documents es follows:; !

18 JENNY RISH BY LEAVIN COPIES WITH HER DAUGHTER, ARLENE VILLA AN OCCUPANT OF ]
20 SUITABLE AGE AND DISCRETION WHO RESIDES YHEREIN,
2| Description of Person Served: __H F 3040 58 160 BRN j
22 Raca Sex DOB or Approx Age Helght Walght Hair Eyes L
23(l Documents Were Served At The 223 N COYTONWOOD DR f
24|| Place Of at the piace of abode GILBERT, AZ 85234 f

| Loceted at; )
251 | . -
28 SECURED

. 1 daclers under penally of perjury th
27 the foregolng is frue and corract an
" - was execided on this date.
July 24, 2007

20},
20 /%
3 -
a2 TYLER TREECE, Déclarant
a3 . AAA Lundlord Services, Inc, An Officer Of Marioopa County Stuperiar Gourt
34 www.aaalandlord.com
35
36

R

004373

004373




004374

¥.Ev00

1004374

004374




GLEYO0

MDD I Oy W B W N e

| T N T S o e e O N o O o o T I R O e S
[ L« L ¥ 1 T - I e N R = o B - - B = S - S L L~

004375

Electronically Filed
06/01/2011 03:02:43 PM

OPPS O b Ll
STEPHEN H. ROGERS, ESQ. i

Nevada Bar No. 5733 CLERK OF THE COURT
ROGERS, MASTRANGELQO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Phone (702) 383-3400

Fax (702) 384-1460

Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO.  AS539455
DEPT.NO X

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAQO, individually, and as
husband and wife,

Plaintiff,
v
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA RISH;
DOES 1 - V; and ROE CORPORATIONS I - V,
inclusive,

Defendants.

. DEFENDANT'S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO QUASH
COMES NOW Defendant JENNY RISH, by and through her attorney, STEPHEN H.

ROGERS, ESQ., and hereby submits this Opposition to Motion to Quash.
o '

H

i

1

i

i

i
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This Opposition is based upon the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the
p]f:a(:lingsT and papers on file herein, and any argument the Court is willing to entertain at the time of

the heariﬁg.
&«
DATED this 1~ day of June, 2011.

(/‘—“‘\
ROGE MKS’TRA@Q,,QQJALHO &

MITCHEL >
et /

\wm...—-—-‘ /

STEPHEN H. ROGERS","ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5755

300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

: MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I. ARGUMENT

A. Plaintiffs motlon te quash should be denied.

This personal injury action arises out of a motor vehicle accident (“MVA”™) that occurred
April 15, 2005. Defendant Jenny Rish rear-ended a vehicle driven by Plaintiff William Simao.
Plaintiff alleged personal injuries. The trial began on March 14, 2011, and concluded on March 31,
2011, after the Court struck the Answer and dismissed the jury as a sanction for Defendant’s
purported violation of pre-trial orders. The Courl found in favor of the Plaintiff, and ‘awarded
damages ‘_in the amount of $3,500,000.

During trial, Plaintiff provided expert witness testimony regarding foture surgery and future
damages which were never disclosed to the Defense prior to trial. Therefore, Defendant attempted
several avenues to counter this evidence, including & subpoena to obtain the original fluoroscopy
images taken by Jorg Rosler. Defendant needed the original images so that her experts, Dr. Wang,
Dr. Fish and Dr. Winkler (the latter was not allowed to testify) and Joseph Schifini, could state their
opinions regarding the images. Unfortunately, the original images were not produced for inspection

before or even at trial, and Plaintiff objects to the subpoena of the records now.

i Page 2 of 4
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;

A new trial is allowed due to new evidence which the party could not produce at trial under
NRCP 59(a)(4). The original films, and the opinions of Dr. Winkler and Dr. Schifini regarding them,
is certainly new evidence that Defendant could not produce at trial.

While Plaintiff objects and questions the validity of the subpoena, Plaintiff cites no case law
that holds such a subpoena is ineffective. Moreover, the need for the subpoena is due to Plaintiff’s
and/or Dr. Rosler’s unwillingness to produce the actual images for inspection. While Plaintiff may
still be treating with Dr. Rosler, this treatment is not on a daily basis such that the images cannot be
released for a few days for a proper inspection. |

II. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above, the Courf should deny Plaintiff’s motion to quash,

DATED this I day of June, 2011.

e ""‘—-
ROGERS MASTRANG E@@ALHO &
e e

MIT
/‘ -.-".
TS
STEPHEN H. ROGERSZ:ESTQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5755
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 710
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorneys for Defendant Jenny Rish

Page 3 of 4
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(z), and EDCR 7.26(a), I hereby certify that I am an employee of
ROGERS, MASTRANGELO, CARVALHO & MITCHELL, and on the __Ci day of June, 2011,
a true and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANT’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO
QUASH .‘was served via Firgt Class, U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows, upon the

following counsel of record:

David T, Wall, Esq.

MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 P
Telephone: (702) 450-5400 /
Facsimile: (702) 450-5451 /

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

" !]\_/.f"""-\..

Empl Fyee AT
ogefts, I\hs_gfgg‘gelo, Carvaltho & Mitcheli

: .
M:\Rogers\Rish adv. Simao\Pleadings\oppasition to motion to quash.wpid

Page 4 of 4
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Page 1 of 1

Logout My Account Saarch Menu New District Civil/Griminal Search Refine Search Back L.ocation : District Court CiviliCriminal  Help

REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE No. 0TAS539455

Willlam Simao, Charyl $imao vs Jenny Rish § Case Type: Negligence - Auto
§ Date Filed: 0471312007
§ Location: Department 10
§ Conversion Case Number: AB539455
§ Supreme Court No.: 58504
§ 59208
-§ 59423
§
§
PARTY INFORMATIDN
Lead Attorneys
Defendant Rish, Jenny Stephen H Rogers
Retaiited

702-383-3400(W)

004380

Plaintiff Simao, Chery! A Davld T Wall
Retained
702-450-54000WV)

Plaintift Simao, Witllam J David T Wall
Retained

702-450-5400(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

06/02/2011 | Motion to Retax (3:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Walsh, Jessle)
Defandant Rish's Motion lo Retax Costs

Minutes
06/02/2011 3:00 AM
- Following review of the papers and pleadings on file herein, COURT ORDERED motion DENIED. Defendant's provide
absolutely no analysis. They do not argue that plaintiffs expert fees were not reasonable, necessary or actually incurred.
Defendant's simply argue that the fees must be retaxed because they exceed the 1500 threshold. Given the plain
language of NRS 18.005 (5), which authorizes an award beyond the 1500 for good cause shown, Defendant's argument
is unavailing. Defendant's correctly point out that it is plainliffs burden to establish the reagsonableness and necessity of
these costs, however, plaintiffs pleadings do just that.

Return to Register of Actions

' https://www.clarkcoun_tyc'oﬁrts.us/AnQnymous/Ca$eDetail.as'px?CaseIDf66.4876 I&Heafin... 52472012
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MAINOR EGLET

NJUD

ROBERT T. EGLET, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3402
DAVID T. WALL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2805
ROBERT M. ADAMS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6551
MAINOR EGLET

400 South Fourth Street, Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 85101
Ph.: (702) 450-5400

Fx.: (702) 450-5451
badams@mainorlawyers.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

WILLIAM JAY SIMAO, individually and
CHERYL ANN SIMAO, individually, and
as husband and wife,

Plaintiffs,
V.
JENNY RISH; JAMES RISH; LINDA

RISH; DOES 1 through V; and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1 through V, inclusive,

Defendants.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

004382

Electronically Filed
06/02/2011 12:48:42 PM

A $ e

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO.: AS539455
DEPT.NO.: X

" PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Judgment, was entered with the above entitled

Court on the 1™ day of June, 2011, a copy of which is attached hereto.

DATED this 1* day of June, 2011.

MAINOR EGLET

DAV]‘DT WALL, ESQ.
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MAINOR EGLET

(2

RECEIPT OF COPY

RECEIPT OF COPY of the foregoing file stamped NOTICE OF ENTRY OF

JUDGMENT in the matter of SIMAOQ v. RISH, et al is hereby acknowledged:

o
T

)

Stephen H. Rogers, Esq.

ROGERS, MASTRA LO,
CARVALHO & MITCHELL, LTD.
300 S. Fourth Street, #710

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Defendants

Daniel F. Polsenberg, Esq.

Jowl D. Henriod, Esq.

LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP.

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Attorneys for Defendants

Date: (ol /11 Time: * 40pm

Date: 1253‘ i Time: 10T A0,
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